
 
 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

 
FOR 

 

Tuesday, May 4, 2021 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 
 
 

6:00 pm City Council Work Session 
 

7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 
 

City Council Executive Session 
(Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(f), Exempt Public Records) 

(Following the regular Council Session) 
 
 

Pursuant to House Bill 4212 (2020), these meetings will be conducted electronically and  
will be live streamed at https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood 

 

https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood


AMENDED AGENDA 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
May 4, 2021 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
6:00 PM CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
 
1. Supportive Housing Services Local Implementation  

Plan Review (Josh Crites, Assistant Director of Housing Services 

and Ty Schwoeffermann, Community Engagement Specialist) 
2. Introduction of New Sherwood YMCA Executive Director  

(Joe Gall, City Manager) 
3. Discuss Police Department – Mental Health Team & K9 Program 

(Jeff Groth, Chief of Police) 
 
7:00 PM REGULAR SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approval of April 20, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes (Sylvia Murphy, City Recorder) 
B. Resolution 2021-021, Authorizing the City Manager to purchase a 2022 Freightliner M2 with 

Dump Body for Sherwood Broadband Utility (Craig Sheldon, Public Works Director) 
C. Resolution 2021-022, Authorizing an amendment to the existing 3J Consulting, Inc. contract 

for the 2040 Comprehensive Plan Update (Erika Palmer, Planning Manager) 
D. Resolution 2021-023, Adopting Modification to Loan Period (David Bodway, Finance Director) 

 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Pursuant to House Bill 4212 (2020), citizen comments and testimony for public hearings must be submitted in writing to 
CityRecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov. To be included in the record for this meeting, the email must clearly state either (1) that it 
is intended as a citizen comment for this meeting or (2) if it is intended as testimony for a public hearing, the specific public 
hearing topic for which it is intended, and in either case must be received at least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting 
time.   Per Council Rules Ch. 2 Section (V)(D)(5), Citizen Comments, “Speakers shall identify themselves by their names and by 
their city of residence.” Anonymous comments will not be accepted into the meeting record. 

 
7. PRESENTATIONS 

 
A. Proclamation, National Police Week (Keith Mays, Mayor) 
B. Proclamation, National Public Works Week (Keith Mays, Mayor) 
C. Proclamation, Oregon Wine Month May 2021 (Keith Mays, Mayor) 

AGENDA 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 
May 4, 2021 

 
6:00 pm City Council Work Session 

 
7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 

 
City Council Executive Session 

(Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(f), 
Exempt Public Records) 

(Following the Regular Council Session) 
 
 

Pursuant to House Bill 4212 (2020), this meeting  
will be conducted electronically and will be  

live streamed at 
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood 

 

mailto:CityRecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood


AMENDED AGENDA 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
May 4, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
A. Ordinance 2021-003 Approving annexation of 2.19 acres to the City of Sherwood and Clean 

Water Services, comprised of 1 lot and adjacent SW Brookman Road right-of-way within the 
Brookman Addition Concept Plan Area (Second Hearing) (Eric Rutledge, Associate Planner) 
 

B. Ordinance 2021-004 Adopting the 2021 Parks and Recreation Master Plan as a sub-element of 
the City of Sherwood comprehensive plan, replacing all prior parks and recreation master 
plans (First Hearing) (Erika Palmer, Planning Manager) 
 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

10. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

11. ADJOURN to EXECUTIVE SESSION 
  
12. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
  
A. ORS 192.660(2)(f), Exempt Public Records 
  
13. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
How to Find out What's on the Council Schedule: City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, generally 
by the Thursday prior to a Council meeting. When possible, Council agendas are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall and the Sherwood Post Office.  
To Schedule a Presentation to the Council: If you would like to schedule a presentation to the City Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of 
your presentation and the date you wish to appear to the City Recorder, 503-625-4246 or MurphyS@sherwoodoregon.gov. If you require an ADA accommodation for this 
public meeting, please contact the City Recorder’s Office at (503) 625-4246 or MurphyS@sherwoodoregon.gov at least 48 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting 
time. 
 

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:MurphyS@sherwoodoregon.gov
mailto:MurphyS@sherwoodoregon.gov


 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

Pursuant to House Bill 4212 (2020), this meeting will be conducted electronically and will be live streamed at 
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood 

April 20, 2021 
 
WORK SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the work session to order at 6:02 pm. 
 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Tim Rosener, Councilors Doug Scott, Renee 

Brouse, Kim Young, Sean Garland, and Russell Griffin.  
 
3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, City Attorney Josh Soper, IT Director Brad Crawford, 

Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Police Chief Jeff Groth, Finance Director David Bodway, 
Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, Interim Assistant City Manager Kristen Switzer, Planning Manager 
Erika Palmer, Senior Planner Joy Chang, City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION PRESENT: Commissioner Rick Woidyla. 

 
OTHERS PRESENT: 3J Consultant Anais Mathez. Metro Councilor Garritt Rosenthal. Metro Council 
President Lynn Peterson joined the meeting at 6:50 pm.  

 
4. TOPICS 

 
A. Final draft Goals and Policies, Healthy and Valued Ecosystems  

 
Planning Manager Erika Palmer presented the “Sherwood 2040 Comprehensive Plan Update” 
PowerPoint presentation (see record, Exhibit A) and stated the work session would focus on healthy and 
valued ecosystems. 3J consultant Anais Mathez stated that the Planning Commission had previously 
reviewed this work, and this was Council’s opportunity to provide their thoughts and feedback on the final 
block plan process. Ms. Mathez commented that staff had emailed Council the draft goals and policies 
for the joint work session prior to the meeting (see record, Exhibit B). She stated that document production 
would begin in April-May 2021 and the adoption process for the Comprehensive Plan would take place 
May-June 2021. She recapped that the healthy and valued ecosystems block covered parks and 
recreation, natural resources, energy, watersheds and habitat. She commented that the parks and 
recreation portion of the block had already been reviewed significantly through the new Parks and 
Recreation Master Plan process. She stated the vision statement for the block was, “In 2040, Sherwood 
is a leader as a steward of its natural environment. Vegetated corridors are protected and weave through 
the city providing habitat, safe passage for wildlife, clean water and air, and a place for people to connect 
with nature. The city actively preserves mature trees and natural areas.” She reported that four goals 

3

https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood


accompanied the vision statement and stated they were: 1.) Pursue the expansion and enhancement of 
the city’s trail system and greenways that connect people to nature and their destinations. 2.) Plan, 
develop and enhance recreation opportunities and recreation facilities for Sherwood residents of all ages 
and abilities. 3.) Promote natural resources as a shared and critical community asset by being good 
stewards of Sherwood’s natural resources, ecosystems, and urban forest and protecting and enhancing 
their function, quality and diversity. 4.) Develop a funding strategy and pursue funding sources for land 
acquisition, parks and recreation facility development, operations and maintenance. She provided an 
overview of how the Parks and Recreation Master Plan (PRMP) interfaced with the Comprehensive Plan 
and explained that the PRMP built upon the goals and vision of this Comprehensive Plan block. She 
recapped the eight overarching strategies in the PRMP that would be incorporated into the 
Comprehensive Plan. She recapped the key policy questions on page 11 of the presentation and key 
organizations, groups, agencies and partners on page 12. She addressed the “Design with Nature” policy 
concept and stated the policy aimed to “Support site development and design practices that encourage 
‘design with nature,’ by incorporating and promoting natural ecosystem elements, including the planting 
of native trees and vegetation, minimizing effects on natural resources, and avoiding the degradation or 
loss of wetland, watershed, and ecosystem services.” She explained that they had received feedback on 
the proposed policies via online surveys and in conjunction with the PAT. She addressed the “Urban 
Forests” policy concept and stated the policy aimed to, “Protect Sherwood’s urban forest by preserving 
tree canopy, inventorying significant tree stands and working with partners to plant more native trees.” 
She commented that this policy received roughly 90% support via the online survey. She addressed the 
“Light Pollution” policy concept and stated that the policy aimed to, “Reduce the negative impacts of light 
pollution on human health and safety, wildlife and ecosystem health, energy conservation, and night sky 
viewing by regulating the fixture, direction, and color temperature of outdoor lighting.” She reported that 
additional concepts arose throughout the outreach process and discussion with the CAC and TAC. She 
outlined the “Other Key Policy Additions” on pages 18-19 of the presentation. Ms. Mathez stated that 
developing the Comprehensive Plan document was the next step in the process and stated that would 
occur in April-May 2021, with the adoption process taking place from June-July 2021.  
 
Councilor Griffin commented that the concern over light pollution was also a safety concern as some of 
the newer LED lights had to be carefully positioned in order to not impact a driver’s ability to see properly. 
Commissioner Woidyla commented he was happy with the work completed in this Comprehensive Plan 
block. City Manager Joe Gall asked when the Comprehensive Plan would be completely done? 
Community Development Director Hajduk replied that the process would never be entirely done, there 
would always be adjustments and tweaks to the plan. Planning Manager Palmer clarified that she 
believed there would be an adopted Comprehensive Plan by the end of Summer 2021. Councilor Garland 
thanked the Planning Commission for their work on getting the Comprehensive Plan ready for Council’s 
review and input and commented he appreciated all of the outreach they had taken part in to gather input 
on the document. Councilor Young commented that she enjoyed seeing how the Master Plans were 
worked into the Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Gall commented that when the Comprehensive Plan was 
adopted, there could be many code changes that are needed to ensure the City’s Code was up to date. 
Ms. Palmer explained that once the Comprehensive Plan was adopted, staff would put together an action 
plan which would outline how to implement the Comprehensive Plan and would help inform any code 
changes that may be necessary. Council President Rosener asked that staff work on determining if any 
code changes needed to be made a priority over others. 
 
B. Update from Metro President Lynn Peterson 

 

4



Metro Councilor Garritt Rosenthal presented the “Metro Update Spring 2021” PowerPoint presentation 
(see record, Exhibit C) and explained that Metro provided regional support in five areas: visitor venues, 
garbage and recycling, long range planning, affordable housing, and parks and nature. He reported that 
Metro was responsible for the Oregon Zoo and recapped recent exhibit updates. Councilor Rosenthal 
stated Metro was responsible for the operation of Portland's 5 Centers for the Arts which included the 
Arlene Schnitzer Concert Hall, Keller Auditorium, Newmark Theater, Brunish Theater, and Winningstad 
Theater. He reported that the Expo and Convention Centers had been used as sites by the Red Cross 
for staging during the 2020 wildfires, emergency shelters for fire evacuees, COVID-19 testing sites, and 
COVID-19 vaccination sites. Council President Rosener asked if there had been any further discussion 
regarding potentially redeveloping the Expo land? Metro Councilor Rosenthal replied that Metro was open 
to suggestions or ideas for redeveloping the site, and they would complete an analysis to determine if 
there was something better to use the site for. He commented that there were currently no plans to get 
rid of the land in its current state. Council President Rosener asked that if there were more discussions 
on redeveloping the land, that it be a very public process to allow for public input because the land was 
a great resource for the region. Discussion regarding the current uses for the site occurred. Council 
President Rosener ask if the five arts centers were profitable? Metro Councilor Rosenthal replied that 
they were profitable and that the centers covered their own cost of operations. Councilor Rosenthal 
recapped page 6 of the presentation and stated that Metro was responsible for arranging for the disposal 
of garbage and recycling and commented Metro was currently in the process of determining what services 
it could provide at the Cornelius and Metro South sites. He provided an overview of Metro’s long-range 
planning and explained that Metro was working on ways to limit pollution from freeways. He reported that 
they had recently completed a mapping of the emergency routes that emergency vehicles would use. 
Councilor Rosenthal recapped that Metro was working with GPI to develop a five-year economic recovery 
strategy for the region. He provided an overview of Metro’s work on affordable housing and stated that 
since the November 2018 housing bond passed, 34% of resources had been committed from the bond 
and 54% of the goals had been met. He stated that Metro had the goal to functionally end chronic 
homelessness in the greater Portland area by 2030 and explained that they were working on their local 
implementation plans for Multnomah, Clackamas, and Washington Counties. He commented that the 
local implementation plans would likely be completed by July or soon after, and would allow for the money 
to be dispersed to local affordable housing non-profits. Councilor Rosenthal addressed parks and nature 
and recapped that Metro had more than 17,000 acres of open space in the greater Portland area.  
 
Councilor Griffin asked if Metro was providing any support to the City of Portland to help bring tourism 
back to the downtown area? Metro Councilor Rosenthal replied that Metro did occasionally provide 
guidance to the City of Portland, and explained that Metro’s RID Patrol program cleaned up dumped or 
abandoned garbage sites and allowed citizens to report illegal dump sites. He explained that 56% of the 
53% of the supporting housing services would be dedicated to Multnomah County and the City of 
Portland. Metro President Lynn Peterson clarified that the two biggest priorities in assisting in the 
economic recovery of Portland were addressing the homelessness issue and garbage pickup. She 
reported that the City of Portland’s local implementation plan had completed the oversight processes and 
was now at the Metro Council level. She commented that through the measure, the City of Portland was 
predicting being able to get 1,000 people off the street per year. She explained that Metro’s RID Patrol 
was paused during the pandemic because the program used incarcerated labor, and inmates were not 
allowed to leave the Multnomah County Jail during the pandemic. She stated that Metro was also working 
with Reimagine Oregon to help improve the lives, health, and wellbeing of Black community members. 
She explained that the group had asked that Metro not use incarcerated labor and instead start paying a 
living wage job so community members could start building their resumes. She stated that Metro reviewed 

5



their RID Patrol program and had decided to move to a new model that used a workforce initiative instead 
of incarcerated labor and announced that they had increased their workforce from two teams to six teams. 
She recapped plans to help bring tourism back to the City of Portland that would allow for the rehiring of 
the 750 employees that were laid off at the Oregon Zoo, Convention Center, and Expo Center due to the 
pandemic. She recapped Metro’s efforts working with GPI to develop a five-year economic recovery 
strategy for the region. Council President Rosener asked if Metro was advocating at the State level to 
make it easier for businesses to stay in Oregon from a financial perspective? Metro President Peterson 
replied that Metro was not involved with the City of Portland regarding Portland’s taxation rates, and 
commented that Metro would not “go above their heads” and ask the legislature. Council President 
Rosener clarified that he was not necessarily referencing Portland taxes, but more the revenue 
treatments for out-of-state revenue. Metro Council President Peterson replied that Metro had been 
brought into the conversation via the income tax for high income business earners on the supportive 
housing services, and explained that Metro was working with the State to try and ensure that they were 
not disproportionately impacting in-state businesses by giving better benefits to out-of-state businesses. 
Council President Rosener asked regarding the recent tipping fee increase, and asked regarding the 
status of the regional feasibility study to determine regional needs for garbage, hazardous waste, etc. 
Metro Council President Peterson replied that she was aware that Metro had engaged in outreach both 
prior and during the pandemic, but she would need to look into the status and report back on her findings. 
She commented that she believed that engagement had been completed, but not the full study. Mayor 
Mays asked what new or renewed taxes Metro would be advocating for over the next 18 months? Metro 
Council President Peterson replied that the greenspace levy renewal was the only item up for renewal in 
the next 18 months. Mayor Mays commented that he did not believe that ten years would be long enough 
to address the homeless crisis and voiced that if there were federal action to help accelerate the program, 
he would welcome it. Metro Council President Peterson commented that a long-term lack of federal and 
state funding, global economic conditions, and the global pandemic had all contributed to the current 
homelessness crisis in Portland and the nation. Mayor Mays commented that he hoped that the state 
would start looking into ways to fix the property tax system. Discussion regarding the large amount of 
people working from home and its impacts on suburban cities occurred. Metro Council President 
Peterson commented that before Metro went out for another transportation levy, they would research 
how the pandemic and working from home had changed the employment landscape. Council President 
Rosener asked if Metro was working with the federal team in terms of earmarks? Council President 
Peterson replied that was correct and commented that some of the earmarks would go to pre-existing 
projects, such as the I-5 bridge, but the difficulty came when it came to getting to the next set of projects 
as Metro had not spent the money planning for the next set of projects nor did they have a match to 
compete nationwide, which was why a local transportation package was important. Council President 
Rosener commented that it would be helpful if Metro helped smaller cities get their key projects to the 
“grant ready” level in order to help them compete against larger cities that had larger staffs. Metro Council 
President Peterson replied that the only funding Metro had was through the JPACT (Joint Policy Advisory 
Committee on Transportation) and the MTIP (Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program) 
process, and she suggested pushing the idea of creating a pot of money for grants to get key projects to 
the “grant ready” level through the Washington County Coordinating Committee and other coordinating 
committees. Mayor Mays commented he thought the phrasing of the goal of “working on limiting pollution 
from freeways” cited on page 7 of the presentation was concerning because it implied that road projects 
would not be completed and commented that that goal would be taken care of if diesel vehicles were 
addressed and as more cars went electric. Council President Peterson commented she agreed that a lot 
of the goal would be addressed by electrification of the transportation system and commented that Metro 
needed to keep going on vehicle miles travelled. Mayor Mays stated that the primary goals of the 

6



Sherwood West relook was to address housing needs and to create a more complete community to help 
reduce the need for vehicle trips. Mayor Mays thanked Metro President Peterson and Metro Councilor 
Rosenthal for their time.  
 

5. ADJOURN: 
 
Mayor Mays adjourned the work session at 7:13 pm and convened a regular session. 

 
REGULAR SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the meeting to order at 7:19 pm. 
 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Tim Rosener, Councilors Doug Scott, Renee 

Brouse, Kim Young, Sean Garland, and Russell Griffin.  
 
3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, City Attorney Josh Soper, IT Director Brad Crawford, 

Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Police Chief Jeff Groth, Finance Director David Bodway, 
Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, Interim Assistant City Manager Kristen Switzer, HR Manager 
Christina Jones, Planning Manager Erika Palmer, Associate Planner Eric Rutledge, Legal Extern Jake 
Reimer and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR YOUNG TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. SECONDED BY COUNCILOR 
GRIFFIN. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED lN FAVOR.  

 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA: 
  

A. Approval of April 1, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes 
B. Approval of April 6, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes 
C. Resolution 2021-018 Authorizing the City Manager to execute a construction contract for the 

Hall Street pavement and storm rehabilitation project 
D. Resolution 2021-019 Forming and appointing the members of a Technical Advisory 

Committee and a Community Advisory Committee for the Sherwood West Concept Plan  
Re-look 

 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR YOUNG TO ADOPT THE CONSENT AGENDA. SECONDED BY 
COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROSENER. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR.  
 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 
 

6.  CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
No citizen comments had been submitted and Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 
 

7



7. PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. Recognition of Eagle Scout Award Recipient 

 
Mayor Mays recognized Luke Day for his achievement of attaining the rank of Eagle Scout. The City 
Recorder read aloud Mr. Day’s project description of the Archer Glen walkway completion. Mayor Mays 
invited Luke to attend a future Council meeting. Councilor Garland thanked Luke for his hard work on the 
project and commented he had utilized the new path many times.  
 
B. TVF&R State of the District 

 
TVF&R’s Deputy Chief of Operations Kenny Frentress presented the “TVF&R State of the District” 
PowerPoint presentation (see record, Exhibit D) and explained that they had set up a COVID-19 taskforce 
early on in the pandemic with a focus on developing contingency plans for their business and operations 
which included ensuring their responders had the appropriate PPE in order to continue to serve citizens. 
He thanked the businesses and citizens who had donated PPE items to TVF&R over the course of the 
pandemic. He recapped the ways in which they were able to stay connected to the community by 
partnering with local businesses to provide services to citizens. He reported TVF&R had set up a vaccine 
branch as a part of their COVID taskforce and had vaccinated over 35,000 emergency responders and 
members of the communities they served. He recapped TVF&R’s efforts during the 2020 fire season in 
Washington County, Clackamas County, southern Oregon, and California. He reported that in 2020, there 
were 1,439 calls for service in Sherwood, with 79% of the calls being for EMS services. He provided an 
overview of the types of calls Sherwood Station 33 responded to in 2020. He reported that TVF&R had 
opened a new logistics service center in December 2020, which replaced their old Aloha campus. He 
provided an overview of the construction of their new fire station near the Boone Bridge which was 
scheduled to open in June 2021 and would serve the Charbonneau and Wilsonville communities. He 
recapped TVF&R’s recruitment efforts. He provided an overview of TVF&R’s “Burn Restriction Lookup 
Tool” which allowed citizens to enter their address and see if their property was eligible to do backyard or 
agricultural burning based on the fire threat in their area. Councilor Scott asked if burn bans applied to 
fire pit usage? Chief Frentress replied that typically burn bans did not apply to backyard fire pits nor 
warming fires, BBQs, or ceremonial fires, but did sometimes apply when fire danger was at extreme 
levels. He reported that there would be a bond measure on the November 2021 ballot, which would allow 
them to update their training center, complete infrastructure, seismic, and equity improvements on their 
buildings, modernize the training facility, land acquisition, and apparatus acquisition. Mayor Mays thanked 
Chief Frentress for his work on the pop-up vaccination events. Council President Rosener asked if the 
2021 bond was a new capital bond or a renewal of an existing bond? TVF&R Chief Ulven replied that 
TVF&R was retiring some bonded debt and the new bond would replace that, and stated that the new 
bond would be cost-neutral for taxpayers. Mayor Mays asked if TVF&R had previously been paying for 
their equipment by using their general fund collection and were now shifting it to a bond? Chief Frentress 
replied that they had been purchasing their equipment using their general fund and some items were paid 
for out of their levy. He explained that their strategy moving forward would be to move capital replacement 
for equipment and apparatus over to the bond. Councilor Brouse asked if TVF&R had plans to hold a 
pop-up vaccine clinic in Sherwood? Chief Frentress replied that TVF&R had been partnering and taking 
direction from the counties and commented he did not know if the county had any plans on holding an 
event in Sherwood. He stated he would ask the vaccine branch director and report back. Councilor Griffin 
asked when TVF&R were planning to resume their community academy? Chief Ulven replied that if the 
State and CDC guidelines allowed, they would resume their community academy in September. Mayor 

8



Mays asked if there were plans to complete improvements to Station 33? Chief Frentress replied that 
Station 33 would undergo equity improvements and possibly modifying the building to accommodate a 
battalion chief. Mayor Mays commented he was disappointed that the TVF&R board of directors had not 
been supportive of Sherwood’s plans for a new Urban Renewal District. Chief Ulven replied that the board 
was generally supportive of the Urban Renewal plan, but was not in favor of the taxing on the area. 
Discussion occurred. Councilor Griffin asked what a “Good Intent” call was? Chief Frentress replied that 
a “Good Intent” call was a clearinghouse category for calls. Chief Ulven gave an example of a “Good 
Intent” call being someone calling to report smoke, but it was not actually smoke and explained that after 
the call is responded to, they categorize the call into the appropriate category. Council President Rosener 
asked if they had statistics on how often Sherwood fire trucks went into other communities to help? Chief 
Frentress replied that they do track that information. Mayor Mays thanked Chief Frentress for their 
presentation.  
 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Resolution 2021-020 Removing the Woodhaven Residential Parking Districts 

 
Police Chief Groth explained that the City had created parking districts to deal with specific parking issues. 
He reported that two residential parking districts were created in the Woodhaven neighborhood to deal 
with the overflow parking from Sherwood High School. He explained that the parking districts were no 
longer needed since the creation of the new high school. He reported that they had reached out to the 
Woodhaven HOA, who were supportive of removing the district now that the high school had moved 
locations and overflow parking was no longer an issue. Council President Rosener asked if enforcing the 
residential parking districts had taken a lot of staff time? Chief Groth replied that when the residential 
parking district was first established, enforcement did require staff time, but over time the district became 
an effective tool to alleviate overflow parking in that neighborhood. Discussion regarding the residential 
parking district near Snyder Park occurred.  

 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR YOUNG TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2021-020 REMOVING THE 
WOODHAVEN RESIDENTIAL PARKING DISTRICTS. SECONDED BY COUNCILOR GRIFFIN. 
MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item and the City Recorder read the public hearing statement 
aloud. 

 
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 
A. Ordinance 2021-002 Adding Chapter 9.66 to the Sherwood Municipal Code relating to use of 

City of Sherwood logos (Second Hearing) 
 

Legal Extern Jake Reimer explained that the proposed chapter would protect the City’s interest in its 
logos and would prevent third parties from using the City’s logos in ways that would falsely imply the City’s 
support or approval of what it was attached to. He stated that currently, Oregon and federal law both 
prohibited cities from trademarking their logos, but the addition of the new chapter to the Sherwood 
Municipal Code was the best method for preventing misleading use of the City’s logo. He explained that 

9



the proposed chapter was comprised of three sections. The first section outlined and depicted what the 
City’s logos were. The second section outlined what constituted a violation and prohibited the use of the 
City’s logo to create a false impression that the City sponsored or approved of a particular message or 
activity. The third section established what a violation of the code would result in. Mayor Mays stated that 
no public comments regarding the ordinance had been received and closed the public hearing portion of 
the hearing and asked for discussion or questions from Council. Council President Rosener asked how 
the ordinance would be enforced? Mr. Reimer replied that the code chapter would only be enforceable 
within the City’s jurisdiction, which was primarily where the City would be the most concerned about the 
logo’s misuse. City Attorney Josh Soper replied that that was correct. 
 
MOTION FROM COUNCILOR BROUSE TO READ CAPTION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE 2021-002 
ADDING CHAPTER 9.66 TO THE SHERWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO USE OF CITY OF 
SHERWOOD LOGOS. SECONDED BY COUNCILOR SCOTT. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS 
VOTED IN FAVOR.  
 
B. Ordinance 2021-003 Approving annexation of 2.19 acres to the City of Sherwood and Clean 

Water Services, comprised of 1 lot and adjacent SW Brookman Road right-of-way within the 
Brookman Addition Concept Plan Area (First Hearing) 

 
Associate Planner Eric Rutledge presented the “Olivia Beach Annexation LU 2021-003 AN” PowerPoint 
presentation (see record, Exhibit E) and explained that the applicant was seeking to annex 2.19 acres 
into the City of Sherwood and Clean Water Services boundaries. He reported that the applicant was 
requesting annexation by utilizing the procedures in SB 1573 which did not require a vote by the City 
electorate, but required certain approval criteria and required that the petition be signed by all affected 
property owners and was a Type V application. He stated that public notice of the application was provided 
in accordance with local, regional, and state requirements and included mailed notices to property owners 
within 1,000 feet of the site and stated that as of this afternoon, no written public comments had been 
received on the application. He provided an overview of the location and existing conditions of the property 
on page 4 of the presentation. He reported that the property was part of the Brookman Addition planning 
area which was brought into the Urban Growth Boundary in 2002 and stated that to date, the City had 
annexed approximately 95 of the 250-acre Brookman Addition and approved 244 single-family lots. Mr. 
Rutledge explained that the property was comprised of 2.00 acres of private property and 0.19 acres of 
right-of-way, for a total of 2.19 acres. He outlined the state, regional, and local approval criteria on page 
7 of the presentation. He explained that Chapters 3 and 8 of the City’s Comprehensive Plan applied to 
the proposal and stated that the site was subject to the City’s Comprehensive Plan and was located in 
the Central Subarea of the Brookman Addition Concept Plan. He reported that upon annexation, the site 
would be zoned Medium Density Residential High. He stated that annexation of the parcel would allow 
orderly expansion of the City boundary and extension of public services without leap frogging other 
developable property and explained that the plat for the Middlebrook Subdivision would contain the public 
improvements currently being constructed by the Middlebrook Subdivision. He reported that these 
included water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and roads stubbed to the site’s east property line. He 
reviewed the regional criteria for the site on pages 10-12 of the presentation. He reported that the property 
was included under the Washington County and Sherwood Urban Planning Area Agreement (UPAA), 
with the City providing urban services upon annexation. He stated that local police and fire departments 
had indicated service availability and the City’s sewer, water, and transportation plans had accounted for 
new development in the Brookman Addition. Mr. Rutledge summarized that the application was being 
processed under ORS 222.127 and the subject site and application met the four approval criteria, which 

10



included being covered by the City’s Comprehensive Plan and being contiguous to existing City limits. 
He explained that since the City already received services from CWS, the property would also be annexed 
into the CWS district boundaries, per ORS 199.51. Mr. Rutledge outlined the City Council alternatives as: 
adopt the ordinance with a unanimous vote during the first public hearing, hold the first public hearing at 
this meeting and issue a decision after the second reading on May 4th, or hold the first public hearing on 
Ordinance 2021-003 and direct staff to prepare a Final Order with revised findings that denied the 
annexation request. 
 
With no further comments or questions, Mayor Mays closed the public hearing portion of the meeting and 
asked for discussion or questions from Council. Mayor Mays commented that he felt the application was 
straightforward and met all the required criteria for approval. He asked Council if they wished to hold a 
second hearing on the proposed ordinance or if they wished to vote on the ordinance at this meeting as 
it had received no public testimony? Council President Rosener commented he was in favor of having a 
second reading to allow the public time to comment on the proposed ordinance. No other Council 
comments were received, and the second public hearing was scheduled for May 4th.  
 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

 
10. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 
City Manager Joe Gall provided an update on the recruitment process for a new City Manager and 
commented that the timeline for the process could move more quickly if Council wished. He reported that 
the budget for the next fiscal year would be published on May 10th and May 20th would be the first Budget 
Committee meeting.  
 
Mayor Mays expressed his support and thanks to the Sherwood Police Department and Chief Groth for 
their work in the community. 

 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 
 

11. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Councilor Scott reported on recent Planning Commission meetings where they held a public hearing on 
the Parks and Recreation Master Plan. He reported that the Planning Commission would hold a public 
hearing on the new Urban Renewal Plan and an online open house for residential design standards and 
ways to tackle the requirements of HB 2001. He stated he would be absent at the May 4th Council meeting. 
 
Councilor Brouse reported that the annual Boots and Bling Gala would be held virtually on May 12th. She 
reported on the Senior Advisory Committee and provided an overview of statistics for the Senior Center. 
She stated that she participated in several Oregon Library Association Conference sessions that focused 
on diversity, equity, and inclusion. She reported she would attend the meeting for the Metro Local 
Implementation Plan as a member of the Housing Advisory Committee. She stated she would be absent 
at the May 4th Council meeting. 
 
Councilor Young reported that she attended the Police Advisory Board meeting where they heard a 
presentation from the Washington County Mental Health Response Team and encouraged residents to 
watch the meeting to help answer any questions they may have.  

11



Councilor Griffin reported that the Parks and Recreation Master Plan would come before Council on May 
4th. He reported that the Robin Hood Festival was tentatively scheduled for July 16-18 or September 24-
25 and commented that a final decision would be made in May. He stated that knighting nominations 
would be open starting May 1st and the Robin Hood Festival Association was looking for volunteers to 
help with the event.  
 
Councilor Garland reported on his attendance at the Cultural Arts Commission meetings and their recent 
public art installation project. He commented that there was an upcoming School Board election and 
stated that the voter registration deadline was April 27th. He reported that the American Red Cross would 
be holding blood drives in the area in April and May and encouraged those able to donate blood to do so. 
He encouraged residents to get their COVID-19 vaccine and maintain social distancing and mask 
wearing.  
 
Council President Rosener reported that he provided testimony on the proposed spending of funds from 
the COVID-19 relief bill for the Joint Ways and Means Committee in Salem. He explained that he 
encouraged the State to work with local jurisdictions on ways to partner to better leverage the funds and 
commented he believed the City of Sherwood would receive $4 million in funds. He thanked the Sherwood 
Police Department for their excellent work in the community and setting the standard for police training 
and working with mental health professionals. He attended the GPI meeting to develop a five-year plan 
for economic recovery for the region. He attended a work group meeting with Washington County Kids to 
discuss how to bring preschool and after school programs to kids in Washington County. He reported he 
would attend a work session for the new URA with the Sherwood School Board. He reported that the 
Sherwood Rotary Tree sale was being held April 18-May 8th. He gave his kudos to Public Works Director 
Craig Sheldon and his team for their foundation work at the Morback House. 
 
Mayor Mays reported that Washington County was reverting to the High-Risk category for COVID-19 and 
encouraged residents to get their COVID-19 vaccine.  
 
Discussion regarding ways to receive the COVID-19 vaccine occurred.  

 
12. ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Mays adjourned the regular session at 8:42 pm and convened a work session. 

 

WORK SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the work session to order at 8:45 pm. 
 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Tim Rosener, Councilors Doug Scott, Kim 

Young, Sean Garland, Renee Brouse, and Russell Griffin. 
 

3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, City Attorney Josh Soper, IT Director Brad Crawford, Public 
Works Director Craig Sheldon, Interim Assistant City Manager Kristen Switzer, Police Chief Jeff Groth, 
Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Finance Director David Bodway, Economic Development 
Manager Bruce Coleman, and City Record Sylvia Murphy. 

 
4. TOPICS 

12



A. Outdoor Dining Program  
 
City Manager Joe Gall recapped that there was a special permit that allowed for the use of the public 
right-of-way in Old Town and indicated their locations on the map (see record, Exhibit F). He reported 
that he had extended the use of the permit until the end of May due to the pandemic and explained that 
Washington County’s COVID-19 cases had increased, and the County would revert to the High-Risk 
category. He explained that this would result in the restaurants going from 50% capacity back to 25% 
capacity. He asked Council for their input on what to do during the summer months as local businesses 
had submitted letters to Council asking for a timeline extension for the special use permit. He clarified 
that he had spoken with both the Cruisin’ Sherwood and Robin Hood Festival Association about 
extending the use of the permits through the summer, and both parties had stated that they could work 
around the ROW limitations the permit created. Mr. Gall stated that May 14th would be the decision date 
for making an extension for permit use. Mayor Mays commented that this was not a Council decision, but 
a City Manager decision and commented that he was hopeful that there would soon be new metrics from 
the state based on the “shifting realities” when it came to the number of vaccinations, case numbers, and 
hospital demand. Council President Rosener stated that the hospitalization rates and death rates for 
COVID-19 were not rising at the same rate as the positive case numbers, and commented that he had 
heard that the State was looking at revising the metrics. Mayor Mays stated that, officially, the State was 
not looking to make any changes to the metrics. Councilor Young commented that even if all of the 
restrictions were lifted on June 1, she believed that there would still be people who did not want to dine 
inside a restaurant and stated that she did not believe it was harmful to continue to allow the restaurants 
to use the special use permit through the summer. She spoke on the use of tents by restaurants and 
commented that by allowing businesses to continue to use tents through the summer months, it would 
allow businesses the opportunity to recoup some of their losses over the course of the pandemic. 
Councilor Scott stated he was generally supportive of continuing the program and was fine with tent 
usage. He put forward the idea of ending the program when a certain metric was reached (e.g. a state 
metric or when 75% indoor capacity was allowed), and the businesses would have 30 days to remove 
their tents and open the ROW back up. He explained that this would allow people and businesses to plan 
accordingly. Councilor Young commented that there was no risk level that delineated a “75% capacity” 
only a 50% capacity, and the emergency declaration would likely be lifted at the 50% mark. Councilor 
Scott explained that his idea of 75% capacity was based on if the metrics changed. Council President 
Rosener remarked that in his discussions with local businesses, predictability was a large factor in the 
business owners deciding to purchase tents, and having a set metric for when the tents had to be taken 
down would help businesses make their decisions. He stated he supported keeping the permit program 
going through the summer months. Councilor Garland stated it was important to support local business, 
but wanted to review if the program was supporting all of the businesses of Old Town in an equitable way 
and asked that the parking issues that resulted from the program in Old Town be looked into. He stated 
that a timeline was needed and he was not in favor of continuing the program in perpetuity. Councilor 
Griffin commented that the program could never be completely equitable and that it was a city 
government’s job to do what they could when they could. He commented it was disheartening that not 
every business benefitted from the program and gave his kudos to businesses for their imaginative 
thinking on how to stay open during the pandemic. He stated he supported continuing the program as 
well as deciding on a metric for determining an end date for the program. Councilor Garland asked if 
there had been any additional conversations with TriMet regarding the rerouting of the bus route? 
Community Development Director Julia Hajduk explained that TriMet was very supportive of the current 
reroute, but anticipated that they would want to have additional conversations with the City about bus 
routes when the streets opened back up. Councilor Garland asked that homeowners and businesses 

13



affected by the reroute be consulted before any further discussions with TriMet occurred regarding bus 
routes. Mayor Mays asked Councilor Garland if he thought asking businesses to reduce the number of 
tables/seating they offered would help increase the equity of the program for businesses on Railroad 
Street? Councilor Garland replied that asking businesses who had already paid for tents to reduce the 
number of tents they could use was not a viable option, but asked that all of the affected businesses on 
Railroad Street be included in the conversation. Council President Rosener commented that the outdoor 
dining program had been very popular with the community at large. Mayor Mays asked who had approved 
the tent timeline moratorium? Mr. Gall replied that TVF&R did it locally and then the State Fire Marshal 
approved the moratorium for the rest of the state and commented that staff should check in with TVF&R 
to see what their plans for lifting the tent moratorium were. Councilor Brouse commented that she 
believed that the City needed to support local businesses and agreed with Councilor Garland about trying 
to ensure equitable treatment of all businesses. Mayor Mays commented he would keep the program 
going and seek to tie the end date to specific metrics. Mr. Gall explained that he would welcome any 
input from the public between now and the decision date of May 14th. Councilor Young stated that 
businesses should get a 30-day notice. Councilor Garland asked if it was in the agreement that the tents 
were allowed due to the pandemic, and not because it was summertime? He clarified that if case counts 
went down, should the tents come down earlier than the end of summer? Council President Rosener 
commented it was about the restrictions businesses were under, not case counts. Councilor Griffin voiced 
that if case counts went back up in the fall, the program may still need to be used, and there was no way 
to know if that would be the case so the City would have to play it by ear. Councilor Scott reiterated that 
if the use of the tents was tied to an indoor dining capacity metric, then the duration of tent usage would 
be well-defined. He remarked that a discussion on whether to use this type of program again in the future 
during summer months due to its popularity with the community was a separate conversation and 
process. City Manager Gall stated he agreed with Councilor Scott. Discussion occurred. Mr. Gall stated 
he liked the 75% indoor dining capacity metric put forward by Councilor Scott and stated that the idea of 
continuing the program due to its popularity after the pandemic was a separate conversation. Councilor 
Young stated that as long as TVF&R and the State had a moratorium on tent usage, the City should not 
restrict what businesses could or could not use tents.  
 
Record Note: See information provided to the Council via email from City Manager Joe Gall regarding 
the Outdoor Dining Program permit and its impacts on the Cruisin’ Sherwood event (see record, Exhibit 
G). 

 
5. ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Mays adjourned the work session at 9:21 pm. 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
              
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder   Keith Mays, Mayor 

14



City Council Meeting Date: May 4, 2021 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Craig Sheldon, Public Works Director 
Through: Kristen Switzer, Interim Assistant City Manager and Josh Soper, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2021-021, Authorizing the City Manager to purchase a 2022 Freightliner 

M2 with Dump Body for Sherwood Broadband Utility 
 
 
Issue: 
Shall the City Council authorize the City Manager to purchase a Dump Truck for Sherwood Broadband 
Utility? 
 
Background: 
Sherwood Broadband was formed in 2004 by the City of Sherwood to operate as its telecommunication 
utility and serves mainly businesses in and around the City. Resolution 2018-065 authorized a Broadband 
Resident Pilot Program to provide residential internet service in eleven existing developments and in newly 
constructed developments throughout Sherwood.   
 
In order to continue with the expansion of the Sherwood Broadband Utility, the City needs to purchase 
additional equipment to perform this work. 
 
City staff used the State of Oregon Procurement Information Network (ORPIN) to compare vendors to 
determine the best option for the City. Using Sourcewell (a competitive bidding procurement vendor), the 
City received pricing from Freightliner for a 2022 Freightliner M2 with a dump body for $113,742. 
 
Financial Impacts: 
This vehicle is included in the FY2021-22 budget and will be paid using funds from the broadband loan.  
 
In order to receive the dump truck in the 2021 calendar year, we need to submit a purchase order in May 
to ensure delivery in late fall of 2021. If we wait to purchase in July, we will not receive the dump truck until 
spring of 2022. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council approval of Resolution 2021-021, authorizing the City Manager 
to purchase a 2022 Freightliner M2 with Dump Body for the Sherwood Broadband Utility.  
 
 
 
 

15



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2021-021 

 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PURCHASE A 2022 FREIGHTLINER M2 WITH DUMP 

BODY FOR SHERWOOD BROADBAND UTILITY 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2018-065 authorized Sherwood Broadband to implement a Broadband Residential 
Pilot Program to provide residential internet service in eleven existing developments and in newly 
constructed developments throughout Sherwood; and 
 
WHEREAS, ORS 279A.200 to 279A.255 defines and allows for cooperative procurement of goods, 
services and/or public improvements amongst the State, public agencies and qualified nonprofit agencies 
with disabilities; and  
 
WHEREAS, the equipment is necessary to expand our Sherwood Broadband Utility; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City used procurement site SourceWell to spec and price a dump truck for Sherwood 
Broadband. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The City Manager is authorized to purchase a 2022 Freightliner M2 with dump body for 

Sherwood Broadband in the amount of $113,742. 
 
Section 2. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption.  
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 4th day of May 2021. 
 
 
              
        Keith Mays, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

16



City Council Meeting Date: May 4, 2021 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Erika Palmer, Planning Manager  
Through: Kristen Switzer, Interim Assistant City Manager, Josh Soper, City Attorney and 

Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2021-022, Authorizing an amendment to the existing 3J Consulting, Inc. 

contract for the 2040 Comprehensive Plan Update   
 
 
Issue: 
Shall the City Council authorize the City Manager to sign an amendment to the existing contract with 3J 
Consulting Inc. to increase the budget by $12,000 to complete the Sherwood 2040 Comprehensive Plan 
Update?    
 
Background: 
The Comprehensive Plan update is a high priority for the City.  On February 19, 2019, the City Council 
approved Resolution 2019-014 to execute a contract with 3J Consulting to prepare a Comprehensive Plan 
update. The original contract amount was $199,966. In July 2020, Council authorized a contract 
amendment to increase the budget by $6,300 because the project's scope during the Housing element 
required additional community outreach and materials due to COVID-19. This second contract amendment 
increases the contract amount by $12,000 for a total project amount of $218,266. The original contract, 
approved by Resolution 2019-014, did not have any funds set aside as a contingency in the line-item 
budget. Due to unforeseen changes to the project schedule this past year and pivoting several times to 
ensure community engagement was robust because of the global pandemic, additional funds to complete 
this project are needed.  
 
The contract amendment provides for additional assistance from 3J Consulting over the next four months 
or until the adoption of the Plan document to coordinate product production as changes and iterations are 
made through multiple work sessions and the hearings process with both the Planning Commission and 
City Council.  
 
Financial Impacts: 
This contract amendment will increase the contract amount by $12,000 for a total contract amount of 
$218,266. The Planning Department budget has sufficient funds to cover this amendment. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council approval of Resolution 2021-022, authorizing an amendment 
to the existing 3J Consulting, Inc. contract for the 2040 Comprehensive Plan Update.  
 
 

17



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2021-022 

 
AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE EXISTING 3J CONSULTING, INC. CONTRACT FOR THE 

2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood and 3J Consulting, Inc. are parties to a contract for the 2040 
Comprehensive Plan Update dated February 19, 2019, and amended via Council Resolution 2020-041; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, due to unforeseen changes to the project schedule this past year and pivoting several times 
to ensure community engagement was robust because of the global pandemic, additional funds to 
complete this project are needed; and 
 
WHEREAS, an increase to the budget of $12,000 will allow for additional assistance from 3J Consulting 
over the next four months or until the adoption of the Plan document to coordinate product production as 
changes and iterations are made through multiple work sessions and the hearings process with both the 
Planning Commission and City Council; and  
 
WHEREAS, City Council has determined that it is necessary and appropriate to amend the City’s contract 
with 3J Consulting, Inc. to complete the Plan document. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract amendment in a form substantially 

similar to the attached Exhibit A  
 
Section 2. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption.  
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 4th day of May, 2021. 
 
 
              
        Keith Mays, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
  

18



CIVIL ENGINEERING | WATER RESOURCES | COMMUNITY PLANNING 

5075 SW GRIFFITH DRIVE, SUITE 150 

BEAVERTON, OREGON 97005 

PH: (503) 946.9365 

WWW.3J-CONSULTING.COM 

CITY OF Sherwood, OREGON 

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

CONTRACT ADDENDUM NO. 1.0 

April 23, 2021 

This addendum is made and entered into by and between the City of Sherwood (CITY) and 3J 

Consulting, Inc. (“PROVIDER”) for the Sherwood Comprehensive Plan project. 

This amendment modifies the Personal Services Contract between parties, initiated February 19, 

2019.  The original contract amount was $199,966.  The current contract amount is $206,266. 

Contract Amendment #2 increases the contract by $12,000 to a total amount of $218,266.  

This contract amendment increases the amended budget by $12,000 for the production of the 

Comprehensive Plan document and additional support for the Adoption Proceedings, as described in 

Attachment A.   

The Total Fee shall be modified to reflect this Contract Addendum: 

Original Contract Amount $ 199,966 

Contract Amendment #1 Increase $ 6,300 

Current Contract Amount $ 206,266 

Contract Amendment #2 increase $ 12,000 

Revised Contract Amount $ 218,266 

All other terms and conditions of the original contract shall remain in full force and effect. 

Effective Date of Amendment: April 15, 2021, or upon final signature, whichever is later. 

PROVIDER: CITY: 

By: By: 

Printed Name:  John Howorth  Printed Name: 

Title: President Title: 

Date:   Date: April 23, 2021

19



April 23, 2021      

 

 

 

 

P:\19518-Sherwood Comprehensive Plan\Proj. Management\Contracts\CA2\19518-CA2-Sherwood-3J-

Agreement-2021-04-23.docx 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Sherwood 2040 Comprehensive Plan 
Scope of Work and Budget Addendum – updated April 23, 2021 

 

Task 1. Project Management 

3J will participate in (4) additional bi-weekly PMT calls and (2) additional project team coordination 

meetings during document project and adoption proceedings, as needed. 

Deliverables: (4) PMT calls, agendas, follow-up notes and (2) project team coordination meetings 

and follow-up notes 

Timeline: April-June 2021 

Task 2. Comprehensive Plan Production  

3J will review and finalize the goals and policies across the six Comprehensive Plan blocks, checking 

for clarity, repetition, and overall organization. We will identify any new content for the document 

and prepare an introduction and summary of outreach. We will develop a graphic template and 

organize and package all materials for formatting into InDesign. 3J will review the preliminary draft 

and complete up to (3) rounds of revisions based on City Council and Planning Commission 

feedback. InDesign and PDF versions of the final document will be packaged for transmittal to the 

City. 

Deliverables: Review of Final Policies, Develop Introduction and Outreach Summary narrative, 

Document Production, up to (4) rounds of revisions. 

Timeline: April-July 2021 

Task 3. Adoption 

3J will present a final draft of the Comprehensive Plan at (4) worksessions and (2) hearings for the 

Planning Commission and City Council.  

Deliverables: Prepare and present at up to (4) Planning Commission/City Council worksessions and 

(2) Planning Commission/City Council hearings  

Timeline: May-July 2021 

  

20



April 23, 2021      

 

 

 

 

P:\19518-Sherwood Comprehensive Plan\Proj. Management\Contracts\CA2\19518-CA2-Sherwood-3J-

Agreement-2021-04-23.docx 

 

Page 3 of 3 

Budget 

Sherwood Comprehensive Plan Update 
CA #2 

  

TOTAL AM 
Expense 

3J 
Subtotal 

Tasks $140  

1. Project Management 8 $0 $1,120 $1,120 

PMT calls 4   $560 $560 

Project Coordination/Team Meeting 4   $560 $560 

2. Comprehensive Plan Production 49 $0 $6,860 $6,860 

Review Final Policies 10   $1,400 $1,400 

Develop Additional Content 12   $1,680 $1,680 

Graphics and Materials 9   $1,260 $1,260 

Document Revisions (4) 22   $3,080 $3,080 

3. Adoption (6) 24 $100 $3,460 $3,460 

Total Hours 85 ------- 85 ------- 

Total Fees $11,900 $100 $12,000 $12,000 

 

21



City Council Meeting Date: May 4, 2021 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: David Bodway, Finance Director 
Through: Kristen Switzer, Interim Assistant City Manager and Josh Soper, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2021-023, Adopting Modification to Loan Period 
 
 
Issue: 
Should the City of Sherwood continue with its current Financial Policy pertaining to Debt? 
 
Background: 
Currently, the City’s debt policy provides that no bonds will mature more than 20 years from the 
date of issuance.   
 
This policy can be restrictive when deciding on future debt issuances when budget restrictions 
apply. Given the City’s current capital project plans and needs, staff is recommending changing the 
current policy to provide that no bonds will mature more than 30 years from the date of issuance.  
  
Financial Impacts: 
There are no immediate financial impacts of approving this modification. However, the modification 
will give the City more flexibility when issuing debt in the future, thereby potentially decreasing 
annual debt service payments. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council approval of Resolution 2021-023, Adopting 
Modification to Loan Period. 

22



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2021-023 

 
ADOPTING MODIFICATION TO LOAN PERIOD 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood is permitted to modify its financial policies; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City’s debt policy currently states that no bonds will mature more than 20 years from the 
date of issuance; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff has proposed a modification to the debt policy which would change the language to 
state that no bonds will mature more than 30 years from the date of issuance, and Council believes that 
this change is necessary and appropriate. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Adopting Modification to Loan Period.  The City Council of the City of Sherwood, 

Oregon hereby approves changing the Loan Period policy to reflect that no bonds will 
mature more than 30 years from the date of issuance. 

 
Section 2. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 4th day of May, 2021. 
 
 
              
        Keith Mays, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

23



Council Meeting Date: May 4, 2021 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing (Second Hearing) 
 

 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Eric Rutledge, Associate Planner 
Through: Kristen Switzer, Interim Assistant City Manager, Josh Soper, City Attorney and 

Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Ordinance 2021-003, Approving Annexation of 2.19 acres to the City of Sherwood 

and Clean Water Services, Comprised of 1 Lot and Adjacent SW Brookman Road 
Right-of-Way within the Brookman Addition Concept Plan Area  

 
 
Issue:  
Shall the City Council approve the proposed annexation of 2.19 acres of territory within the Brookman 
Addition Concept Plan area? 
 
Background:  
The City of Sherwood approved the concept plan for the Brookman Addition Concept Plan area in 2009 
via Ordinance 2009-004, and it was recently updated via Ordinance 2021-001. The area remains in 
Washington County and under County jurisdiction until annexation to the City. Under current zoning and 
agreements, urban development within the area cannot occur until the territory is annexed to the City.  
 
The applicant is proposing to annex one (1) lot and the adjacent right-of-way totaling 2.19 acres into the 
City of Sherwood and Clean Water Services under the annexation method detailed in Senate Bill 1573 
(2016) and ORS Chapter 222. Under this method, 100% of the landowners have petitioned the City to be 
annexed. Upon annexation, the existing Comprehensive Plan designation of Medium Density Residential 
High (MDRH) will be applied to the property, consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan and Zone 
Map.   
 
In 2017 adjacent property to the north, east, and west of the subject territory was annexed into the City of 
Sherwood via Ord. 2017-002. The property to the immediate north and east of the site is part of the 145-
lot Middlebrook Subdivision, which is now under construction. The property to the west is within the City 
of Sherwood but does not have land use approval. See Exhibit A3 of the Staff Report for an outline of the 
current City boundary and summary of subdivision approvals to date in the Brookman Addition. 
 
Based on the information provided by the applicant and a detailed review of the applicable approval 
criteria, staff recommends approval of the annexation. 
 
Alternatives:  
If the City Council finds that the proposed annexation does not meet the criteria identified in SB 1573, it 
could not approve the Ordinance.  
 
 
 

24



Financial Impacts:  
There are upfront and staff costs associated with processing an annexation; however, the applicant is 
required to pay 100% of costs associated with the annexation, including staff time. The applicant has 
paid a deposit of $7,500 to initiate this annexation.  
 
Should the Council approve this application, the property would be in need of City services, the cost of 
which would be mostly borne by implementing development. The development of the site will require the 
extension of City services (transportation, water, sewer, etc.); however, impacts and potential mitigations 
would be addressed by future land use applications. In addition, once the property is annexed to the City 
it will be subject to the taxes, bonds, and fees assessed by the City of Sherwood. 
 
Recommendation:  
Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council adopt Ordinance 2021-003, Approving Annexation of 
2.19 acres to the City of Sherwood and Clean Water Services,  Comprised of 1 Lot and Adjacent SW 
Brookman Road Right-of-Way within the Brookman Addition Concept Plan Area. 
 
Exhibits:  
1. Staff Findings Report and Exhibits for LU 2021-003 AN Olivia Beach Annexation 
2. Department of Revenue Boundary Change Preliminary Review  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



Case File No: LU 2021-003 AN 
Olivia Beach Annexation 

City of Sherwood 
Staff Report  
April 2, 2021

Signed: 
Eric Rutledge, Associate Planner 

Proposal: The applicant is seeking approval from the City of Sherwood to annex ±2.19 
acres of land located at 17687 SW Brookman Rd. in unincorporated Washington County, 
Oregon. The property is in the Brookman Addition Concept Plan area and upon 
annexation to the City will be zoned Medium Density Residential High (MDRH). The 
annexation is proposed under ORS 222.127 (SB 1573 method) which requires petition 
from 100% of landowners. The applicant is also requesting annexation of the property 
into Clean Water Services boundary for the provision of sanitary sewer, stormwater, and 
surface water management pursuant to ORS 199.510(C). No development is proposed 
at this time. 

I. BACKGROUND

A. Applicant: Walker John, Olivia Beach LLC 
PO Box 7534 
Olympia, WA 98507 

Owner.: Tom and Marie Bartlett  
17687 SW Brookman Rd. 
Sherwood, OR 97140  

B. Location: The site is located at 17687 SW Brookman Rd., west of SW Oberst Ln.
and north of SW Brookman Rd.

C. Review Type: The annexation is proposed under ORS 222.127 (SB 1573 method).
The application is being processed as a quasi-judicial action subject to the
approval criteria of ORS 222.127(2)(a)-(d). If the City Council determines that the
annexation petition meets the criteria, the territory is to be annexed to the city by
ordinance. The applicant has also requested annexation into the boundaries of
Clean Water Services for the provision of sanitary sewer, storm and surface water
management pursuant to ORS 199.510(2)(c).

D. Public Notice and Hearing: Public notice for the application was provided in
conformance with Metro Title 3.09.030 and SZCDC § 16.72.020 for Type V

26



applications. Notice was distributed in five locations throughout the City, posted on 
the property, and mailed to property owners within 1,000 feet of the site on March 
30, 2021. Notice of the application was also published in a local newspaper (Tigard 
Times) on March 25 and April 15, 2021.    

E. Review Criteria: There are three levels of review criteria and requirements for 
annexations - Local, Regional and State. The Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS 
222.111-.183) guide the process for annexations at the state level. The applicant 
is requesting approval under the SB 1573 method and is subject to the approval 
criteria of ORS 222.127. Annexations proposed within the Metro boundary are also 
subject to the approval criteria of Metro Code 3.09. Finally, the annexation must 
comply with Chapters 3 and 8 of the City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan. All 
applicable review criteria are addressed below.

F. History: The subject territory is 2.19-acres including a single lot of 2.0-acres and 
0.19 acres of right-of-way. The territory is located north of Brookman Rd. and west 
of SW Oberst Dr. in Unincorporated Washington County. The property is part of 
Sherwood’s Brookman which includes 66 tax lots and approximately 250-acres 
adjacent to the City’s southern boundary. The Brookman Addition was brought into 
the Sherwood Urban Growth Boundary in 2002 via Metro Ordinance 02-0969B. 
The Brookman Addition Concept Plan was adopted in 2009 via Ord. 09-004 (as 
amended via Ord. 2021-001) and is the primary guiding document for residential 
and employment development within the new 250-acre community. 

In 2017 adjacent property to the north, east, and west of the subject territory was 
annexed into the City of Sherwood via Ord. 2017-002. The property to the 
immediate north and east of the subject territory is part of the 145-lot Middlebrook 
Subdivision which is now under construction (see Draft Final Plat - Exhibit A4). The 
property to the west is within the City of Sherwood but does not have land use 
approval. See Exhibit A3 for an outline of the current City boundary and summary 
of subdivision approvals to date in the Brookman Addition.  

G. Site Characteristics: The 2.19-acre territory generally slopes down from west to
east towards SW Cedar Creek. A single-family dwelling and detached workshop 
are located at the northwest corner of the private lot. The remainder of the private 
property is open grass with patches of trees near the property boundaries. The 
territory includes approximately 0.19 acres of SW Brookman Rd. right-of-way.

H. Existing and Future Zoning: The site is zoned FD-20 under Washington County.
Upon annexation the territory will be zoned Medium Density Residential High
(MDRH) in conformance with the Brookman Addition Concept Plan and the City’s
Comprehensive Plan.

27



II. AFFECTED AGENCY AND PUBLIC COMMENTS

Agencies Comments: The land use application was routed to affected agencies via 
email on March 18, 2021. Responses are summarized below. The Bonneville Power 
Administration and Oregon Department of Transportation Outdoor Advertising Sign 
Program acknowledged the proposal and did not have any comments or concerns.  

Sherwood Engineering Department – Craig Christensen, PE, provided comments 
dated March 29, 2021 (Exhibit B1). The comments describe the availability of public 
infrastructure including transportation, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water to the 
territory being considered for annexation. The comments conclude that access to the 
required public infrastructure will be made available through the Middlebrook 
Subdivision.   

City of Sherwood Police Department – Jeff Groth, Chief of Police, acknowledged 
the application and did not state any issues or concerns (Exhibit B2).  

Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue – Tom Mooney, Deputy Fire Marshal, provided 
comments via email dated March 18, 2021 (Exhibit B3). The comments state the 
territory is within the TVF&R service area and will continue to receive fire service upon 
annexation.  

Public Comments 
As of the date of this report, no public comments were received on the application. 

III. REQUIRED CRITERIA AND FINDINGS FOR ANNEXATION AND BOUNDARY
CHANGE

A. State Standards
Oregon Revised Statute 222 authorizes and guides the process for annexations of 
unincorporated territories into City boundaries. The applicant is requesting annexation 
utilizing the procedures outlined in ORS 222.127 (SB 1573 Method). Under this method, 
the application is required to comply with the approval criteria of ORS 222.127(2)(a)-(d). 
When the legislative body of the City determines that the annexation petition meets the 
criteria, the territory is to be annexed to the city by ordinance. If the City Council 
determines that the annexation petition meets the prescribed criteria, the annexation 
ordinance and required notification will be sent to the Oregon Secretary of State Oregon 
and Department of Revenue.  

Senate Bill 1573, Section 2 (ORS 222.127) 
(1) This section applies to a city whose laws require a petition proposing

annexation of territory to be submitted to the electors of the city.
(2) Notwithstanding a contrary provision of the city charter or a city ordinance,

upon receipt of a petition proposing annexation of territory submitted by

28



all owners of land in the territory, the legislative body of the city shall annex 
the territory without submitting the proposal to the electors of the city if: 
(a) The territory is included within an urban growth boundary adopted by 

the city or Metro, as defined in ORS 197.015; 
 

 The territory to be annexed includes one privately owned lot and the 
 adjacent SW Brookman Rd. right-of-way. The annexation petition was 
 signed by Thomas and Marie Bartlett representing 100% of the landowners 
 of the territory to be annexed. The property was brought into the Urban 
 Growth Boundary in 2002 via Metro Ord. 02-0969B and the Brookman 
 Addition Concept Plan was approved by City Council in 2009 (Ord. 2009-
 004).  

 
(b) The territory is, or upon annexation of the territory into the city will be, 

subject to the acknowledged comprehensive plan of the city; 
 
The entire Brookman area is comprised of 66 tax lots and approximately 
258 acres. The area was concept planned between 2007 and 2009. In June 
2009, via Ordinance 09-004, the City approved the concept plan and 
associated implementing comprehensive plan and zone map amendments.  
Thus, the Comprehensive Plan applies and zoning was established for the 
property that will take effect upon adoption of the Ordinance for the 
annexation.   Upon annexation the property will be zoned Medium Density 
Residential High.  

 
(c) At least one lot or parcel within the territory is contiguous to the city 

limits or is separated from the city limits only by a public right-of-way 
or body or water; and 
 
The territory is located contiguous to the city limits along it’s north, east, and 
west property lines. The two adjacent lots (17601 and 17769 SW Brookman 
Road) were annexed into the City of Sherwood via Ordinance 2017-002. 

 
(d) The proposal conforms to all other requirements of the city’s 

ordinances. 
 
As demonstrated in this report, the proposal conforms to the applicable 
ordinances of the City including the Brookman Addition Concept Plan and 
the City’s adopted Comprehensive Plan.  
 

(3) The territory to be annexed under this section includes any additional 
territory described in ORS 222.111 (1) that must be annexed in order to 
locate infrastructure and right-of-way access for services necessary for 
development of the territory described in subsection (2) of this section at 
a density equal to the average residential density within the annexing city. 
 

29



The total land area of the annexation is 2.19 acres which includes 
approximately 0.20 acres of the SW Brookman Rd. right-of-way. Local 
infrastructure will be provided to the territory by the extension of 
improvements from the Middlebrook Subdivision. Annexation of additional 
territory under this section is not required.  

(4) When the legislative body of the city determines that the criteria described 
in subsection (2) of this section apply to territory proposed for annexation, 
the legislative body may declare that the territory described in subsections 
(2) and (3) of this section is annexed to the city by an ordinance that 
contains a description of the territory annexed. 
 

A draft ordinance including a legal description of the territory has been 
provided and can be adopted by the City Council if it is determined the 
applicable approval criteria have been satisfied.  

 
Oregon Revised Statue Chapter 199.510 Financial effects of transfer or 
withdrawal; exceptions (Clean Water Services Boundary)  
*** 
(2)(c) When a city receives services from a district and is part of that district, any 
territory thereafter annexed to the city shall be included in the boundaries of the 
district and shall be subject to all liabilities of the district in the same manner and 
to the same extent as other territory included in the district. 
*** 
 
The City of Sherwood is within the jurisdictional boundary of Clean Water Services, which 
provides sanitary sewer and water quality services to urban Washington County. The 
subject territory is not currently within the CWS boundary but as authorized by state 
statute above, will be annexed into the CWS service area upon annexation to the City.  
 
B. Regional Standards 
In addition to the state requirements addressed above, the Oregon legislature has 
directed Metro to establish annexation criteria that must be used by all cities within the 
Metro boundary. The City of Sherwood in the Metro boundary and the annexation petition 
is required to show conformance with Metro Code 3.09 (Local Government Boundary 
Changes).   
 
3.09.050 Hearing and Decision Requirements for Decisions Other Than Expedited 
Decisions 

A. The following requirements for hearings on petitions operate in addition to 
requirements for boundary changes in ORS Chapters 198, 221 and 222 and 
the reviewing entity's charter, ordinances or resolutions. 

B. Not later than 15 days prior to the date set for a hearing the reviewing entity 
shall make available to the public a report that addresses the criteria in 
subsection (d) and includes the following information: 
1. The extent to which urban services are available to serve the affected 

30



territory, including any extra territorial extensions of service; 
 

Urban services are defined in the Metro Code as “sanitary sewers, water, fire 
protection, parks, open space, recreation and streets, roads and mass 
transit.” The annexation territory within the Brookman Addition Concept Plan 
which addresses key components of future development and urban services 
in the area including:  
 
• Future land uses 
• Parks, open space, and natural resource preservation  
• Transportation  
• Trails  
• Infrastructure (sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water)  
• Overall urban design  
 
In addition to the concept plan, residential and employment growth in the 
Brookman Addition has been incorporated into the City’s Transportation 
System Plan and Sanitary Sewer, Storm Sewer, and Water Master Plans. 
The required urban services will be realized through a combination of 
developer requirements and City or County led capital improvements. Details 
on each urban service as it relates to the subject territory is provided below.  
 
Water - Per City Engineering Department, “currently the subject property has 
no access to public water.  The nearest existing public water line is currently 
over 1,000 feet away.  As part of the under construction Middlebrook 
Subdivision, the public water system will be brought to the subdivision and will 
be installed in the proposed streets for said subdivision.  This future public 
water system will be stubbed to the east property line of the subject property. 
Although the subject property currently has no access to public water, the 
subject property will have access to public water via the future public water 
system under construction for the Middlebrook Subdivision.”  
 
Sewer - Per the City Engineering Department, “currently the subject property 
has no access to public sanitary sewer.  The existing public sanitary sewer 
trunk line ends at the southern border of the old city limits.  As part of the 
under construction Middlebrook Subdivision, the sanitary sewer trunk line will 
be extended and public sanitary sewer will be installed in the proposed 
streets for said subdivision.  This future public sanitary sewer system will be 
stubbed to the east property line of the subject property. Although the subject 
property currently has no access to public sanitary sewer, the subject 
property will have access to public sanitary sewer via the future public 
sanitary sewer system under construction for the Middlebrook Subdivision.” 
 
Storm Drainage - Per City Engineering Department, “currently the subject 
property has no access to public storm sewer.  The nearest location of storm 

31



discharge is a street side ditch along the north side of SW Brookman Road 
which eventually flows to Cedar Creek approximately 700 feet away.  As part 
of the under construction Middlebrook Subdivision, a public storm sewer will 
be installed in SW Brookman Road along the full length of the Middlebrook 
Subdivision street frontage.  This future public storm sewer system will be 
stubbed in SW Brookman Road in line with the east property line of the 
subject property. Although the subject property currently has no access to 
public storm sewer, the subject property will have access to public storm 
sewer via the future public storm sewer system under construction for the 
Middlebrook Subdivision.”  
 
Transportation - Per City Engineering Department, “the subject property is 
located along the north side of SW Brookman Road (arterial) with frontage on 
said street.  SW Brookman Road is a Washington County Roadway. Also the 
Middlebrook Subdivision is currently constructing a future public street which 
will stub to the east property of the subject property. 
 
Although the subject property has frontage onto SW Brookman Road it is 
unlikely that access to SW Brookman Road will be allowed due to spacing 
requirements with the new intersection to SW Brookman Road under 
construction within the Middlebrook Subdivision. Also lots will likely not be 
allowed to have driveways off of SW Brookman Road since it is an arterial 
street.  The subject property will have access to a future public street for 
access to potential development. 
 
Therefore the subject property has access to the public street system through 
the future public street system under construction for the Middlebrook 
Subdivision.”  
 
Parks and Recreation – The Brookman Addition Concept Plan identifies 
future park and open space facilities within the planning area. The subject 
territory is located in the Central Sub-Area which calls for a centrally located 
community park. The Middlebrook Subdivision will be constructing a centrally 
located 1.86-acre park in close proximity to the subject territory. Future 
development of the territory will be required to comply with applicable park 
and open space requirements in the City’s Comprehensive Plan and 
development code. 
 
Fire - The territory is within the boundary of the Tualatin Valley Fire and 
Rescue District and comments on the application were provided by Tom 
Mooney, Deputy Fire Marshal. The comments state the territory is within the 
TVF&R service area and will continue to receive service upon annexation. 
 
Police – The subject territory is currently in Unincorporated Washington 
County and served by the Washington County Sheriff’s Office. Upon 
annexation police services will be provided by the Sherwood Police 

32



Department. Police Chief Groth acknowledged the proposed annexation and 
did not state any comments or concerns.  
 
The subject territory is not within the Metropolitan Service District and is 
required to annex into the district prior to site development.  
 
Condition of Approval: Prior to site development the subject territory shall 
be annexed to the Metropolitan Service District (Metro) boundary.  
 

 
2. Whether the proposed boundary change will result in the withdrawal of 

the affected territory from the legal boundary of any necessary party; and 
 
The territory will not be removed from the service boundary of any necessary 
party, defined by Metro Code as “any county; city; district whose jurisdictional 
boundary or adopted urban service area includes any part of the affected 
territory or who provides any urban service to any portion of the affected 
territory; Metro; or any other unit of local government, as defined in ORS 
190.003, that is a party to any agreement for provision of an urban service to 
the affected territory”.  
 

3. The proposed effective date of the boundary change. 
 
The effective date of the boundary change will occur after City Council adoption 
of the ordinance and filing of the annexation with the Secretary of State, 
Department of Revenue, and other affected agencies.  
 

C. The person or entity proposing the boundary change has the burden to 
demonstrate that the proposed boundary change meets the applicable 
criteria. 
 
The applicant has provided all of the required information to process the boundary 
change, including a certified petition and legal descriptions. The applicant’s 
narrative (Exhibit C) provides a discussion of how the proposal meets the 
applicable criteria. City Council is the local decision authority on the petition and 
will determine whether the approval criteria have been satisfied.   

 
D. To approve a boundary change, the reviewing entity shall apply the criteria 

and consider the factors set forth in Subsections (D) and (E) of Section 
3.09.045. 
 
These criteria are evaluated immediately below. 

 
 
 
 

33



Metro Criteria § 3.09.045 (D) 
 

1. Find that the change is consistent with expressly applicable provisions in: 
a. Any applicable urban service agreement adopted pursuant to ORS 

195.065; 
 
 Comprehensive planning within the Metro UGB is coordinated between 

counties and cities through Urban Planning Area Agreements (UPAAs). The 
subject property is included under the Washington County / Sherwood UPAA 
which is included as Exhibit B5. Under the UPAA, the City is responsible for 
comprehensive planning and public facilities planning for areas outside City 
limits but inside the UGB. The City is responsible for providing water, sanitary 
sewer, storm sewer and transportation facilities within the UPAA, except when 
a facility is provided by another jurisdiction through an intergovernmental 
agreement. After annexation the territory will be served by the City, County, 
and other service providers consistent with the Brookman Addition Concept 
Plan and UPAA.  

 
b. Any applicable annexation plan adopted pursuant to ORS 195.205 

 
If an annexation plan is adopted pursuant to ORS 195.205, the proposal is 
subject to a vote by the electorate. The proposed annexation is being 
processed through the procedures provided by Senate Bill 1573 and a vote by 
the electorate is not required.  
 

c. Any applicable cooperative planning agreement adopted pursuant to 
ORS 195.020(2) between the affected entity and a necessary party 

 
ORS 195.020(2) requires counties to enter into cooperative agreements with 
each special district that provides an urban service within the boundaries of the 
county or metropolitan district. Since the City receives sewer treatment and 
water quality services from CWS, the property will be served by CWS upon 
annexation and the existing cooperate agreement between the jurisdictions will 
not be impacted. TVF&R will continue to serve the territory after annexation.  

 
d. Any applicable public facility plan adopted pursuant to a Statewide 

planning goal on public facilities and services; and 
 
The Brookman Addition has been incorporated into the City’s Transportation 
System Plan and Sanitary Sewer, Storm Sewer, and Water Master Plans. 
The required urban services will be realized through a combination of 
developer requirements and City or County led capital improvements.  
 
 
 

34



e. Any applicable comprehensive plan; and 
 
As described above the site is within the Washington County / Sherwood UPAA 
and is subject to the City’s local Comprehensive Plan. Compliance with the 
Comprehensive Plan is discussed in the “Local Standards” section of the report 
below.  
 

f. Any applicable concept plan. 
 
The site is within the Central Sub-Area of the Brookman Addition Concept Plan. 
Which has been adopted as part of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. Upon 
annexation the property will be zoned Medium Density Residential High in 
conformance with the City’s Zoning and Comprehensive Plan map. Additional 
findings related to the concept plan are provided in the “Local Standards” 
section below. 
 

2. Consider whether the boundary change would: 
a. Promote the timely, orderly and economic provision of public facilities 

and services; 
 

As shown in Exhibit B3, the subject territory is surrounded by City limits to the 
north, east, and west. Completion of the Middlebrook Subdivision will bring 
public facilities including street, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water to the 
territory’s eastern boundary. These facilities will be extended through the 
subject territory with site development. As described in this report, police and 
fire services are also available to serve the annexation area.  
 

b. Affect the quality and quantity of urban services; and 
 
The Metro code defines urban services as sanitary sewer, water, fire protection, 
parks, open space, recreation, and streets, roads, and mass transit. A high 
level analysis of many of the required urban services is included in the 
Brookman Addition Concept Plan and have been incorporated into the City’s 
master plans (e.g. transportation, water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer). All new 
development is required to pay one-time SDCs and ongoing property taxes and 
utility fees. Future development will also be required to comply with the City’s 
Engineering Design standards to ensure safe and functional infrastructure. The 
annexation is not anticipated to negatively impact the quality and quantity of 
urban services.   

 
c. Eliminate or avoid unnecessary duplication of facilities or services. 

 
The annexed territory will be served by public facilities and services in 
accordance with the UPAA and City of Sherwood master plans. No 
duplication of services will be created as a result of the annexation.  

 

35



Metro Criteria § 3.09.045 (E) 
A city may not annex territory that lies outside the UGB, except that it may 
annex a lot or parcel that lies partially within and partially outside the UGB. 

 
The proposed annexation territory lies entirely within the UGB. 

 
C. Local Standards 
Under the Washington County / Sherwood UPAA the City is responsible for 
comprehensive planning for land within the “Urban Planning Area”. The subject territory 
is within the Urban Planning Area and is covered by the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  
Chapter 8 of the City’s Comprehensive Plan addresses Urban Growth Boundary 
Additions and includes policy and implementation direction for the Brookman Addition. 
Chapter 3 of the City’s Comprehensive Plan addresses Growth Management and is also 
applicable to the site and proposed annexation. As discussed below, the proposal is 
consistent with Chapters 3 and 8 of the Comprehensive Plan. Future development will be 
reviewed for compliance with the Sherwood Zoning & Community Development code at 
the time of development.  
 
City of Sherwood Comprehensive  

Chapter 3 Growth Management  
Section B.1 Policy Goal 
To adopt and implement a growth management policy which will 
accommodate growth consistent with growth limits, desired 
population densities, land carrying capacity, environmental quality 
and livability.  

   Section B.2 Policy Objectives  
a. Focus growth into areas contiguous to existing development 
rather than "leap frogging” over developable property. 
 
The subject territory is contiguous to City boundaries to the north, 
east, and west. The Middlebrook Subdivision (SUB 18-02) has 
been approved by the City and upon completion will bring 
infrastructure to the eastern edge of the subject territory. The 
annexation will provide for an orderly expansion of the City 
boundary and extension of public services. “Leap frogging” of 
developable property is not proposed.  

 
b. Encourage development within the present city limits, 
especially on large passed-over parcels that are available. 
 
The application proposes to annex 2.19 acres of territory to the City 
for eventual residential development and required public 
infrastructure. The annexation is consistent with other applicable 
sections of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and is within a planned 
and needed residential growth area.  

 

36



c. Encourage annexation inside the UGB where services are 
available. 

 
The area to be annexed is in the UGB and services are available to 
be extended into the area, as described in the agency comments and 
throughout this report.  

  
d. When designating urban growth areas, consider lands with 
poorer agricultural soils before prime agricultural lands. 

   
The territory to be annexed was brought into the City’s Urban Growth 
Boundary in 2002. Prior to expanding the UGB, extensive analysis 
on the suitability of site soils in comparison to other soils in the region 
was performed.  

 
e. Achieve the maximum preservation of natural features. 

 
No natural features or constrained areas are shown in vicinity of the 
territory in the Brookman Addition Concept Plan. The applicant will 
be required to show compliance with all applicable natural resource 
regulations including wetland, floodplain, and habitat areas through 
a future land use application.  

 
f. Provide proper access and traffic circulation to all new 
development. 

 
The City’s Transportation System Plan and Brookman Addition 

Concept Plan address requirements for SW Brookman Rd. and the 
new local street system that will be constructed within the Brookman 
area. A new local residential street will be stubbed to the eastern 
boundary of the subject territory as part of the Middlebrook 
Subdivision. The residential street stub will provide a public, local 
roadway connection that can serve future development. Per the 
City’s Engineering comments, a future access point along SW 
Brookman Rd. is unlikely due to within the subject territory due to 
County intersection spacing requirements. A new intersection with 
SW Brookman Rd. is being constructed east of the subject territory 
as part of the Middlebrook Subdivision. Final access and vehicular 
circulation patterns will be determined at the time of site development 
and will be required to comply with the City’s Transportation System 
Plan, development code and engineering design standards.  

g. Establish policies for the orderly extension of community 
services and public facilities to areas where new growth is to be 

37



encouraged, consistent with the ability of the community to 
provide necessary services. New public facilities should be 
available in conjunction with urbanization in order to meet 
future needs. The City, Washington County, and special service 
districts should cooperate in the development of a capital 
improvements program in areas of mutual concern. Lands 
within the urban growth boundary shall be available for urban 
development concurrent with the provision of the key urban 
facilities and services. 

 
The extension of community services and public facilities are 
addressed in the Brookman Addition Concept Plan and City / County 
master plans. The policy requirement above has been met through 
the City’s long-range and capital improvement planning efforts. 
Annexation and eventual development of the site will implement 
these plans and policies.  

 
h. Provide for phased and orderly transition from rural to 
suburban or urban uses. 

 
The territory is covered by the Brookman Addition Concept Plan and 
the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The concept plan provides for future 
land uses which have taken into consideration factors including 
transportation, natural resources, existing development patterns. An 
orderly transition from rural to suburban will be realized through 
implementation of the concept plan. Upon annexation the property 
will be zoned Medium Density Residential High in conformance with 
the City’s Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Map.   

 
City of Sherwood Comprehensive  

Chapter 3 Growth Management  
Section F Growth Management Policy  
The following policies and strategies are established for the 
management of urban growth in the Planning Area. 

   Growth Areas 
Policy 5 - Changes in the City limits may be proposed by 
the City, County, special districts or individuals in 
conformance with City policies and procedures for the 
review of annexation requests and County procedures for 
amendment of its comprehensive plan. 

 
The proposed annexation has been initiated by an individual, 
the property owners, in conformance with applicable City 
policies and procedures.   

 
Policy 6 - The City will coordinate with Washington 

38



County policies and procedures governing the 
conversion of urbanizable land to urban land. Such 
policies shall be included in the Washington County-
Sherwood Urban Planning Area Agreement (UPAA)….  

 
The territory is within the Sherwood Urban Growth Boundary 
and is identified as an “Urban Planning Area” in the 
Washington County / Sherwood UPAA. As described in this 
report, the City is responsible for comprehensive planning and 
the provision of public services in the area. The application 
has been transmitted to the County for review, in accordance 
with the Washington County / Sherwood UPAA.  

 
Policy 7 - All new development must have access to 
adequate urban public sewer and water service. 

 
Once annexed, the area will be in the City and Clean Water 
Services district boundaries and will have access to urban 
public sewer and water. The required extensions of these 
public facilities will occur after annexation but prior to or with 
site development. The City’s water and sewer master plans 
have accounted for the demands that will be created by the 
Brookman area including the subject territory. Adequate 
service is available or can be achieved through 
implementation of the plans.  

 
City of Sherwood Comprehensive  

Chapter 8 Urban Growth Boundary Additions   
Section D.2 Brookman Road Concept Plan  

   Goal 8 - Implementation  
   The concept plan shall consider the feasibility of    
   implementation, including financing, construction, and   
   phasing.  
   Financing strategies for implementation  
   8.1 Consider the implementation of one or a combination of  
   multiple alternative funding strategies to decrease the gap  
   between costs and current revenues. Strategies to be   
   considered include (but are not limited to):  
    a. Local Improvement District (LID)  
    b. County Service District  
    c. Expanded developer requirements  
    d. Expanded System Development Charges  
    e. Transportation Utility Fees  
    f. Bonds  
    g. Urban Renewal District  
 

39



   A funding plan for the Brookman area was created and approved by 
   the City in 2011 (Resolution 2011-072)  (Exhibit B4). The funding  
   plan demonstrates that the anticipated costs of providing service to  
   the area are reasonably likely to be funded through existing local,  
   county and regional funding sources, in addition to one-time   
   System Development Charges paid by developers.  
 
   8.2 To facilitate and ensure implementation in accordance with 
   the concept plan policies, annexation of properties within the  
   Brookman Addition concept plan area may not occur until  
   development code amendments are  made to implement   
   applicable policies, including but not limited to policy 4.4 a.  
   Prior to or concurrent with annexation, and  assignment of  
   zoning of properties within the Brookman addition area,   
   a plan shall be prepared and adopted by Council to ensure that 
   necessary infrastructure improvements will be available and a  
   funding mechanism or combination of funding mechanisms are 
   in place for  the necessary infrastructure improvements   
   consistent with the funding options identified in the concept  
   plan and in full compliance with the Transportation Planning  
   Rule. The plan for annexation may address all or part of the  
   concept plan area, subject to Council approval.  
 
   Policy 4.4 requires an applicant to “Identify a local connection to  
   Redfern Drive as an ‘area of special concern.’ Redfern Drive is  
   located in the East Sub-Area of the Brookman Addition Concept Plan 
   while the proposed annexation will occur in the Central Sub-Area.  
   Policy 4.4.a is not applicable to the subject territory.  
 
   As described above, a funding plan for the Brookman area was  
   created and approved by the City in 2011 (Resolution 2011-072)  
   (Exhibit B4). The funding plan demonstrates that the anticipated  
   costs of providing service to the area are reasonably likely to be  
   funded through existing local, county and regional funding sources,  
   in addition to one-time System Development Charges paid by  
   developers. 
 
   8.3 The portion of the concept plan area west of Old Pacific  
   Highway and east of Highway 99W shall be subject to Master  
   Plan or PUD approval. Development of this area shall be   
   approved by the City Council following a public hearing, shall  
   generally be consistent with the Concept Plan and shall provide 
   no net change in the amount of land area designated to a  
   specific zone; however the exact location may change   
   depending on the development proposed through the master  
   plan or PUD 

40



 
   The annexation territory is located in the Central Sub-Area of the  
   Brookman Addition which is defined as between the rail tracks to the 
   west and Cedar Creek to the east. No action is proposed in the area 
   described in the criterion above.   
    
 
IV. RECOMMENDATION 
 
This staff report provides a review and analysis of the applicable criteria for annexation. 
It is staff’s recommendation, based on the criteria in Senate Bill 1573, ORS 199.510(2)(c), 
Metro Code 3.09 and the City’s policies in the Comprehensive Plan and Brookman 
Addition Concept Plan, that the annexation petition (LU 2021-003 AN Olivia Beach), be 
approved by the City Council.  
 
V. Condition of Approval  
 
 1.  Prior to site development the subject territory shall be annexed to the  
  Metropolitan Service District (Metro) boundary.  
 
 
VI. EXHIBITS 
 

A. Maps and Visuals  
1. Map of Proposed Annexation Territory    
2. Legal Description of Annexation Territory  
3. Brookman Addition Subdivision Approval Map  
4. Middlebrook Draft Final Plat  
5. Zoning and Comprehensive Map – Snip of Subject Territory  

B. Agency Comments and Supplemental Information  
1. Sherwood Engineering Department Comment Letter  
2. Sherwood Police Department Comments  
3. Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue Comments  
4. Res. 2011-072 Brookman Funding Plan  
5. Washington County / Sherwood Urban Planning Area Agreement  

C. Applicant Submittal  
 

41



PEARL

HARRISON

BROOKMAN

COBBLE

GO
LD

EN

PO
ND

GALEWOOD
SA

ND
ERS

GREENGAT
E

OB
ER

ST

INKSTER
DODSON

SWORDFERN

MAIDENFERN
PINEHURST

Tax
Lot

3S106B000101

Date: 3/31/2021

± 0 0.10.05
Miles

Map data provided by METRO and the City of Sherwood. The
City of Sherwood's infrastructure records,drawings, and other
documents have been gathered over many years, using many
different formats and standards. While the data provided is
generally believed to be accurate, occasionally it proves to be

Legend
Proposed Annexation Territory (2.19 AC)
Tax Lots
City Boundary
Urban Growth Boundary

LU 2021-003 Olivia Beach Annexation

42

rutledgee
Typewritten Text
City of Sherwood



43



44



BAYWOOD

SWORDFERN

CROOKED
RIVER

PEARL

FO
X

RU
N

HARRISON

PL
AT

AN
US

MER

ASPEN
LAKES VO

SS

LO
DG

EP
OL

E

PIN
EH

UR
ST

WILLOW
MIDDLE

TO
N

LABROUSSE

REDTWIG

BROOKMAN

MAIDENFERN

EUCALYPTUS

SH
AD

YG
RO

VE

SA
ND

ER
S

ELDER
VIEW

COBBLE

GOLD
EN

PO
ND

GALEWOOD

OB
ER

ST

PIN
EC

ON
E

RE
DF

ER
N

GREENGAT
E

INKSTER
DODSON

±0 0.250.125
Miles

Proposed Olivia Beach Annexation (2.19 AC)
Tax Lots
City Boundary
Urban Growth Boundary

Brookman Addition Subdivision Approvals

Middlebrook Subdivision
Preliminary Plat Approved
SUB 18-02
145 Lots

Riverside at Cedar Creek
Preliminary Plat Approved
LU 2020-005 SUB
28 Lots

Reserve at Cedar Creek
Preliminary Plat Approved
SUB 19-02
59 lots

Date: 3/31/2021
Map data provided by METRO and the City of Sherwood. The City of
Sherwood's infrastructure records,drawings, and other documents have
been gathered over many years, using many different formats and
standards. While the data provided is generally believed to be accurate,
occasionally it proves to be incorrect; thus its accuracy is not45



46



47

rutledgee
Rectangle

rutledgee
Callout
Subject Territory

rutledgee
Typewritten Text
MDRL

rutledgee
Typewritten Text
MDRH



Engineering Department 
Annexation Review Comments

Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge

To: Eric Rutledge, Associate Planner 
From: Craig Christensen, P.E., Engineering Department 
Project: Olivia Beach Annexation (LU 2021-003) 
Date: March 1, 2021 

Engineering staff has reviewed the information provided for the above cited project.  Review of 
the proposed annexation materials is based on data of existing City infrastructure and the 
proposed improvement necessary to provide services to the area covered by the annexation 
request. 
The criteria for provided information is an explanation of the existing nearest public utility 
systems, a description of the proposed public utility system needed to provide service to the 
annexation area, a description of the ability of the proposed public utility systems to provide 
service to upstream development areas, and an associated cost estimate of the proposed public 
utility system in terms of construction and maintenance to the City. 
Transportation Comments 
The subject property is located along the north side of SW Brookman Road (arterial) with 
frontage on said street.  SW Brookman Road is a Washington County Roadway. Also the 
Middlebrook Subdivision is currently constructing a future public street which will stub to the 
east property of the subject property. 
Conclusion:  Although the subject property has frontage onto SW Brookman Road it is unlikely 
that access to SW Brookman Road will be allowed due to spacing requirements with the new 
intersection to SW Brookman Road under construction within the Middlebrook Subdivision.  Also 
lots will likely not be allowed to have driveways off of SW Brookman Road since it is an arterial 
street.  The subject property will have access to a future public street for access to potential 
development. 

Therefore the subject property has access to the public street system through the future public 
street system under construction for the Middlebrook Subdivision. 

Sanitary Sewer System Comments 
Currently the subject property has no access to public sanitary sewer.  The existing public 
sanitary sewer trunk line ends at the southern border of the old city limits.  As part of the under 
construction Middlebrook Subdivision, the sanitary sewer trunk line will be extended and public 
sanitary sewer will be installed in the proposed streets for said subdivision.  This future public 
sanitary sewer system will be stubbed to the east property line of the subject property. 
Conclusion:  Although the subject property currently has no access to public sanitary sewer, 
the subject property will have access to public sanitary sewer via the future public sanitary 
sewer system under construction for the Middlebrook Subdivision. 

48



Water System Comments 
Currently the subject property has no access to public water.  The nearest existing public water 
line is currently over 1000 feet away.  As part of the under construction Middlebrook 
Subdivision, the public water system will be brought to the subdivision and will be installed in the 
proposed streets for said subdivision.  This future public water system will be stubbed to the 
east property line of the subject property. 
Conclusion:  Although the subject property currently has no access to public water, the subject 
property will have access to public water via the future public water system under construction 
for the Middlebrook Subdivision. 
Stormwater System Comments 
Currently the subject property has no access to public storm sewer.  The nearest location of 
storm discharge is a street side ditch along the north side of SW Brookman Road which 
eventually flows to Cedar Creek approximately 700 feet away.  As part of the under construction 
Middlebrook Subdivision, a public storm sewer will be installed in SW Brookman Road along the 
full length of the Middlebrook Subdivision street frontage.  This future public storm sewer system 
will be stubbed in SW Brookman Road in line with the east property line of the subject property. 
Conclusion:  Although the subject property currently has no access to public storm sewer, the 
subject property will have access to public storm sewer via the future public storm sewer system 
under construction for the Middlebrook Subdivision. 
End of Comments 
Disclaimer 
The comments provided above are initial in nature and are in no way binding as to what the 
conditions may or may not be imposed on the development due to the City of Sherwood Land 
Use approval process.  Engineering have applied standard efforts to provide applicant with 
accurate public infrastructure information and engineering development standards related to the 
level and completeness of the applicants submittal.  Note that in lacking certain applicant 
development information engineering has made best reasonable assumptions in development 
of the comments.  However, the comments provided may not be complete and may not 
accurately reflect the site developments end product. 
 

49



From: Jeff Groth
To: Eric Rutledge
Subject: RE: LU 2021-003 Olivia Beach Annexation
Date: Thursday, March 18, 2021 11:30:28 AM
Attachments: image002.jpg

No concerns-JG

Chief Jeff Groth
Sherwood PD
(503) 625-5523
grothj@sherwoodoregon.gov

From: Eric Rutledge <RutledgeE@SherwoodOregon.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, March 18, 2021 9:20 AM
To: Eric Rutledge <RutledgeE@SherwoodOregon.gov>
Cc: Eric Rutledge <RutledgeE@SherwoodOregon.gov>
Subject: LU 2021-003 Olivia Beach Annexation

Hi Agency Partners:

The City of Sherwood Sherwood Planning Department is requesting agency comments on the
following land use application:

Proposal: The applicant is seeking approval from the City of Sherwood to annex ±2.19 acres of
land located at 17687 SW Brookman Rd. in unincorporated Washington County, Oregon. The
property is in the Brookman Addition Concept Plan area and upon annexation to the City will
be zoned Medium Density Residential High (MDRH). The annexation is proposed under ORS
222.127 (SB 1573 method) which requires petition from 100% of landowners. The applicant is
also requesting annexation of the property into Clean Water Services boundary for the
provision of sanitary sewer, stormwater, and surface water management pursuant to ORS
199.510(C). No development is proposed at this time.

Location: 17687 SW Brookman Rd., Sherwood OR 97140   

Comment Deadline: Thursday April 1, 2021 for consideration in the staff report

Hearing Date: Virtual Hearing before the Sherwood City Council on April 20, 2021 and May 4,
2021. Agencies impacted by the proposal are welcome to attend online, however, all
testimony must be submitted in writing prior to the hearing. All hearings can be viewed at
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood

Applicable code criteria: The Oregon Revised Statutes [ORS 222 and ORS 199.510(c)] guide
the process for annexations and Senate Bill 1573 provide specific criteria for deciding city
boundary changes. Metro, the regional government for this area, also has legislative authority
to provide criteria for reviewing annexations (Metro Code 3.09). In addition, consistency with
the Statewide Planning Goals and City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan Growth

50

mailto:GrothJ@SherwoodOregon.gov
mailto:RutledgeE@SherwoodOregon.gov
http://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood

o

of
Shéfwood
Oregon






Management policies for urbanization are analyzed against the request.
 

Application materials: https://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/project/olivia-beach-
annexation

 
 
Eric Rutledge
City of Sherwood
Associate Planner
rutledgee@sherwoodoregon.gov
Desk 503.625.4242
Cell 971.979.2315
 
 

 
 
Covid-19 Update: The City's Planning Department is fully operational, however, with limited face
to face contact.  We are holding virtual meetings and processing permits electronically as much
as possible. Please contact staff to discuss application and plan submittal options. 
 
 

51

https://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/project/olivia-beach-annexation
https://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/project/olivia-beach-annexation
mailto:rutledgee@sherwoodoregon.gov


From: Mooney, Thomas A.
To: Eric Rutledge
Subject: Re: LU 2021-003 Olivia Beach Annexation
Date: Thursday, March 18, 2021 9:58:23 AM
Attachments: image003.jpg

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
are expecting this email and/or know the content is safe.

Hi Eric,

This property is located within Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescues service area and we will be able
to provide services to the property.

Thank you,

Tom Mooney, MIAAI-CFI
Deputy Fire Marshal | Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue
Direct: 503-259-1419
www.tvfr.com

From: Eric Rutledge <RutledgeE@SherwoodOregon.gov>
Sent: Thursday, March 18, 2021 9:19 AM
To: Eric Rutledge <RutledgeE@SherwoodOregon.gov>
Cc: Eric Rutledge <RutledgeE@SherwoodOregon.gov>
Subject: LU 2021-003 Olivia Beach Annexation

***The sender is from outside TVF&R – Do not click on links or attachments unless you are sure they
are safe***

Hi Agency Partners:

The City of Sherwood Sherwood Planning Department is requesting agency comments on the
following land use application:

Proposal: The applicant is seeking approval from the City of Sherwood to annex ±2.19 acres of

Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue | Official Website
A virtual paramedic informational meeting is set for Monday, March 15, at 6 p.m. A sign-up
sheet is posted on the new "Steps to Prepare" page.

www.tvfr.com

52

mailto:Thomas.Mooney@tvfr.com
mailto:RutledgeE@SherwoodOregon.gov
http://www.tvfr.com/
http://www.tvfr.com/

o

City of
Sherwood
Oregon

Home of the Talatin River National Wildlife Refise





land located at 17687 SW Brookman Rd. in unincorporated Washington County, Oregon. The
property is in the Brookman Addition Concept Plan area and upon annexation to the City will
be zoned Medium Density Residential High (MDRH). The annexation is proposed under ORS
222.127 (SB 1573 method) which requires petition from 100% of landowners. The applicant is
also requesting annexation of the property into Clean Water Services boundary for the
provision of sanitary sewer, stormwater, and surface water management pursuant to ORS
199.510(C). No development is proposed at this time.

 
Location: 17687 SW Brookman Rd., Sherwood OR 97140   

 
Comment Deadline: Thursday April 1, 2021 for consideration in the staff report

 
Hearing Date: Virtual Hearing before the Sherwood City Council on April 20, 2021 and May 4,
2021. Agencies impacted by the proposal are welcome to attend online, however, all
testimony must be submitted in writing prior to the hearing. All hearings can be viewed at
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood

 
Applicable code criteria: The Oregon Revised Statutes [ORS 222 and ORS 199.510(c)] guide
the process for annexations and Senate Bill 1573 provide specific criteria for deciding city
boundary changes. Metro, the regional government for this area, also has legislative authority
to provide criteria for reviewing annexations (Metro Code 3.09). In addition, consistency with
the Statewide Planning Goals and City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan Growth
Management policies for urbanization are analyzed against the request.

 
Application materials: https://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/project/olivia-beach-
annexation

 
 
Eric Rutledge
City of Sherwood
Associate Planner
rutledgee@sherwoodoregon.gov
Desk 503.625.4242
Cell 971.979.2315
 
 

 
 
Covid-19 Update: The City's Planning Department is fully operational, however, with limited face
to face contact.  We are holding virtual meetings and processing permits electronically as much

53

http://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood
https://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/project/olivia-beach-annexation
https://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/project/olivia-beach-annexation
mailto:rutledgee@sherwoodoregon.gov


as possible. Please contact staff to discuss application and plan submittal options. 
 
 

This email may contain confidential information or privileged material and is intended for use
solely by the above referenced recipient. Any review, copying, printing, disclosure, distribution,
or other use by any other person or entity is strictly prohibited and may be illegal. If you are not
the named recipient, or believe you have received this email in error, please immediately notify
the City of Sherwood at (503) 625-5522 and delete the copy you received.

54



of d
Hotne oJ tlrc'Iiulatin Nw N¿t¡o4l Wildllfe Lzjgc

RESOLUTTON 2011-072

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BROOKMAN FUNDING PLAN FOR THE
BROOKMAN CONCEPT PLAN AREA

WHEREAS, the Brookman area was brought into the Urban Growth Boundary in
2002 by Metro via Ord. 02-09698; and

WHEREAS, the City of Shen¡uood developed a concept plan for the area and
adopted the Brookman Area Concept Plan and implementing Ordinances in 2009 via
Ord. 09-004; and

WHEREAS, lmplementation Policy 8.2.a requires that "prior to or concurrent with
annexation and assignment of zoning of properties within the Brookman addition area, a
plan shall be prepared and adopted by Council to ensure that the necessary
infrastructure improvements will be available and a funding mechanism or combination
of funding mechanisms are in place consistent with the funding options identified in the
concept plan and in full compliance with the Transportation Planning Rule"; and

WHEREAS, the City has prepared a Funding Plan identifying the updated
improvement costs, updated anticipated revenues and identified local, county and
regional funding sources; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Plan demonstrates that the anticipated costs of
providing service to the area are reasonable likely to be funding through existing local,
County or regionalfunding sources within the planning horizon; and

WHEREAS, this finding demonstrates compliance with the Transpoftation
Planning Rule by ensuring that transportation improvements needed to accommodate
growth in the Brookman Area are reasonably likely to be funded; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Plan is based upon the entire Brookman area being
annexed at one time, which ensures that revenues to fund necessary improvements
throughout the area can be obtained over time.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

Resolution 2011-072
August 16,2011
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit A (  pgs)

55



Section 1. The City Council accepts the Funding Plan for the Brookman area,
attached as Exhibit A, acknowledging the costs and revenue associated with
development of the Brookman area consistent with the Brookman Concept Plan.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage by the
Council and signature by the Mayor.

Duly passed by the City Council this 16th day of August2011.

Keith Mays, Mayor

Attest

zbZ, -

Resolution 2011-072
August 16,2011
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit A (4 pgs)

56



Resolution 2011-072, Exh¡bit A
August 1 6, 2011, Page 1 of 4

Exhibit A

Brookman Funding Plan
July 29,20LI

Background

The Brookman Area concept plan includes plans for the extension of water, sanitary and storm sewer

and road improvements throughout the area. The plan also identifies needed upgrades to

accommodate the increase in people and jobs in the area. When the Brookman Concept Plan was

adopted it was realized that the cost of these improvements would not be fully covered by the System

Development Charges (SDC) anticipated, however ít was determined that a deta¡led plan for addressing

the funding gap would be better addressed through coordination with potential developers and the City

prior to or concurrent with annexation. Since the plan was adopted, however, the economy took a

downturn and developers appear hesitant to step up and even discuss development when funding

issues are undefined,

ln an effort to províde more certainty for the development community and the residents in the

Brookman area and the City of Sherwood, the City has decided to take the lead on developing a funding

plan. This funding plan is also a prerequisite for annexation, (Brookman Concept Plan lmplementat¡on

Policy 8.2.a)

57



Resolution 2011-072, Exhibit A
August 1 6, 2011 , Page 2 of 4

Identified need

It is assumed that there is a certain level of improvement that is expected to be covered by any

development and generally serves or benefits primarily that development. This includes: local

roadways, traffic calming measures directly related to development, S-inch water pipes, local sanitary

sewer lines, and storm water detention facilities. The concept Plan identified the following needs for
improvements that are not generally or typically paid for by developers:

ldentified proiects

t the Highway 99W/Sunset improvements were determined no longer necessary after adjustments to the jobs

housing mix, however that change was made after the cost analysis was completed,

Estimated cost (2O08)
not paid by developer

400,000Main reservoir uÞorade
4,700,000î 2

190,000SW Sherwood PRV
1,931 000

L
o
tú

Ì
12-inch water main oioes

7,22l,OOOTotal

1,292430Collection Svstem Extension Area 54155
113,176
133,176fu

E
¡!o

Capacity Updale

1,536.7E.2Total

Assumes reqional water qualitv facilities
181 ,771Base Construction items
467,412Convevance infrastructure

0Detention facilities
259,673Construction continqencies
454.428Enoineerinq and permittinq

0Land Acouisition
601,875

E

o
o

Staffino and Aooraisal
I,965,1 60Total

1,235,000Old Hwv 99-Uoorade to collector standards
10,855,000n - Urbanize and rebuild ex
6,770,000Brookman, west of Middleton - Construct new collector with rail crossinq

800,000
10,000

Brookman/Old Hwy 99 intersection - construct a round-about
Hwv ggWSunset infersectio n - add eastbound right turn overlap phase'

250,000Hwv ggWSunset intersection - Add westbound right tum lane
10,000Hwv ggWSunset intersection - Add westbound riqht tum overlap phase

250,000Hwv 99WBrookman intersection - Add traffìc siqnal
800.000Sunset-Timbral intersection - Consiruct a round-about

10,000SunseURedfern intersection - all-wav stoo control
10.000Brookman/Ladd Hill intersection - All-wav stop control

250,000

800,000

E
o
a!

oc
t¡
c
G

F
Brookman/Ladd intersection -
add southbound right turn lane
Or
Construct round-about

21.250.000-21.790.000'Total

58



Resolution 2011-072, Exhibit A
August 1 6, 2011 , Page 3 of 4

Identified Revenue

The Concept Plan includes estimated revenue via SDC's to fund the needed improvements. The

estimates were made based on the plan draft recommended by the Steering Committee and were not
updated after adjustments to the jobs-housing mix at the Planning Commission and Council level.

Comparison of assumptions in Fiscal impact analysis and final adopted plan

This difference in the number of housing units and jobs results in a significant change in the revenue

ns:

Identified gaps and plan to fill

Final adopted planFiscal impact analysis assumpt¡ons
29 jobsRetail 29 jobs

774 jobsOffice 349 jobs

226 jobslndustrial 102 jobs

798 dwelling units$ingle family 943 dwelling units

Multi.family 296 dwelling units 290 dwelling units

Estimated $DG revenuel
water SDGSanitary Storm SDCTrafflc

SDG and
ltF

87.106663.125 96,318 18,874Retail
121.448 275,204Offìce 1.569.957 272.901
121,448 439,955lndustrial 795,109 476,505
617,345 5,042,641Sinqle familv 4.811.812 3,416,529

1.832.5691.241.565 84,157Multi-familv 106,370
7,677,' 74Total 8.904.372 5,503,849 963,272

GapAdditional
funding sources

Estimated Costs
based on final
adopted plan

Estimated revenues
based on final
adopted plan

None7,677,474Water 7,221,O0O
NoneSanitarv 1.538.782 5,503,849

1.00't.888Storm 1,965,160 963,272
NoneRTP project

=$20,5
#10682
1o,o0o4

Traffic 20,880,000-
$21.420.000

8,904,372

'With removal of the Highway 99W/Sunset improvements, the total cost estimate is reduced by $370,000 to

520,880,000-52r,420,000.
3 

All assumptions used for calculation of SDCs is from the April 2008 Fiscal lmpact Analysis in the Brookman

Concept Plan appendix with updates needed to reflect the job and housing changes,
4 

This project is to reconstruct Brookman Road to collector standards between 99W and Ladd Hill. lt is on the

financially constrained list in the RTP indicating that it is reasonably likely to be funding within the RTP planning

horizon (2035) and is eligible for Federal funds through the MTIP process

59



Resolution 2011-072, Exhibit A
August 1 6, 2O11, Page 4 of 4

Conclusion

The updated analysis reveals that the only area in which there is a gap between projected costs and

revenues is in storm water, Because the costs are based on an assumed regional water quality facility, it
is possible that the gap can be addressed simply by requiring all development to address storm water on

their own property for their own development. This is not ideal, and the City should continue to work

towards funding regional facilities in the area; however the lack of funding will not undermine the ability
of the area to develop consistent with accepted storm water design practices.

All needed transportatíon Ímprovements to support the projected build out of the area can reasonably

likely be funding from existing identified sources within the planning horizon.

All needed sanitary sewer improvements to support the projected build out of the area can reasonably

likely be funding through SDC's collected as development occurs in the area.

All needed water improvements to support the projected build out of the area can reasonably likely be

funding through SDC's collected as development occurs in the area.

That said, all improvements may not be available at the same time a developer is interested in

developing. While it is anticipated that improvements can be funding, the timing may not match when a

developer needs them to be ¡n place. ln those instances, a developer has the following potential

optÎons:

r Construct improvement and receive credits equal to the amount of the elígible improvement
. Request the formation of a reimbursement district to recoup the costs íncurred from future

developers
o Form a local improvement d¡strict

60



3CL t7- R6o
ngton County - City of Sherrvood
Ulban Planning Area Agreentent' 

Page I of l0

Washi

Washington County - Sherwood
Urban Planning Area Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by WASHINGTON COUNTY, a political subdivision of
the State of Oregon, hereinafter referred to as the "COUNTY", and the CITY OF SHERWOOD,

an incorporated municipality of the State of Oregon, hereinafter referred to as the "CITY".

WHEREAS, ORS 190.010 provides that units of local government may enter into agreements for
the performance of any oi all functions and activities that a party to the agreement, its officers or

agents, have authority to perform; and

WHEREAS, Statewide Planning Goal #2 (Land Use Planning) requires that city, county, state

and federal agency and special district plans and actions shall be consistent with the

comprehensive plans of the cities and counties and regional plans adopted under ORS Chapter

197; and

WHEREAS, the Oregon State Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC)

requires each jurisdiction requesting acknowledgment of compliance to submit an agreement

setting forth the means by which comprehensive planning coordination within the Regional

Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) will be implemented; and

WHEREAS, following the Urbanization Forum process, the COUNTY through Resolution &
Order 09-63, and the CITY through Resolution 2009-046, agreed that all future additions to the

UGB during or after 2010 must be governed and urbanized by the CITY in the COIINTY and

also agreed to urge Metro to expand the UGB only to such areas as are contiguous to

incorporated areas of Washington County;and

WHEREAS, the State legislature, with House Bill4078-A in2014 and House Bill2047 in 2015,

validated the acknowledged UGB and Urban and Rural Reserves established through the Metro

Regional process involving both the COUNTY and the CITY; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY and CITY desire to amend the Urban Planning Area Agreement
(UPAA) to reflect the changes to the UGB, the CITY's Urban Planning Area, and the need for
urban planning ofthe new urban reserve lands; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY and the CITY, to ensure coordinated and consistent comprehensive

plans, consider it mutually advantageous to establish:

An Urban Planning Area Agreement incorporating both a site-specific Urban

Planning Area within the UGB within which both the COUNTY and the CITY
maintain an interest in comprehensive planning and an Urban Reserve Planning Area

outside the UGB where both the COUNTY and the CITY maintain an interest in

concept planning; and

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Engrossed Ordinance No. 821

Adopted September 26, 2017

61



Washington County - City olShenvood
r Jrban prannin g 

^*iåi ;ïïii
A process for coordinating comprehensive planning and development in the Ur-Uan

Planning Area and concept planning in the Urban Reserve Planning Area; and

Policies regarding comprehensive planning and development in the Urban Planning

Area and concept planning in the Urban Reserve Planning Area; and

4. A process to amend the Urban Planning Area Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNTY AND THE CITY AGREE AS FOLLOWS

I. Location of the Urban Planning Area and Urban Reserve Planning Area

The Urban Planning Area and Urban Reserve Planning Area, mutually defìned by the

COUNTY and the CITY, include the areas designated on the Washinglon County -

Sherwood UPAA Map "Exhibit A" to this Agreement.

II. Coordination of Comprehensive Planning and Development

A. Amendments to or Adoption of a Comprehensive Plan or Implementing Regulation

Definitions
Comprehensive Plan means a generalized, coordinated land use map and policy
statement of the governing body of a local government that interrelates all
functional and natural systems and activities relating to the use of lands,

including, but not limited to, sewer and water systems, transportation systems,

educational facilities, recreational facilities, and natural resources and air and

water quality management programs. "Comprehensive Plan" amendments do

not include small tract comprehensive plan map changes.

Implementing Regulation means any local government zoning ordinance, land

division ordinance adopted under ORS 92.044 or 92.046 or similar general

ordinance establishing standards for implementing a comprehensive plan.

"lmplementing regulation" does not include small tract zoning map

amendments, conditional use permits, individual subdivision, partitioning or

planned unit development approvals or denials, annexations, variances, building
permits and similar administrative-type decisions.

The COUNTY shall provide the CITY with the appropriate opportunity to
participate, review and comment on proposed amendments to or adoption of the

COUNTY comprehensive plan or implementing regulations. The CITY shall
provide the COUNTY with the appropriate opportunity to participate, review
and comment on proposed amendments to or adoption of the CITY
comprehensive plan or irnplementing regulations. The following procedures

shall be followed by the COUNTY and the CITY to notify and involve one

another in the process to amend or adopt a comprehensive plan or implernenting
regulation.

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Englossed Ordinance No. 821

Adopted September 26 - 20 l7

2

3

2

62



a.

*^n"',3',i;"t;ìii,"rtii:li:'J,ï.""i

Page 3 of l0

The CITY or the COUNTY, whichever has jurisdiction over the proposal,

hereinafter the originating agency, shall notify the other agency,
hereinafter the responding agency, by first class mail or as an attachment
to electronic mail of the proposed action at the time such planning efforts
are initiated, but in no case less than thirty-five (35) days prior to the first
hearing on adoption. For COUNTY or CITY comprehensive plan updates

with the potential to affect the responding agency's land use or
transportation system, the originating agency shall provide the responding
agency with the opportunity to participate in the originating agency's
planning process prior to the notif,rcation period, such as serving on the

originating agency's advisory committee.

For COUNTY or CITY comprehensive plan updates with the potential to
affect the responding agency's land use or transportation system, the
originating agency shall transmit the draft amendments to the responding
agency for its review and comment before finalizing. The responding
agency shall have ten (10) days after receipt of a draft to submit comments
orally or in writing. Lack of response shall be considered "no objection" to
the draft.

The originating agency shall respond to the comments made by the
responding agency either by a) revising the final recommendations, or
b) by letter to the responding agency explaining why the comments cannot
be addressed in the final draft-

Comments from the responding agency shall be given consideration as a

part ofthe public record on the proposed action. Ifafter such
consideration, the originating agency acts contrary to the position of the

responding agency, the responding agency may seek appeal ofthe action
through the appropriate appeals body and procedures.

Upon final adoption of the proposed action by the originating agency, it
shall transmit the adopting ordinance to the responding agency as soon as

publicly available, or if not adopted by ordinance, whatever other written
documentation is available to properly inform the responding agency of
the final actions taken.

b.

c.

d

e.

B. Development Actions Requiring Individual Notice to Property Owners

l. Definition

Development Action Requiring Notice means an action by a local government

which requires notifying by mail the owners of property which could potentially
be affected (usually specified as a distance measured in feet) by a proposed

development action which directly affects and is applied to a specific parcel or
parcels. Such development actions may include, but not be limited to, small

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Engrossed OldinanceNo. 821

Adopted September' 26, 2017

63



* 
" 

n' 
"$:o:,f ;ii:i, ;r'i'å : liä;i:i

Page 4 of l0

tract zoning or comprehensive plan map amendments, conditional or special use

permits, land divisions, planned unit developments, variances, and other similar
actions requiring a quasi-judicial hearings process.

The COUNTY will provide the CITY with the opporlunity to review and

comment on proposed development actions requiring notice within the

designated Urban Planning Area and Urban Reserve Planning Area. The CITY
will provide the COUNTY with the opportunity to review and comment on

proposed development actions requiring notice within the CITY limits that may
have an effect on unincorporated portions of designated Urban Planning Area or
the COUNTY's transportation network.

The following procedures shall be followed by the COUNTY and the CITY to
notify one another of proposed development actions:

a. The CITY or the COUNTY, whichever has jurisdiction over the proposal,

hereinafter the originating agency, shall send by fìrst class mail or as an

attachment to electronic mail a copy of the public hearing notice or
comment period notice with no public hearing which identifies the

proposed development action to the other agency, hereinafter the
responding agency, at the earliest opportunity, but no less than ten (10)

days prior to the date of the scheduled public hearing or end of the
comment period. The failure of the responding agency to receive a notice
shall not invalidate an action if a good faith attempt was made by the
originating agency to notify the responding agency.

b. The agency receiving the notice may respond at its discretion. Comments
may be submitted in written or electronic form or an oral response may be

made at the public hearing. Lack of written or oral response shall be

considered "no objection" to the proposal.

c. If received in a timely manner, the originating agency shall include or
attach the comments to the written staff report and respond to any
concerns addressed by the responding agency in such report or orally at

the hearing.

Comments from the responding agency shall be given consideration as a

part ofthe public record on the proposed action. If, after such

consideration, the originating agency acts contrary to the position of the

responding agency, the responding agency may seek appeal ofthe action
through the appropriate appeals body and procedures.

C. AdditionalCoordinationRequirements

The CITY and the COUNTY shall do the following to notify one another of
proposed actions which may affect the community, but are not subject to the

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Engrossed Ordinance No. 82 I

Adopted September 26, 2017

2.

-)

d

64



Wasllinglon County - City of Shenvood
Urban Planning Area Agreernerrt

Page 5 of'l0

notification and participation requirements contained in subsections A and B

above.

The CITY or the COUNTY, whichever has jurisdiction over the proposed

actions, hereinafter the originating agency, shall send by first class mail or
as an attachment to electronic mail a copy of all public hearing agendas

which contain the proposed actions to the other agency, hereinafter the

responding agency, at the earliest opportunity, but no less than three (3)
days prior to the date of the scheduled public hearing. The failure of the

responding agency to receive an agenda shall not invalidate an action if a
good faith attempt was made by the originating agency to notify the

responding agency.

The agency receiving the public hearing agenda may respond at its

discretion. Comments may be submitted in written or electronic form or an

oral response may be made at the public hearing. Lack of written or oral
response shall be considered "no objection" to the proposal.

c. Comments from the responding agency shall be given consideration as a

part ofthe public record on the proposed action. If, after such

consideration, the originating agency acts contrary to the position of the
responding agency, the responding agency may seek appeal ofthe action
through the appropriate appeals body and procedures.

ilI. Concept Planning for Urban Reserve Areas

A. Definitions

I Urban Reserve means those lands outside the UGB that have been so designated
by Metro for the purpose of:
a. Future expansion over a long-term period (40-50 years), and

b The cost-effective provision of public facilities and services when the
lands are included within the UGB.

Urban Reserve Planning Area means those Urban Reserves identified as

ultimately being governed by the CITY at such time as the UGB is amended to
include the Urban Reserve Area.

Urban Reserve - Planning Responsibility Undefìned means those Urban
Reserves that the CITY and at least one other city may have an interest in
ultimately governing, but no final agreement has been reached. These areas are

not considered part of the Urban Reserve Planning Area.

B. The CITY's Urban Reserve Planning Area and the Urban Reserve - Planning

Responsibility Undefined are identified on "Exhibit A" to this Agreement.

w ash i n gto n ." 
" ",rTguiïî",1t;i'¿Î.:i,:ä o rd i nan ce No. 8 2 r

Adopted September 26. 20 | 7

a

b.

2.

J

65



C

Washinglon County - City of Sherwood
Urban Planning Area Agreement

Page6oll0

The CITY and COUNTY shall be jointly responsible for developing a concept plan

for the Urban Reserve Planning Area in coordination with Metro and appropriate

service districts. The concept plan shall include the following:

An agreement befween the COUNTY and CITY regarding expectations for road

funding, jurisdictional transfer over roadways to and from the CITY and

COUNTY, and access management for county roads in the Urban Reserve

Planning Area. The agreement should describe any changes to the CITY and/or
COUNTY Transportation System Plans, other Comprehensive Plan documents,

or codes that have been adopted or will be necessary to implement this
agreement.

An agreement between the COUNTY and CITY that preliminarily identifies the

likely providers of urban services, as defined in ORS 195.065.(4), when the area

is urbanized.

2

D The concept plan shall be approved by the CITY and acknowledged by the

COUNTY.

E. Upon completion and acknowledgement of the concept plan by the CITY and

COUNTY, and the addition of the area into the UGB by Metro, the affected portion

of the Urban Reserve Planning Area shall be designated as part of the Urban Planning
Area. Inclusion in the Urban Planning Area is automatic and does not require an

amendment to this agreement.

IV. Comprehensive Planning and Development Policies for Urban Planning Areas

A. Definition

Urban Planning Area means the incorporated area and certain unincorporated areas

contiguous to the incorporated area for which the CITY conducts comprehensive
planning and seeks to regulate development activities to the greatest extent possible.

The CITY's Urban Planning Area is designated on "Exhibit A" to this Agreement.

The CITY shall be responsible for comprehensive planning within the Urban

Planning Area.

The CITY and COUNTY will implement the applicable Urban Reserve concept plan

and related agreements as the comprehensive plan is prepared for the Urban Planning
Area to ensure consistency and continuing applicability with the original concept

plan. If modifications to the original concept plan are made during the comprehensive

planning process, the parties will update the related agreements to reflect these

changes, which may include transporlation, access and funding.

The CITY shall be responsible for the preparation, adoption and amendment of the

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Engrossed Ordinance No. 82 I

Adopted Septembel 26, 2017

B

C

D

66



*^n"'$å'1"';iåi,"rîå:li:'åx"i

Page 7 of l0

public facility plan required by OAR 660-01I within the Urban Planning Area.

As required by OAR 660-011-0010, the CITY is identified as the appropriate
provider of local water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and transpor-tation facilities
within the Urban Planning Area. Exceptions include facilities provided by other
service providers subject to the terms of any intergovernmental agreement the CITY
may have with other service providers; facilities under the jurisdiction of other
service providers not covered by an intergovernmental agreement; and future
facilities that are more appropriately provided by an agency other than the CITY.

The COUNTY shall not approve land divisions within the unincorporated Urban
Planning Area that are inconsistent with the provisions of the Future Development
20-Acre District.(FD-20).

The COUNTY shall not approve a development proposal in the Urban Planning Area
if the proposal would not provide for, nor be conditioned to provide for, an

enforceable plan for redevelopment to urban densities consistent with the CITY's
Comprehensive Plan in the future upon annexation to the CITY as indicated by the

CITY Comprehensive Plan.

H. The COUNTY will not oppose any orderly, logical annexation of land to the CITY
within the CITY's Urban Planning Area.

V. Amendments to the Urban Planning Area Agreement

A. The following procedures shall be followed by the CITY and the COUNTY to amend

the language of this agreement or the Urban Planning Area Boundary:

The CITY or COUNTY, whichever jurisdiction originates the proposal, shall

submit a formal request for amendment to the responding agency.

2. The formal request shall contain the following:

a. A statement describing the amendment.

A statement of findings indicating why the proposed amendment is

necessary.

E

F

G

I

b.

c. If the request is to amend the planning area boundary, a map that clearly
indicates the proposed change and surrounding area.

3 Upon receipt of a request for amendment from the originating agency, the

responding agency shall schedule a review ofthe request before the appropriate

reviewing body, with said review to be held within forty-fìve (45) days of the

date the request is received.

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Englossed Ordinance No. 82 I

Adopted September 26. 20 l7

67



*'*'"å"i:"t;ìä?ùt;'#ijl:äi:,i
Page I of l0

The CITY and COUNTY shall make good faith efforts to resolve requests to
amend this agreement. Upon completion of the review, the reviewing body may
approve the request, deny the request, or make a determination that the
proposed amendment warrants additional review. If it is determined that
additional review is necessary, the following procedures shall be followed by
the CITY and COTJNTY:

a. If inconsistencies noted by both parties cannot be resolved in the review
process as outlined in Section V. A. (3), the CITY and the COUNTY may
agree to initiate a joint study. Such a study shall commence within thirty
(30) days of the date it is determined that a proposed amendment creates
an inconsistency, and shall be completed within ninety (90) days of said
date. Methodologies and procedures regulating the conduct of the joint
study shall be mutually agreed upon by the CITY and the COUNTY prior
to commencing the study.

b. Upon completion of the joint study, the study and the recommendations
drawn from it shall be included within the record of the review. The
agency considering the proposed amendment shall give careful
consideration to the study prior to making a fìnal decision.

The parties willjointly review this Agreement periodically, or as needed, to evaluate
the effectiveness of the processes set forth herein and to make any necessary
amendments. Both parties shall make a good faith effort to resolve any
inconsistencies that may have developed since the previous review. If; after
completion of a sixty (60) day review period inconsistencies still remain, either party
may terminate this Agreement.

C. Any boundary changes due to annexation into the CITY or updates to the UGB are
automatic and do not require an amendment to "Exhibit 4".

VI. This Agreement shall become effective upon full execution by the COUNTY and the CITY
and shall then repeal and replace the Washington County-Sherwood Urban Planning Area
Agreement effective March 3,2010. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the last
date ofsignature on the signature page.

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Engrossed Ordinance No. 821

Adopted September 26- 2017

4

B

68



Washington County - City of Sherwood
Urban Planning Area Agreement

Page 9 of 10

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Urban Planning Area Agreement on the

date set opposite their signatures.

CITY OF SHERWOOD

By Date 0 l-Ì t1
-¡la¡ôr üt^.{c.Hqçít, (\uaciI /

Approved as to Form

By Date a J]

By Date

WASHINGTON COUNTY

C

sv 4O ', AndYDwYck
Chair, Úoard of Commissioners

Dut" tt^ 1_ l7
fio n'q I ?'zo' t7

Approved as to Form

By ¿ ).= Date ll 3 I

By Date

Agleement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Engrossed Ol'dinance No. 821

Adopted September 26, 20 17

Recording Secretary

69



A-Engrossed Ordinance No. 821

Exhibit A
Page 10 of 10

City of Sherwood
Urban Planning Area

Washington County - Sherwood
Urban Planning Area Agreenrent

Exhibit A

t\WqtsouFsGlSPlffi hilqCf ROJE ÇTs\æi 7-PdedsuPS€ha@d_UPM-WR _Ol nxd
¡l¡ w^qûcrGcou{rv'fl v@h

tili,;iìrl;rij c¡ty r¡m its

X Urban PlanningArea

ffibif#åî::'
Urban Reserve. -
Planning Responsi bi lity
Undefíned

lrttl¡¡ Urban Crorvth Boundary

fl:Ï3 county Boundary

Railroad Rightof Way

Future SW 124th Ave

- 
Alignment

1 inch = 2,000 feet

0 1,000 2,000 3,oo0 4,000
- F€et

,.,4ir--l--
rs:,sHERwóÀ*.

d-.t

r- r

.-.i
i'- .J

-Ìl
:li,¡ ¡

i.J:-'

\

L.í

I
I

I'J

r f--_
_-...'''*.. ¡ ;. .-'

()l¿ckarx¿s (.Jou*.í¡

70



71



72



February 8, 2021 

Annexation Application 
17687 SW Brookman Road 

Prepared for: 

Olivia Beach, LLC 

P.O. Box 7534 

Olympia, Washington 98507 

 

Submitted to:  

City of Sherwood 

Planning Department 

22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 97140 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

 
  

73



Brookman Annexation 2020 
   

   
 

Reece & associates   Page 2 

Project Summary 

Request: Application for annexation of a two-acre property, located within the 

Urban Growth Boundary, into the City of Sherwood limits and Clean 

Water Services District.   

Location: 17687 SW Brookman Road, Sherwood, Oregon 97140 

Washington County Assessor’s Map No. 3s-1-06B, Lot 101 

Applicant: Walker John 

Olivia Beach, LLC 

P.O. Box 7534 

Olympia, Washington 98507 

Phone: 541-921-1247 

Email: walker@oliviabeach.com 

Owner: Tom & Marie Bartlett 

17687 SW Brookman Road 

Sherwood, Oregon 97140 

Engineer/Planner: Reece & associates, Inc. 

321 1st Avenue Suite 3A 

Albany OR 97321 

541-926-2428 

Engineer: David J. Reece, PE 

dave@r-aengineering.com 

 

 

 

 

Planner: Hayden Wooton 

haydenw@r-aengineering.com 

 

Exhibits 

A – Washington County Assessor’s Map No. 3s-1-06B 

B – Aerial Photograph 

C – City of Sherwood Zoning Map 

D – Certification of Legal Description and Map 

E – Washing County-Sherwood Urban Planning Area Agreement 

F – Certification of Property Ownership 

G – Urban Growth Boundary Map 

H – Signed Petition 

I – Worksheet for Annexation 

J – Annexation Questionnaire 

K – Boundary Change Data Sheet 

L – Mailing Labels 

  

74



Brookman Annexation 2020 
   

   
 

Reece & associates   Page 3 

Table of Contents 
I. Project Description....................................................................................................................... 4 

II. Existing Conditions ....................................................................................................................... 4 

III. Annexation ................................................................................................................................... 5 

A. Oregon Revised Statutes 222 (Senate Bill 1573)........................................................................... 5 

B. Metro Code 3.09 ........................................................................................................................... 6 

C. Sherwood Comprehensive Plan Chapter 3 ................................................................................. 10 

D. Sherwood Comprehensive Plan Chapter 8 ................................................................................. 11 

VI. Conclusion .................................................................................................................................. 11 

 

Applicable criteria of the governing codes will appear in italics followed by the applicants’ responses in 

regular font.  

75



Brookman Annexation 2020 
   

   
 

Reece & associates   Page 4 

I. Project Description  

This application is for the City of Sherwood to annex two acres of land located at 17687 SW Brookman 

Road in unincorporated Washington County, Oregon. The territory is currently zoned Future 

Development, 20-Acre (FD-20) by Washington County. After annexation, the territory will be zoned 

Medium Density Residential High (MDRH) by the City of Sherwood. The territory was brought into Metro’s 

Urban Growth Boundary in 2002. Several years later, in 2009, the City of Sherwood City Council adopted 

the Brookman Addition Concept Plan to guide development of this territory and many others. Annexation 

of this territory will ensure future development will support the City’s vision and goals for the Brookman 

Addition.   

Because the City of Sherwood receives urban services from Clean Water Services, the territory must be 

simultaneously annexed into boundaries of the urban service district per ORS 199.510(c). Consequently, 

this application requests concurrent annexation into Clean Water Service’s boundaries. 

The proposed development conforms to all applicable sections of the Oregon Revised Statutes, Metro 

Code, and City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan. This application narrative provides findings of fact that 

demonstrate conformance with all applicable sections of the above-mentioned governing regulations.  

II. Existing Conditions 

The territory is comprised of a single tax lot identified as Washington County Assessor’s Map No. 3s-1-

06B, Lot 101 (Exhibit A). Presently, a single-family dwelling and workshop are located in the northwest 

corner of the property. Access to these buildings is provided by a gravel driveway sited along the western 

property line and connects to Brookman Road. The remainder of the property is unimproved yard with 

patches of trees near the property boundaries.  

Adjoining zones and land uses (Exhibit B for aerial photograph and Exhibit C for City of Sherwood Zoning 

Map): 

North: Two properties (17769 and 17601 SW Brookman Road) zoned a combination of Medium Density 

Residential High (MDRH) and Medium Density Residential Low (MDRL) by the City of Sherwood. Presently, 

these properties are being developed to create the Middlebrook Subdivision. 

South: Two properties with residential development (17692 and 17636 SW Brookman Road) zoned 

Agriculture and Forest District (AF-5) by Washington County. 

East: One property (17601 SW Brookman Road) zoned a combination of Medium Density Residential High 

(MDRH) and Medium Density Residential Low (MDRL) by the City of Sherwood. Presently, this property is 

being developed to create the Middlebrook Subdivision. 

West: One property (17601 SW Brookman Road) zoned Medium Density Residential Low (MDRL) by the 

City of Sherwood. Presently, this property is being developed to create the Middlebrook Subdivision. 

  

76



Brookman Annexation 2020 
   

   
 

Reece & associates   Page 5 

III. Annexation  

A. Oregon Revised Statutes 222.127 (Senate Bill 1573) 

The applicant is requesting annexation through the procedures outlined in Senate Bill 1573, implemented 

by ORS 222.127. An application utilizing this process must comply with approval criteria outlined in ORS 

222.127(2)(a)-(d). The following section provides findings of fact demonstrating compliance with the 

above-mentioned decision criteria.  

ORS 222.127(2) Notwithstanding a contrary provision of the city charter or a city ordinance, upon receipt 

of a petition proposing annexation of territory submitted by all owners of land in the territory, the 

legislative body of the city shall annex the territory without submitting the proposal to the electors of the 

city if: 

This annexation is proposed by Olivia Beach, LLC (applicant) in conjunction with Tom and Marie 

Bartlett (owners), who have both signed the “City of Sherwood Petition for Annexation” (Exhibit 

A). Therefore, the petition proposing annexation has been signed by all owners of land in the 

territory. The proposed annexation satisfies this criterion.  

ORS 222.127(2)(a) The territory is included within an urban growth boundary adopted by the city or Metro, 

as defined in ORS 197.015. 

The territory subject to annexation is located within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) and City 

of Sherwood’s Brookman Addition Concept Plan. Metro brought the land into the Urban Growth 

Boundary in 2002 via Ordinance 02-0969B, and Sherwood City Council adopted the Brookman 

Addition Concept Plan in 2009 (Ordinance 2009-004). The proposed annexation satisfies this 

criterion.  

ORS 222.127(2)(b) The territory is, or upon annexation of the territory into the city will be, subject to the 

acknowledged comprehensive plan of the city. 

As stated in response to ORS 222.127, the City of Sherwood adopted the Brookman Addition 

Concept Plan and implementing Comprehensive Plan Policies in 2009 via Ordinance 2009-004. 

Because the territory is located within the Brookman Addition Concept Plan Boundary, it will be 

subject to Sherwood’s Comprehensive Plan and implementing ordinances once annexed. The 

proposed annexation satisfies this criterion.  

ORS 222.127(2)(c) At least one lot or parcel within the territory is contiguous to the city limits or is 

separated from the city limits only by a public right of way or a body of water. 

The territory is comprised of a single parcel contiguous to city limits along three property lines. 

Adjacent properties 17601 SW Brookman Road and 17769 SW Brookman Road were both 

annexed into Sherwood via Ordinance 2017-002. The proposed annexation satisfies this criterion.  

ORS 222.127(2)(d) The proposal conforms to all other requirements of the city’s ordinances. 

This application for annexation has been prepared in accordance with the City’s “Checklist of 

Annexation Request to the City of Sherwood.” Furthermore, this burden of proof demonstrates 

77



Brookman Annexation 2020 
   

   
 

Reece & associates   Page 6 

that the proposed annexation conforms as necessary to the applicable ordinances of the City of 

Sherwood. The proposed annexation satisfies this criterion.  

ORS 222.127(3) The territory to be annexed under this section includes any additional territory described 

in ORS 222.111 (1) that must be annexed in order to locate infrastructure and right of way access for 

services necessary for development of the territory described in subsection (2) of this section at a density 

equal to the average residential density within the annexing city. 

The territory is comprised of a single, two-acre parcel. Because local infrastructure and right-of-

way access are available at the territory’s eastern boundary within city limits, no additional land 

will be annexed under ORS 22.127(3). This criterion does not apply to the proposed annexation. 

ORS 222.127(4) When the legislative body of the city determines that the criteria described in subsection 

(2) of this section apply to territory proposed for annexation, the legislative body may declare that the 

territory described in subsections (2) and (3) of this section is annexed to the city by an ordinance that 

contains a description of the territory annexed.  

A legal description of the territory has been certified by the Washington County Assessor’s Office 

and provided with this application (Exhibit D). If Sherwood City Council determines the applicable 

criteria have been satisfied, an ordinance accompanied by this legal description will be adopted 

by the City of Sherwood. The proposed annexation satisfies this criterion.  

B. Metro Code 3.09 

In addition to state-sanctioned decision criteria, the application must comply with any applicable regional 

criteria. Per Metro §3.09.010, “This chapter applies to boundary changes within the boundaries of Metro 

or of urban reserves designated by Metro…” Because the territory and proposed annexation are located 

within Metro’s boundaries, the application must also comply with applicable decision criteria outlined in 

Metro Code 3.09. The following section provides findings of fact demonstrating compliance with the 

above-mentioned decision criteria. 

3.09.050(B)(1) The extent to which urban services are available to serve the affected territory, including 

any extra territorial extensions of services.  

Metro §3.09.020(N) defines urban services as “sanitary sewers, water, fire protection, parks, open 

space, recreation and streets, roads and mass transit.” The territory is already served by several 

urban services as described below. Other urban services are accessible and could be made 

available to serve eventual development.  

Sanitary Sewer: A Notice of Decision approving the Middlebrook Subdivision was published on 

July 15, 2019. Middlebrook Subdivision proposed, and was conditioned, to extend a sanitary 

sewer line in Wapato Lake Drive to the eastern boundary of the territory. Therefore, sanitary 

sewer service is readily available.  

Water: A Notice of Decision approving the Middlebrook Subdivision was published on July 15, 

2019. Middlebrook Subdivision proposed, and was conditioned, to extend a domestic water line 

in Wapato Lake Drive to the eastern boundary of the territory. Therefore, water service is readily 

available. 

78



Brookman Annexation 2020 
   

   
 

Reece & associates   Page 7 

Stormwater: A Notice of Decision approving the Middlebrook Subdivision was published on July 

15, 2019. Middlebrook Subdivision proposed, and was conditioned, to provide stormwater 

drainage systems in Wapato Lake Drive. While the site has access to public stormwater systems, 

future development of the territory will require detailed engineering to demonstrate stormwater 

quality and detention can be provided.  

Fire Protection: The territory is already within Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue’s (TVF&R) 

boundaries. Annexation into city limits will not hinder TVF&R’s ability to provide fire protection 

to the territory.  

Police Protection: Presently, the territory is within Washington County’s Enhanced Sheriff’s Patrol 

District (ESPD). However, once the territory is annexed into city limits, Sherwood will remove the 

territory from ESPD and place the territory under Sherwood Police Department’s protection.  

Parks, Open Space, and Recreation: Parks and Recreation are provided by the City of Sherwood, 

which maintains a series of open spaces and natural area. Dedication, creation, or system 

development charges for parks and trails will be required with new development.  

Transportation: Access to the territory is provided at two locations including Wapato Lake Drive 

and Brookman Road. Extension of Wapato Lake Drive and/or improvements to Brookman will be 

required with new development.  

3.09.050(B)(2) Whether the proposed boundary change will result in the withdrawal of the affected 

territory from the legal boundary of any necessary party.  

The territory subject to annexation is considered the affected territory by Metro §3.09.020(C). 

When the affected territory is already provided an urban service by a necessary party – defined 

by Metro §3.09.020(J) as “any county; city; district whose jurisdictional boundary or adopted 

urban service area includes any part of the affected territory or who provides any urban service 

to any portion of the affected territory; Metro; or any other unit of local government, as defined 

in ORS 190.003, that is a party to any agreement for provision of an urban service to the affected 

territory” – removal of the territory must be considered when reviewing an annexation 

application.  As discussed in the applicant’s response to Metro §3.09.050(B)(1), the territory will 

be withdrawn from the Washington County ESPD upon annexation into city limits. After 

annexation, Sherwood Police Department will provide law enforcement services. At this time, the 

territory will not be removed from the service boundary of any other necessary parties. The 

proposed annexation satisfied this criterion.  

3.09.050(B)(3) The proposed effective date of the boundary change.  

The effective date of annexation will be determined by Sherwood City Council, Secretary of State, 

Department of Revenue, and any other affected agencies. Consequently, at this time, the 

proposed effective date of the boundary change is not known by the applicant. To the extent 

reasonable, the proposed annexation satisfies this criterion.  

3.09.050(C) The person or entity proposing the boundary change has the burden to demonstrate that the 

proposed boundary change meets the applicable criteria.  

79



Brookman Annexation 2020 
   

   
 

Reece & associates   Page 8 

This application narrative effectively functions as a burden of proof demonstrating that the 

proposed annexation meets the applicable State, Regional, and Local criterion. The proposed 

annexation satisfies this criterion.  

3.09.050(D) To approve a boundary change, the reviewing entity shall apply the criteria and consider the 

factors set forth in subsections (D) and (E) of section 3.09.045. 

This application narrative addresses the applicable review criteria set forth in Metro §3.09.045(D)-

(E) immediately below.  

3.09.045(D)(1)(a) Any applicable urban service agreement adopted pursuant to ORS 195.065. 

Washington County-Sherwood Urban Planning Area Agreement governs the territory subject to 

annexation (Exhibit E). As required by the Washington County-Sherwood UPAA, the City of 

Sherwood is responsible for planning urban services for properties inside the UGB but outside city 

limits. Sherwood accomplishes this planning through the adoption and enforcement of the 

Brookman Addition Concept Plan, which incorporates the master plans for water, sanitary sewer, 

storm sewer, and transportation facilities. Once the territory is annexed into city limits, urban 

services will be provided in accordance with Sherwood’s Brookman Addition Concept Plan. The 

proposed annexation satisfies this criterion.  

3.09.045(D)(1)(b) Any applicable annexation plan adopted pursuant to ORS 195.205. 

If an annexation plan is adopted pursuant to ORS 195.205, the proposal is subject to a vote by the 

electorate. Because the proposed annexation is being processed through procedures provided by 

Senate Bill 1573, a vote by the electorate as required by ORS 195.205 is not required. This criterion 

does not apply to the proposed annexation.  

3.09.045(D)(1)(c) Any applicable cooperative planning agreement adopted pursuant to ORS 195.020(2) 

between the affected entity and a necessary party.  

The City of Sherwood receives sewer treatment and water quality services from Clean Water 

Services through cooperative planning agreement adopted pursuant to ORS 195.0202(2). 

Consequently, the territory will be annexed into the Clean Water Services boundaries and City of 

Sherwood limits simultaneously. Annexation of this territory will not impact the cooperative 

planning agreement between Clean Water Services and the City of Sherwood.  

As previously discussed in the applicant’s response to Metro §3.09.050(B)(1), this annexation will 

remove the territory from the Washington County ESPD and into the Sherwood Police 

Department’s jurisdiction. Any standing agreement between Washington County Sheriff and 

Sherwood Police Department will not be impacted by this annexation.  

The territory is, and will continue to be, serviced by TVF&R. The proposed annexation satisfies this 

criterion.  

3.09.045(D)(1)(d) Any applicable public facility plan adopted pursuant to a statewide planning goal on 

public facilities and services. 

80



Brookman Annexation 2020 
   

   
 

Reece & associates   Page 9 

The City of Sherwood’s Brookman Addition Concept Plan incorporated relevant data and 

conclusions from the City’s various master plans including water, sanitary sewer, stormwater, and 

Transportation System Plan. Adopted by Sherwood City Council in 2009, the governing concept 

plan was found to be consistent with the applicable Statewide Planning Goals.  As demonstrated 

by this application narrative, the proposed annexation can comply with the Brookman Addition 

Concept Plan. The proposed annexation satisfies this criterion.  

3.09.045(D)(1)(e) Any applicable comprehensive plan.  

Compliance with the applicable goals and policies of the City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan is 

discussed under Section III.C and Section III.D of this application narrative. Findings and 

conclusions from the above-cited section are incorporated herein by reference. Therefore, the 

proposed annexation complies with this criterion. 

3.09.045(D)(1)(f) Any applicable concept plan.  

The subject property is located in the Brookman Addition Concept Plan. Compliance with the 

applicable goals and policies of the Brookman Addition Concept Plan is discussed under Section 

III.D of this application narrative. Findings and conclusions from the above-cited section are 

incorporated herein by reference. Therefore, the proposed annexation complies with this 

criterion.   

3.09.045(D)(2)(a) Promote the timely, orderly and economic provision of public facilities and services.  

As stated in the applicant’s response to Metro §3.09.050(B)(1), public utilities are located at the 

territory’s eastern boundary. Because of this proximity, eventual development of the territory will 

have the ability to extend utilities in a quick and cost-effective manner.  

3.09.045(D)(2)(b) Affect the quality and quantity of urban services. 

Annexation of the territory will not immediately impact the quality or quantity of urban services. 

Future development of the territory will increase demand for urban services. To ensure 

development does not decrease the quality or quantity of these services, a detailed engineering 

review will be performed prior to construction of urban services. Therefore, neither annexation 

nor eventual development will affect the quality of quantity of urban services. The proposed 

annexation satisfies this criterion.  

3.09.045(D)(2)(c) Eliminate or avoid unnecessary duplication of facilities or services.  

Eventual development will construct the necessary public facilities in accordance with applicable 

cooperative planning agreements and Brookman Addition Concept Plan. Compliance with these 

development standards will eliminate or avoid duplication of facilities. To avoid duplication of law 

enforcement services, the territory will be removed from Washington County ESPD upon 

annexation into city limits. The proposed annexation satisfies this criterion.  

3.09.045(E) A city may not annex territory that lies outside the UGB, except it may annex a lot or parcel 

that lies partially within and partially outside the UGB.  

81



Brookman Annexation 2020 
   

   
 

Reece & associates   Page 10 

The territory is located entirely within the Urban Growth Boundary and City of Sherwood’s 

Brookman Addition Concept Plan. The proposed annexation satisfies this criterion.  

C. Sherwood Comprehensive Plan Chapter 3 

The City of Sherwood is responsible for comprehensive planning for land within the “Urban Planning 

Area,” as set forth in the Washington County/Sherwood UPAA. The territory is located within this area; 

therefore, annexation of the territory must be supportive of the applicable policies provided in the City of 

Sherwood Comprehensive Plan. Growth Management is addressed in Chapter Three of the 

Comprehensive Plan and provides policies that are intended to guide growth in an orderly manner. The 

following section provides findings of fact demonstrating support of the applicable policies in the above-

mentioned chapter.  

i. Growth Management Policy Objectives 

Policy A. Focus growth into areas contiguous to existing development rather than "leap frogging" over 

developable property. 

As stated in the applicant’s response to ORS 222.127(2)(c), the territory is comprised of a single 

parcel contiguous to city limits along three property lines. Adjacent properties 17601 SW 

Brookman Road and 17769 SW Brookman Road were both annexed into Sherwood via Ordinance 

2017-002. Properties immediately north and east of the territory are being developed under 

approval of the Middlebrook Subdivision (SUB-18-02). Therefore, the territory is contiguous to 

existing development and does not “leapfrog” over developable property. The proposed 

annexation supports this policy. 

Policy C. Encourage annexation inside the UGB where services are available. 

As previously addressed in the applicant’s responses to ORS 222.127(2)(a) and Metro 

§3.09.050(B)(1), the territory is located inside the urban growth boundary near urban services. 

The proposed annexation supports this policy. 

Policy E. Achieve the maximum preservation of natural features. 

As a singular process, annexation does not preserve natural features. Consideration of nature 

features and open space would occur concurrent with new development. Preservation of any 

identified on-site natural features will be required in accordance with Sherwood Development 

Code, Clean Water Services, and any applicable State or Federal regulations. At the time of 

annexation, this policy does not apply. However, the applicant will be required to demonstrate 

support of this policy and any applicable standards during a future land use application.  

Policy F. Provide proper access and traffic circulation to all new development. 

The City of Sherwood’s Brookman Addition Concept Plan details potential transportation 

improvements and roadway extensions necessary to serve full development of the master 

planned area. When new development occurs, on- and off-site transportation improvements 

necessary to serve the proposed development will be consistent with applicable development 

code and master plans. The annexation supports this policy to the extent possible.  

82



Brookman Annexation 2020 
   

   
 

Reece & associates   Page 11 

Policy G. Establish policies for the orderly extension of community services and public facilities to areas 

where new growth is to be encouraged, consistent with the ability of the community to provide necessary 

services. New public facilities should be available in conjunction with urbanization in order to meet future 

needs. The City, Washington County, and special service districts should cooperate in the development of 

a capital improvements program in areas of mutual concern. Lands within the urban growth boundary 

shall be available for urban development concurrent with the provision of the key urban facilities and 

services. 

The City of Sherwood’s Brookman Addition Concept Plan supports this goal through concept 

planning and coordination with public facilities plans for new urban areas. Annexation and any 

new development must be supportive of the policies outlined in the applicable concept plan. The 

proposed annexation supports this policy.  

Policy H. Provide for phased and orderly transition from rural to suburban or urban uses. 

The City of Sherwood’s Brookman Addition Concept Plan was adopted to guide development of 

the territory in an orderly manner that meets the needs of the community. This annexation, and 

any new development, must demonstrate that it supports the goals and policies outlined in the 

applicable concept plan. Supporting these goals and policies ensures the territory experiences a 

smooth transition from rural to suburban uses. The proposed annexation supports this policy.  

ii. City Limits Policies   

Policy 5 - Changes in the City limits may be proposed by the City, County, special districts or individuals in 

conformance with City policies and procedures for the review of annexation requests and County 

procedures for amendment of its comprehensive plan. 

This annexation is proposed by Olivia Beach, LLC (applicant) in conjunction with Tom and Marie 

Bartlett, property owners. This application for annexation has been prepared in accordance with 

the City’s “Checklist of Annexation Request to the City of Sherwood.” Furthermore, this burden 

of proof demonstrates that the proposed annexation conforms as necessary to the applicable 

ordinances of the City of Sherwood. The proposed annexation supports this policy.  

Policy 7 - All new development must have access to adequate urban public sewer and water service. 

As discussed in the applicant’s response to 3.09.050(B)(1), public sewer and water service are 

located adjacent to the territory. Therefore, new development of the territory would have 

convenient access to adequate public sewer and water. The proposed annexation supports this 

policy.  

D. Sherwood Comprehensive Plan Chapter 8 

The City of Sherwood is responsible for comprehensive planning for land within the “Urban Planning 

Area,” as set forth in the Washington County/Sherwood UPAA. The territory is located within this area; 

therefore, annexation of the territory must be supportive of the applicable policies provided in the City of 

Sherwood Comprehensive Plan. Additionally, Metro §3.09.045(D)(1)(f) requires an annexation complies 

with any applicable concept plan. The territory is located within the City of Sherwood’s Brookman Addition 

Concept Plan; therefore, annexation of the territory must be supportive of the policies outlined in Chapter 

83



Brookman Annexation 2020 
   

   
 

Reece & associates   Page 12 

Eight of the Comprehensive Plan.  The following section provides findings of fact demonstrating support 

of the applicable policies in the above-mentioned chapter.  

Goal 8 – Implementation  

The concept plan shall consider the feasibility of implementation, including financing, construction, and 

phasing.  

Policy 8.2 – To facilitate and ensure implementation in accordance with the concept plan policies, 

annexation of properties within the Brookman Addition concept plan area may not occur until 

development code amendments are made to implement applicable policies, including but not limited to 

policy 4.4. 

Thorough review of policies and implementing ordinances revealed all concept plan policies are 

able to be implemented through existing development code standards. Policy 4.4 requires an 

applicant to “Identify a local connection to Redfern Drive as an ‘area of special concern.’ Identify 

the extension as appropriate for bicycle, pedestrian and emergency access only due to the 

constrain of the existing street design.” Redfern Drive is located in East Sub-Area of the Brookman 

Addition Concept Plan; however, the proposed annexation will occur in the Central Sub-Area. Any 

standards, goals, or policies related to Redfern Drive will not be applicable to the proposed 

annexation due to the significant distance between the territory and “area of special concern.” 

To the extent necessary, the proposed annexation supports this policy.  

Policy 8.2.a – Prior to or concurrent with annexation, and assignment of zoning of properties within the 

Brookman addition area, a plan shall be prepared and adopted by Council to ensure that necessary 

infrastructure improvements will be available and a funding mechanism or combination of funding 

mechanisms are in place for the necessary infrastructure improvements consistent with the funding 

options identified in the concept plan and in full compliance with the Transportation Planning Rule. The 

plan for annexation may address all or part of the concept plan area, subject to Council approval. 

Sherwood City Council adopted the Brookman Area Funding Plan on August 16, 2011, via 

Ordinance 2011-072. This plan identifies possible funding mechanisms for construction of 

necessary infrastructure improvements consistent with the funding options and concept plan 

design. The proposed annexation supports this policy.  

VI. Conclusion 
This application narrative and completed “Checklist for Annexation to the City of Sherwood” demonstrate 

that all applicable provisions of the Oregon Revised Statutes, Metro Code, and City of Sherwood 

Comprehensive Plan are satisfied to the extent necessary. Olivia Beach, LLC and Reece & Associates, Inc. 

respectfully request approval of this application for annexation.  

84



85



BROOKMAN

OB
ER

ST

3S106B000101
17687 SW BROOKMAN RD

2 AC

±0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

Legend
Subject Site
Taxlots
City Boundary
Urban Growth Boundary

Map data provided by METRO and the City of Sherwood. The
City of Sherwood's infrastructure records,drawings, and other
documents have been gathered over many years, using many
different formats and standards. While the data provided is
generally believed to be accurate, occasionally it proves to be
incorrect; thus its accuracy is not guaranteed.

City of Sherwood

Unincorporated Washington County

86



FOX RUNGALEWOOD
PINEHURST

PEARL

HARRISON

SWORDFERN

BROOKMAN

AS
PE

N
LA

KE
S SA

ND
ER

S

MIDDLE
TO

N

MAIDENFERN DODSON

GOLD
EN

 PO
ND

GREENGATE

COBBLE

OB
ER

ST

INKSTERLDR

LDR

LDRLDR

LDR

Unannex
Unannex

Unannex
Unannex UnannexUnannex

Unannex

Unannex

Unannex

Unannex

Unannex

Unannex

Unannex

MDRH
MDRH MDRH

MDRLMDRH

Unannex

MDRL

Unannex

Unannex

LDR

LDR_PUD LDR_PUDLDR_PUD

LDR_PUD
LDR_PUD

LDR_PUD

LDR_PUD

±
0 200 400 600 800100

Feet

Legend
Subject Site
Taxlots
City Boundary
Urban Growth Boundary

Map data provided by METRO and the City of Sherwood. The
City of Sherwood's infrastructure records,drawings, and other
documents have been gathered over many years, using many
different formats and standards. While the data provided is
generally believed to be accurate, occasionally it proves to be
incorrect; thus its accuracy is not guaranteed.

City of Sherwood

Unincorporated Washington County

87



88



89



Sliðñvood
Oregon

Hôûrc Qf the'nühi,' Nw Natiønlllíldljfe Rejqe

RESOLUTTON 2010-0r0

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN AN UPDATED URBAN
PLANNING AREA AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF SHERWOOD AND
WASHINGTON COUNTY

WHEREAS, Washington County and the City of Sherwood have had an Urban Planning
Area Agreement outlining procedures to be used to coordinate the comprehensive
planning activities of the COUNTY and the CITY since 1983; and

WHEREAS, the Urban Planning Area Agreement is to be renewed and modified every
two years, most recently in 2006 via Resolution 2006-037; and

WHEREAS, the area referred to as "Area 48" was brought into the Urban Growth
Boundary by Metro in 2004 and is adjacent to Sherwood City limits but was not included
in the 2006 Urban Planning Area Agreement update at that time; and

WHEREAS, ORS 190.010 provides that units of local governments may enter into
agreements for the performance of any or all functions and activities that a party to the
agreement, its officers and agents, have authority to perform; and

WHEREAS, Statewide Planning Goal #2 requires that the plans and actions of city,
county, state, and federal agencies and special districts shall be consistent with the
comprehensive plans of cities and counties as adopted under ORS Chapter 197; and

WHEREAS, the Oregon Land Conservation and Development Commission requires
each jurisdiction requesting acknowledgement of compliance to submit an agreement
setting forth the means by which comprehensive planning coordination within the
Regional Urban Growth Boundary will be implemented; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY and the CITY, to ensure coordinated and consistent
comprehensive plans, consider it mutually advantageous to establish:

1. A site-specific Urban Planning Area within the Regional Urban Growth
Boundary within which both the COUNTY and the CITY maintain an interest in
comprehensive planning; and

2. A process for coordinating
Urban Planning Area; and

Resolution 2010-010
March2.2010
Page I of 2 with Exhibit A (9 pgs)

comprehensive planning and development in the

90



3. Policies regarding comprehensive planning and development in the Urban
Planning Area; and

4. A process to amend the Urban Planning Area Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the CITY and Washington County have had a substantially similar
agreement for many years.

NOW, THEREFORE THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS;

Section 1. The Sherwood City Council supports the Urban Planning Area Agreement
and map attached as "Exhibit A".

Section 2. The City Council authorizes the Mayor to sign the agreement.

Section 3. Upon approval and signature of this agreement, the updated Urban Planning
Area Agreement shall become effective and an original copy shall be fonvarded to
Washington County.

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective upon passage and adoption.

Duly passed by the City Council on the 2nd day of March 2010.

ATTEST:

Resolution 2010-010
March 2,2010
Page 2 of 2 with Exhibit A (9 pgs)

Sylúia Murphy, CMC,

91



Resolution 2010-010, Exhibit A
March 2,2010
Page 1 of9

ßæ- q.- l1+?
Washington County - Cìty of Sherwood UPAA

Page I of9

lVashington County - Sherwood
Urban Planning Area Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by WASHINGTON COLINTY, apolitical subdivision of
the State of Oregon, hereinafterreferred to as the "COUNTY", and the CITY OF SHERWOOD,
an incorporated municipality of the State of Oregon, hereinafter referred to as the "CITY".

WHEREAS, ORS 190.010 provides th¿t units of local govemment may enter into agreements for
the performance of any or all functions and activities that a party to the agreement, its ofñcers or
agents, have authority to perform; and

WHEREAS, Statewide Planning Goal#2 (Land Use Pla¡ning) requires that City, County, State

and Federal agency and special dishict plans and actions shall be consistent with the
comprehensive plans of the cities and counties and regional plans adopted under ORS Chapter

I97; and

WHEREAS, the Oregon State Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC)
requires each jurisdiction requesting acknowledgment of compliance to submit an agreement

setting forth the means by which comprehensive pianning coordination within the Regional
Urban GrowthBoundary (UGB) will be implemented; and

\ryHEREAS, the CO(INTY and the CITY, to ensure coordinated and consistent comprehensive
plans, consider it mutually advantageous to establish:

An Urban Planning Area Agreement incorporating a site-specific Urban Planning Area
within the Regional UGB within which both the COUNTY and the CmY maintain an

interest in comprehensive planning;

A process for coordinating comprehensive plannþg and development in the Urban
Planning Area;

Policies regarding comprehensive planning and development in the Urban Plaruring Area;
and

4. A process to amend the Urban Planning Agreement,

IVHEREAS, Metro expanded the Regional UGB in December 2A02 and June 2004. LCDC
acknowledged the 2002 UGB expansion in July 2003 andthe 2004 expansion in July 2005; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY and CITY desire to amend the UPAA to reflect the changes in the

Regional UGB and the need for urban planning of the new urban land.

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use Ordinance 723

Adopted on October 27, 2009

t.

2.

3.

92



Resolution 2010-010, Exhibit A Washington County - City of Sherwood UPAA
March 2,2010 pase2ofg
Page 2 of 9

NOW THEREFORE. THE COTINTY AND THE CTTY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

L Location of the Urban Plannine A-rea

The Urban Planning Area mutually defined by the COLINTY and the CITY includes the
area designated on Exhibit'iA." to this agreement.

II. Coordination of Comurehensive Plar_rning and Development

A. Amendments to or Adoption of a Comprehensive Plan or Implementing Regulation.

L Definitions

Comprehensive Plan means a generalized, coordinated land use map and policy
statement of the goveming body of a local govemment that interrelates all
functional and natural systems and activities relating to the use of lands,
including, but not limited to, sewer and water systems, tansportation systems,
educational facilities, recreational facilities, and natural resources and air and
water quality management programs. o'Comprehensive Plan" amendments do not
include small tract comprehensive plan map changes.

For purposes of this agreement, Elechonic Mail (i.e., e-mail) means the
transmission of messages (including public hearing notices, agency comments or
other communications relating to this agreement) over communications networks
in an electronic form. Attachments, including public hearing notices and agency
comments, to an e-mail shall be formatted as a Microsoft Word document, a PDF
file or other format as agreed upon by the originating and responding agencies.

Implementing Rezulation means any local government zoningordinance, land
division ordinance adopted under ORS 92.044 or 92.046 or similar general

ordinance establishing standards for implementing a comprehensive plan.
"Implementing regulation" does not include small tract zontngmap amendments,
conditional use permits, individual subdivision, partitioning or planned unit
development approval or denials, annexations, variances, building permits and

similar administrative-type decisions.

2. The County shall provide the CITY with the appropriate opporrunity to
pafücipate, review and comment on proposed amendments to or adoption of the
COUNTY comprehensive plan or implementing regulations. The CITY shall
provide the COUNTY with the appropriate opportunity to participate, review and
comment on proposed amendments to or adoption of the CITY comprehensive
plan or implementing regulations. The following procedures shall be followed by
the COUNTY and the CITY to notify and involve one another in the process to
amend or adopt a comprehensive plan or implementing regulation.

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use Ordinance 723

Adopted on October 27,20t9

93



Resolut¡on 201 0-0 1 0, Exhibit A
March 2,2010
Page 3 of I

Washington County - Cþ of Sherwood UPAA
Page 3 of9

The CITY or the COUNTY, whichever has jurisdiction over the proposal,

hereinafter the originatin g ageîcy, shall notify the other agency, hereinafter
the responding agency, by first class mail or as an attachment to electronic
mail of the proposed action at the time such planning efforts are initiated, but
in no case less than forty-five (45) days prior to the final hearing on adoption.

The specific method and level of involvement shall be finalized by
"Memorandums of Understanding" negotiated and signed by the planning

directors of the CITY and the COUNTY. The "Memorandums of
Understanding" shall clearly outline the process by which the responding
agency shall participate in the adoption process. If; at the time of being
notified of a proposed action, the responding agency determines it does not
need to participate in the adoption process, it may waive the requirement to

negotiate and sign a'Memotandum of Understanding".

The originating agency shall transmit draft recommendations on any proposed

actions to the responding agency for its review and comment before frnalizing.
Unless otherwise agreed to in a "Memorandum of Understanding", the
responding agency shall have ten (10) days after receipt of a draft to submit
comments orally or in writing. Lack of response shall be considered "no
objection" to the drafr.

The originating agency shall respond to the comments made by the

responding agency either by a) revising the final recommendations, or b) by
letter to the responding agency explaining why the comments carurot be

addressed in the final draft.

Comments from the responding agency shall be given consideration as apart
of the public record on the proposed action. If after such consideration, the

originating agency acts contrary to the position of the responding agency, the

responding agencymay seek appeal of the action through the appropriate
appeals body and procedures.

Upon final adoption of the proposed action by the originating ageîcy, it shall

transmit the adopting ordinance to the responding agency as soon as publicly
available, or if not adopted by ordinance, whatever other written
documentation is available to properly inform the responding agency of the

final actions taken.

b.

d.

B. Development Actions Requiring krdividual Notice to Property Owners

1. Definition

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use Ordinance 723

Adopted on October 27,2009

94



Resolution 2010-010. Exhibit A
March 2.2010
Page 4 of 9

Washington County - City of Sherwood UPAA
Page 4 of9

Development Action Requiring Notice means an action by a local government

which requires notifuing by mail the owners of property which could potentially
be affected (usually specified as a distance measured in feet) by a proposed
development action which directly affects and is applied to a specific parcel or
parcels. Such development actions may include, but not be limited to small tract
zomng or comprehensive plan map amendments, conditional or special use
permits, individual subdivisions, partitionings or planned unit developments,
variances, and other similar actions requiring a hearings process which is quasi-
judicial in nature.

The COUNTY will provide the CITY with the opportunity to review and
comment on proposed development actions requiring notice within the designated
Urban Planning Area. The CmY will provide the COIINTY with the opportunity
to review and comment on proposed development actions requiring notice within
the CITY limits that may have an affect on unincorporated portions of the
designated Urban Planning Area.

The followingprocedures shall be followed by the COUNTY and the CITY to
notify one another of proposed development actions:

a. The CITY or the COUNTY, whichever has jurisdiction over the proposal,
hereinafter the originating agency, shall send by first class mail or as an

attachment to electronic mail a copy of the public hearing notice which
identifies the proposed development action to the other agency, hereinafter the
responding agency, at the earliest opportunity, but no less than ten (10) days
prior to the date of the scheduled public hearing. The failure of the responding
agency to receive a notice shall not invalidate an action if a good faith attempt
was made by the originating agency to notifu the responding agency.

The agency receiving the notice may respond at its discretion. Comments
may be submitted in written or electronic form or an oral response may be
made at the public hearing. Lack of written or oral response shall be
considered "no objection" to the proposal.

If received in a timely maruler, the originating agency shall include or attach
the comments to the written staff report and respond to any concerns
addressed by the responding agency in such report or orally at the hearing.

Comments from the reqponding agency shall be given consideration as a part
of the public record on the proposed action. If, after such consideration, the
originating agency acts contary to the position of the responding agenc¡ the
responding agency may seek appeal of the action through the appropriate
appeals body and procedures.

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use Ordinance 723

Adopted ot October 27, 20Ú9

2.

b.

c.

95



Resolution 2010-010, Exhibit A
March2.2010
Page 5 of 9

Wâshington County - City of Sherwood UPAA
Page 5 of9

e. The originating agency shall utilize tracking options to ensure that the
responding agerLcy receives the public hearing notice in a timely manner. In
the event that tracking indicates that the responding agency did not receive the
e-mailed notice within twenty-four (24) hours of being sent, the originating
agency shall send no later than the next business day a copy ofthe notice by
first class mail.

f. The originating and responding agencies shall keep copies of all electronic
mail as part of the public record consistent with state archive iaws.

C. Additional Coordination Requirements

1. The CITY and the COUNTY shall do the following to notify one another of
proposed actions which may affect the community, but are not subject to the
notification and participation requirements contained in subsections A and B
above.

The CITY or the COUNTY, whichever has jurisdiction over the proposed
actions, hereinafter the originating agency, shall send by first class mail or as

an attachment to electronic mail a copy of all public hearing agendas which
contain the proposed actions to the other agency, hereinafter the responding
agency, at the earliest opportunity, but no less than three (3) days prior to the
date of the scheduled public hearing. The failure of the responding agency to
receive an agenda shall not invaiidate an action if a good faith attempt was
made by the originating agency to noti$ the responding agency.

The agency receiving the public hearing agenda may respond at its discretion.
Comments may be submitted in written or electronic form or an oral response
may be made at the public hearing. Lack of written or oral response shall be
considered "no objection" to the proposal.

c. Comments from the responding agency shall be given consideration as apart
of the public record on the proposed action. It after such consideration, the
originating agency acts contrary to the position of the responding agency, the
responding agency may seek appeal of the action through the appropriate
appeals body and procedures.

Comprehensive Planning and Development Policies

A. Definition

Urban Planning Area means the incorporated area and certain unincorporated areas

contiguous to the incorporated area for which the CITY conducts comprehensive
planning and seeks to regulate development activities to the greatest extent possible.
The CITY Urban Planning A¡ea is designated on Exhibit "A".

Agreement amended by
Washinglon County Land Use Ordinance 723

Adopted on October 27,2009

b.

ilL

96



Resolution 2010-010, Exhibit A
March 2,2010
Page 6 of 9

Washington County - City of Sherwood UPAA
Page 6 of9

B. The CITY shall be responsible for comprehensive planning within the Urban
Planning Area.

C. The CITY shall be responsible for the preparation, adoption and amendment of the
public facility plan required by OAR 660-011 witlìin the Urban Pianning Area.

D. As required by OAR 660-011-0010, the CITY is identified as the appropriate
provider of local water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and ftansportation facilities
within the urban planning area. Exceptions include facilities provided by other
service providers subject to the terms of any intergovemmental agreement the CITY
may have with other service providers; facilities under the jurisdiction of other
service providers not covered by an intergovernmental agreement; and fufure
facilities that are more appropriately provided by an agency other than the CITY.

E. The COUNTY shall not approve land divisions within the unincorporated Urban
Planning Area that are inconsistent with the provisions of the Future Development 20

Acre District (FD-20).

F. The COIINTY shall not approve a development proposal in the Urban Planning Area
if the proposal would not provide for, nor be conditioned to provide for, an

enforceable plan for redevelopment to urban densities consistent with the CITY's
Comprehensive Plan in the future upon annexation to the CITY as indicated by the
CITY Comprehensive Plan.

G. The COUNTY will not oppose any anrrcxation of land to the City of Sherwood within
the CITY's Urban Planning Area.

rV. Amendments to the Urban Planning Area AÊreement

A. The following procedures shall be followed by the CITY and the COIINTY to amend

the language of this agreement or the Urban Planning Area Boundary:

1. The CITY or COUNTY, whichever jurisdiction originates the proposal, shall

submit a formal request for amendment to the responding ageftcy.

2. The formal request shall contain the following:

a. A statement describing the amendment.

b. A statement of findings indicating why the proposed amendment is necessary.

c. If the request is to amend the planning area boundary, a map that clearly
indicates the proposed change and surrounding area.

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use Ordinance 723

Adopted on Ocfober 27, 2009

97



Resolution 201 0-010, Exhibit A
March 2.2010
Page 7 of 9

Washington County - City of Sherwo;t"îåå

3. Upon receipt of a request for amendment from the originating agency, the

responding agency shall schedule a review ofthe request before the appropriate
reviewing body, with said review to be held within forty-five (45) days of the date

the request is received.

4. The CITY and COUNTY shall make good faith efforts to resolve requests to

amend this agreement. Upon completion of the review, the reviewing body may
approve the request, deny the request, or make a determination that the proposed

amendment warra¡rts additional review. If it is determined that additional review
is necessary, the following procedures shall be followed by the CITY and

COIINTYT

a. If inconsistencies noted by both parties cannot be resolved in the review
process as outlined in Section IV. A. (3), the CITY and the COIJNTY may
agree to initiate a joint study. Such a study shall commence within thirty (30)

days of the date it is determined that a proposed amendment creates an

inconsistency, and shall be completed within ninety (90) days of said date.

Methodologies and procedures regulating the conduct of the joint study shall
be mutually agreed upon by the CITY and the COLINTY prior to commencing
the study.

b, Upon completion of the joint study, the study and the recommendations drawn
from it shall be included within the record of the review. The agency

considering the proposed amendment shall give carefrrl consideration to the
study prior to making a final decision.

B. The parties will jointly review this Agreement every two (2) years, or more frequently
if mutually needed, to evaluate the effectiveness of the processes set forth herein and

to make any necessary amendments. The review process shall commence two (2)
years from the date of execution and shall be completed within sixty (60) days. Both
parties shall make a good faith effort to resolve any inconsistencies that may have

developed since the previous review. It after completion of the sixty (60) day review
period inconsistencies still remain, either party may terminate this Agreement.

V. This Agreement shall become effective upon full execution by the COTINTY and the
CITY and shall then repeal and replace the'Washington Corinty-Sherwood Urban
Planning Area Agreement effective November 20,2006. The effective date of this
Agreement shall be the last date of signature on the signature page.

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use Ordinance 723

Adopted on October 27, 2009

98



Resolution 201 0-01 0. Exhibit A
March 2. 2010
Page I of I

lùy'ashington County - City of Sherwood LIPAA
Page 8 of9

By

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this U¡ban Planning Area Agreement on the
date set opposite their signatures.

CMY OF SIMRWOOD

Date
Mayor

Date
CityRecorder

WASHINGTON COI-INTY

Date lâ'8-û

Approved as to Fonn:

By
Recording Secretary

Agreement amended by
Washington CounÇ Land Use Ordinance 723

Adopted on October 27 ,2009

lroatetâ-lrìoì

Date

AFîì{i1,' lii r'..,r,:i i ì ;ì\ a'; íi''ì Ci UiiT Y

BLìA-RD ilF CCivit'.'! ! 5Si'3N ERS

Ê,{*¡{JEE€*ÐER # Of¿ina.n ce rî A3
D.ÀTE

,Þ\1

99



Resolution 2010-010, Exhibit A
March 2, 2010
Page I of I

Washington County - City of Sherwood UpAA
Page 9 of9

Oty of Sheruood
URBAN PLANNING AREA

Washington County - Sherwood
Urban Planning Area Agreernent

EXHIBIT A

flSfreruooa UplA Eo undâry

ffi Courilyline

l---l cityot strenaooa

Eru Hi]'ffiuxf"lo 
u'o*

N

tl

*',sJs*, f, G3rlrrDltc
W::nç rnfo".¡lltû'%ìif $t¡tcnr

S(* .'æãgËñffiWëæMfttilõ!ffi
Ëj&&' db,*ù$.@b.?dR5ÆftÆ,
ædÞl@rM.*.cdffit!:¿èi¡ùd
@.threþ¿affilÈ*4?ãódÀ-.

ræ

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use Ordinance 723

Adopted on October 27, 2009

Clackamas County

100



101



102



±0 600 1,200 1,800 2,400300
Feet

Legend
Subject Site
Taxlots
City Boundary
Urban Growth Boundary

Map data provided by METRO and the City of Sherwood. The
City of Sherwood's infrastructure records,drawings, and other
documents have been gathered over many years, using many
different formats and standards. While the data provided is
generally believed to be accurate, occasionally it proves to be
incorrect; thus its accuracy is not guaranteed.

City of Sherwood

Unincorporated Washington County

103



104



WORKSHEET FOR ANNEXATION TO THE CITY OF SHERWOOD  
Please list all properties/registered voters included in the proposal. (If needed, use separate sheets for additional listings.) 
 

**Property Information** (ALL METHODS) 
 PROPERTY 

DESIGNATION  
(Tax Lot Numbers) 

NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER TOTAL 
ACRES 

ASSESSED VALUE OF 
THE PROPERTY 

SIGNED 
PETITION 
YES NO 

       
       
       
       
       
       
Totals:       

 
**Registered Voters** (DOUBLE MAJORITY METHOD ONLY) 

 
ADDRESS OF REGISTERED VOTER NAME OF REGISTERED VOTER 

SIGNED 
PETITION 
YES NO 

     
     
     
     
     
     
Totals:     

**Summary** 
 TOTAL NUMBER OF REGISTERED VOTERS IN THE PROPOSAL: _____ 

NUMBER OF REGISTERED VOTERS WHO SIGNED PETITION:_____  
PERCENTAGE OF REGISTERED VOTERS WHO SIGNED PETITION:_____  

TOTAL ACREAGE IN THE PROPOSAL:_____  
ACREAGE SIGNED FOR:_____  

 

PERCENTAGE OF ACREAGE SIGNED FOR:_____  
TOTAL NUMBER OF SINGLE-FAMILY UNITS:_____  

TOTAL NUMBER OF MULTI-FAMILY UNITS:_____  
TOTAL NUMBER OF COMMERCIAL STRUCTURES:_____  

TOTAL NUMBER OF INDUSTRIAL STRUCTURES:_____ 
 105



ANNEXATION QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

It is the applicant’s responsibility to obtain the information requested on the attached annexation 
questionnaire. The information is used by the Center for Population Research and Census 
(CPRC) at Portland State University to update the estimate of the population for the City of 
Sherwood after annexations.  
 
The information collected is confidential and is used for no other purpose. Please obtain the 
information prior to submitting the annexation petition. It is your responsibility to update this 
information if changes are made between the original application filing and the effective date of 
the application.  
 
Fill out one sheet per property that is being annexed.  
 
Address:__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Housing type:  

Single-family home  
Multi-family residence  
Manufactured home  

 
Occupancy:  

Owner occupied  
Renter occupied  
Vacant  
Seasonal  

 
Resident Information: 
Last Name  

First Name  Sex  Age  
 

LAST NAME FIRST NAME SEX AGE 
 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
  

106



BOUNDARY CHANGE DATA SHEET 
 
  I. EXISTING CONDITIONS IN AREA TO BE ANNEXED OR WITHDRAWN_________________ 
 
 A. General location: ________________________________________________________ 
 
 B. Land Area: Acres ___________________ or Square Miles ___________________ 
 
 C. General description of territory.  (Include topographic features such as slopes, 

vegetation, drainage basins, floodplain areas, which are pertinent to this proposal.) 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 D. Describe Land uses on surrounding parcels.  Use tax lots as reference points. 
 
  North:  ________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  East: __________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  South: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  West: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 E. Existing Land Use: 
 
  Number of single-family units ______  Number of multi-family units ______ 
 
  Number of commercial structures ______ Number of industrial structures ______ 
 
  Public facilities or other uses _______________________________________________ 
 
  What is the current use the land proposed to be annexed: ________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 F. Total current year Assessed Valuation:  $_____________________________________ 
 
 G. Total existing population:  _________________________________________________ 

107



II. REASON FOR BOUNDARY CHANGE____________________________________________ 
 
 A. The Metro Code spells out criteria for consideration (Metro Code 3.09.050).  Considering 

these criteria, please provide the reasons the proposed boundary change should be 
made.  Please be very specific.  Use additional pages if necessary. 

 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 B. If the property to be served is entirely or substantially undeveloped, what are the plans 

for future development?  Be specific.  Describe type (residential, industrial, commercial, 
etc.), density, etc. 

 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
III. LAND USE AND PLANNING____________________________________________________ 
 
 A. Is the subject territory inside or outside of the Metro Regional Urban Growth Boundary?   
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 

 
B. What is the applicable County Planning Designation?  ___________________________ 

  Or City Planning Designation?  _____________________________________________ 

Does the proposed development comply with applicable regional, county or city 
comprehensive plans?  Please describe. 

 

  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 

  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 C. What is the zoning on the territory to be served? 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 D. Can the proposed development be accomplished under current county zoning? 
 
  _____ Yes     _____ No 
 

 If No, has a zone change been sought from the county either formally or informally? 
  _____ Yes     _____ No 

Please describe outcome of zone change request if answer to previous questions was Yes.  

__________________________________________________________________ 

108



 E. Please indicate all permits and/or approvals from a City, County or Regional 
Government which will be needed for the proposed development.  If already granted, 
please indicate date of approval and identifying number: 

 
 

APPROVAL 
PROJECT 
FILE NO. 

DATE OF 
APPROVAL 

FUTURE 
REQUIREMENT 

Metro UGB Amendment    
City of County Plan Amendment    
Pre-Application Hearing (City or 
County) 

   

Preliminary Subdivision Approval    
Final Plat Approval    
Land Partition    
Conditional Use    
Variance    
Sub-Surface Sewage Disposal    
Building Permit    

 
Please submit copies of proceedings relating to any of the above permits or approvals 
which are pertinent to the annexation. 

 
 F. If a city and/or county-sanctioned citizens’ group exists in the area of the annexation, 

please list its name and address of a contact person. 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
IV. SERVICES AND UTILITIES_____________________________________________________ 
 
 A. Please indicate the following: 
 
  1. Location and size of nearest water line that can serve the subject area. 
 
   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
  2. Location and size of nearest sewer line which can serve the subject area. 
 
   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
   __________________________________________________________________ 
 

 3. Proximity of other facilities (storm drains, fire engine companies, etc.) which can 
serve the subject area. 

 

   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 

109



  4. The time at which services can be reasonably provided by the city or district. 
 
   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

  5. The estimated cost of extending such facilities and/or services and what is to be the 
method of financing.  (Attach any supporting documents.) 

 
   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
  6. Availability of desired service from any other unit of local government.  (Please 

indicate the government.) 
 

   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 B. If the territory described in the proposal is presently included within the boundaries of or 

being served extraterritorially or contractually by, any of the following types of 
governmental units please so indicate by stating the name or names of the 
governmental units involved. 

 
  City ____________________________ Rural Fire Dist.  ________________________ 
 

  County Service Dist. _______________ Sanitary District ________________________ 
 
  Hwy. Lighting Dist. ________________ Water District __________________________ 
 
  Grade School Dist. ________________ Drainage District ________________________ 
 
  High School Dist. __________________ Diking District __________________________ 
 
  Library Dist. ______________________ Park & Rec. Dist. ________________________ 
 
  Special Road Dist._________________ Other District Supplying 
                Water Service ________________________ 
 
 

C. If any of the above units are presently servicing the territory (for instance, are residents 
in the territory hooked up to a public sewer or water system), please so describe. 

 

  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 

110



V. APPLICANT INFORMATION____________________________________________________ 
 
APPLICANT’S NAME __________________________________________________________ 
 
MAILING ADDRESS __________________________________________________________ 
 
      __________________________________________________________ 
 
      __________________________________________________________ 
 
TELEPHONE NUMBER __________________________________________________ (Work) 
 
       __________________________________________________ (Res.) 
 
REPRESENTING _____________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  

111



Date of Production: 10/26/2020

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF INFORMATION REPORTS

IMPORTANT - READ CAREFULLY: AN INFORMATION REPORT IS 
NOT AN INSURED PRODUCT OR SERVICE OR A REPRESENTATION 
OF THE CONDITION OF TITLE TO REAL PROPERTY. IT IS NOT AN 
ABSTRACT, LEGAL OPINION, OPINION OF TITLE, TITLE INSURANCE 
COMMITMENT OR PRELIMINARY REPORT, OR ANY FORM OF TITLE 
INSURANCE OR GUARANTY. THE INFORMATION REPORT IS ISSUED 
EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE REQUESTOR, AND MAY 
NOT BE USED OR RELIED UPON BY ANY OTHER PERSON. THE 
INFORMATION REPORT MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY 
MANNER WITHOUT FIRST AMERICAN TITLE’S PRIOR WRITTEN 
CONSENT. FIRST AMERICAN TITLE DOES NOT REPRESENT OR 
WARRANT THAT THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE 
INFORMATION REPORT IS COMPLETE OR FREE FROM ERROR, AND 
THE INFORMATION THEREIN IS PROVIDED WITHOUT ANY 
WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, AS-IS, AND WITH ALL FAULTS. AS A 
MATERIAL PART OF THE CONSIDERATION GIVEN IN EXCHANGE 
FOR THE ISSUANCE OF AN INFORMATION REPORT, REQUESTOR 
AGREES THAT FIRST AMERICAN TITLE’S SOLE LIABILITY FOR ANY 
LOSS OR DAMAGE CAUSED BY AN ERROR OR OMISSION DUE TO 
INACCURATE INFORMATION OR NEGLIGENCE IN PREPARING THE 
INFORMATION REPORT SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE GREATOR OF 
THE FEE CHARGED FOR THE INFORMATION REPORT OR $15. 
REQUESTOR ACCEPTS THE INFORMATION REPORT WITH THIS 
LIMITATION AND AGREES THAT FIRST AMERICAN TITLE WOULD 
NOT HAVE ISSUED THE INFORMATION REPORT BUT FOR THE 
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY DESCRIBED ABOVE. FIRST AMERICAN 
TITLE MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO THE 
LEGALITY OR PROPRIETY OF REQUESTOR’S USE OF THE 
INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE INFORMATION REPORT.

112



Sherwood, OR 97140
22560 SW Pine St
Sherwood City Of
2S131CD-01300

Sherwood, OR 97140
22560 SW Pine St
Sherwood City Of
2S131CD-07000

Sherwood, OR 97140
17786 SW Inkster Dr
Matthew & Amanda Kaufman
2S131CD-15400

Sherwood, OR 97140
17764 SW Inkster Dr
Keith & Joyce Yam
2S131CD-15500

Sherwood, OR 97140
17752 SW Inkster Dr
Barbara Morgan
2S131CD-15600

Sherwood, OR 97140
17734 SW Inkster Dr
Johnson Carol Ann Rev Trust
2S131CD-15700

Sherwood, OR 97140
17470 SW Cobble Ct
Anthony & Kimberly Budesilich
2S131DC-10400

Sherwood, OR 97140
17484 SW Cobble Ct
Ryan & Holly Krause
2S131DC-10500

Sherwood, OR 97140
17961 SW Bridger Ln
Paul & Sarah Billeci
2S131DC-10600

Vancouver, WA 98666
Po Box 61426
Brookman Development Llc
3S10600-00103

Sherwood, OR 97140
17433 SW Brookman Rd
Linda & Richard Scott
3S10600-00104

Sherwood, OR 97140
17400 SW Brookman Rd
Philip & Nancy Lapp
3S10600-00200

Vancouver, WA 98666
Po Box 61426
Brookman Development Llc
3S106B0-00100

Sherwood, OR 97140
17687 SW Brookman Rd
Thomas & Marie Bartlett
3S106B0-00101

Tualatin, OR 97062
Po Box 85
Boyd George W Rev Living Trust & Brewer 
3S106B0-00200

Sherwood, OR 97140
24661 SW Oberst Rd
Kevin Durrell & Stephanie Garrison
3S106B0-00300

Portland, OR 97224
16121 SW 129th Ter
Leroy Moser & Delores Fam T
3S106B0-00302

Sherwood, OR 97140
17636 SW Brookman Rd
Thomas & Kristina Herold
3S106B0-00303

Sherwood, OR 97140
17878 SW Brookman Rd
Michael & Pamela Fullmer
3S106B0-00400

Sherwood, OR 97140
17890 SW Brookman Rd
Jason Higgins & Judith Mcquade-Higgins
3S106B0-00500

Sherwood, OR 97140
17890 SW Brookman Rd
Jason Higgins & Judith Mcquade-Higgins
3S106B0-00500

Sherwood, OR 97140
17982 SW Brookman Rd
Walter & Rebecca Kluser
3S106B0-00600

Sherwood, OR 97140
Po Box 781
Carol Zarzana
3S106B0-00700

Sherwood, OR 97140
Po Box 781
Carol Zarzana
3S106B0-00800

Sherwood, OR 97140
Po Box 426
Snider Family Trust
3S106B0-01301

Sherwood, OR 97140
Po Box 1256
Susan Bryant
3S106B0-01302

Sherwood, OR 97140
24895 SW Oberst Rd
Wendy & Lawrence Wells
3S106B0-01401

Sherwood, OR 97140
24799 SW Oberst Rd
Kenneth & Leslie Kolb
3S106B0-01402

Sherwood, OR 97140
17354 SW Galewood Dr
Cesar & Zulma Rey
3S106B0-04000

Sherwood, OR 97140
24800 SW Labrousse Rd
Cesar & Zulma Rey
3S106B0-04000

113



Salem, OR 97301
700 Summer St NE
Oregon State Of
3S106B0-04000

Sherwood, OR 97140
18000 SW Harrison St
James & Karly Wright
3S106BB-00100

Tualatin, OR 97062
Po Box 397
Jerry & Elisabeth Clark
3S106BB-01100

Portland, OR 97223
10800 SW North Dakota St
Donald & Joann Randall
3S106BB-02500

Portland, OR 97223
10800 SW North Dakota St
Donald & Joann Randall
3S106BB-02500

Sherwood, OR 97140
18063 SW Brookman Rd
Larry Skoglund & Marie Mason-Skoglund
3S106BB-02501

Sherwood, OR 97140
18025 SW Brookman Rd
Bradley Miller
3S106BB-02502

Tualatin, OR 97062
Po Box 397
Jerry & Elisabeth Clark
3S106BB-02590

114



10/26/2020Report Generated:

17687 SW Brookman Rd, Sherwood, OR 97140

1000 ft Buffer

The present data and maps are intended for informational purposes only. Some information has been procured from third-party
sources and has not been independently verified.  Individual parts are owned by their respective copyright owners and not by First

American. First American Title Company makes no express or implied warranty respecting the information presented and assumes no
responsibility for errors or omissions.

115



  

 

First American Title Insurance Company 
 
121 SW Morrison Street, Suite 300  

Portland, OR 97204 
Phn - (503)222-3651    (800)929-3651 

Fax - (877)242-3513 

  

 

This report is for the exclusive use of the parties herein shown and is preliminary to the issuance of a 
title insurance policy and shall become void unless a policy is issued, and the full premium paid. 

Order No.: 7000-3520519  
July 24, 2020 

FOR QUESTIONS REGARDING YOUR CLOSING, PLEASE CONTACT:  
CANDACE BROWN, Escrow Officer/Closer 

Phone: (503)350-5005 -  Fax: (866)656-1602- Email:canbrown@firstam.com 
First American Title Insurance Company 

5335 SW Meadows Road, Suite 100, Lake Oswego, OR 97035 

FOR ALL QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS PRELIMINARY REPORT, PLEASE CONTACT: 
Sarah Walters, Title Officer 

Toll Free: (800)929-3651 - Direct: (503)790-7857 - Email: sawalters@firstam.com 

 Preliminary Title Report 
  

County Tax Roll Situs Address: 17687 SW Brookman Road, Sherwood, OR 97140 

  
2006 ALTA Owners Standard Coverage   Liability $ 1,100,000.00 Premium $ 2,250.00   
2006 ALTA Owners Extended Coverage   Liability $  Premium $     
2006 ALTA Lenders Standard Coverage   Liability $  Premium $    
2006 ALTA Lenders Extended Coverage  Liability $ 990,000.00 Premium $ 726.00   
Endorsement 9.10, 22 & 8.1        Premium $ 100.00   
  

  
Govt Service Charge  Cost $  
  
  
City Lien/Service District Search Cost $  
  

  
Other  Cost $   
  

Proposed Insured Lender:  Lender To Be Determined   

Proposed Borrower:  Olivia Beach LLC or Assigns 

We are prepared to issue Title Insurance Policy or Policies of First American Title Insurance Company, a 
Nebraska Corporation in the form and amount shown above, insuring title to the following described 
land: 

The land referred to in this report is described in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

and as of July 10, 2020 at 8:00 a.m., title to the fee simple estate is vested in:  

Thomas R. Bartlett and Marie A. Bartlett, as tenants by the entirety 

Subject to the exceptions, exclusions, and stipulations which are ordinarily part of such Policy form and 
the following: 

116



  
Preliminary Report Order No.: 7000-3520519 
  Page 2 of 10 
  

 

First American Title 

1. Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority 
that levies taxes or assessments on real property or by the public records; proceedings 

by  a  public  agency  which may  result  in  taxes  or assessments, or notices of such proceedings, 
whether or not shown by the records of such agency or by the public records. 

2. Facts, rights, interests or claims which are not shown by the public records but which could be 
ascertained by an inspection of the land or by making inquiry of persons in possession thereof. 

3. Easements, or claims of easement, not shown by the public records; reservations or exceptions in 
patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof; water rights, claims or title to water. 

4. Any encroachment (of existing improvements located on the subject land onto adjoining land or of 
existing improvements located on adjoining land onto the subject land), encumbrance, violation, 
variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the title that would be disclosed by an accurate and 
complete land survey of the subject land.  

5. Any lien, or right to a lien, for services, labor, material, equipment rental or workers compensation 
heretofore or hereafter furnished, imposed by law and not shown by the public records. 

The exceptions to coverage 1-5 inclusive as set forth above will remain on any subsequently 
issued Standard Coverage Title Insurance Policy. 
  
In order to remove these exceptions to coverage in the issuance of an Extended Coverage 
Policy the following items are required to be furnished to the Company; additional 
exceptions to coverage may be added upon review of such information: 
  

A. Survey or alternative acceptable to the company 
B. Affidavit regarding possession 
C. Proof that there is no new construction or remodeling of any improvement 

located on the premises. In the event of new construction or remodeling the 
following is required: 
i. Satisfactory evidence that no construction liens will be filed; or 
ii. Adequate security to protect against actual or potential construction 

liens; 
iii. Payment of additional premiums as required by the Industry Rate Filing 

approved by the Insurance Division of the State of Oregon 

6. Water rights, claims to water or title to water, whether or not such rights are a matter of public 
record. 

  

7. Taxes for the fiscal year 2020-2021  a lien due, but not yet payable 

8. Restrictive Covenant to Waive Remonstrance, pertaining to Customarily (commonly) accepted farm or 
forestry practices including the terms and provisions thereof 
  
Recorded: July 27, 1987 as Fee No. 87038434 
  

9. Deed of Trust and the terms and conditions thereof. 
Grantor/Trustor: Thomas R Bartlett, Marie A Bartlett 
Grantee/Beneficiary: Bank of America, NA  
Trustee: Chicago Title  
Amount: $125,000.00  
Recorded: May 02, 2007  
Recording Information:  Fee No. 2007 049243   
  

117

https://ep.firstam.com/meta/index?m=0d05aaa4-d961-4411-baff-0ac773286aa1&q=LvpvAcyptlNRVMYjuyHYbWwkkcypt9yBeiaeyptShQuo8oBjJwEc%3D&h=cb5e7ae4-3e49-48f7-84d4-8ce0cc5b3818
https://ep.firstam.com/meta/index?m=0d05aaa4-d961-4411-baff-0ac773286aa1&q=LvpvAcyptlNRVMYjuyHYbWwkjVuVaqdeypthzs8uZrykgK5Ho%3D&h=5b6f6d72-57f8-460b-bd71-0f559c6b7f12


  
Preliminary Report Order No.: 7000-3520519 
  Page 3 of 10 
  

 

First American Title 

Note:  This Deed of Trust contains Line of Credit privileges.  If the current balance owing on 
said obligation is to be paid in full in the forthcoming transaction, confirmation should be made that 

the beneficiary will issue a proper request for full reconveyance. 
 

The lien of said Deed of Trust was subordinated to the lien of the instrument recorded October 02, 
2017 as Fee No. 2017 077535 by agreement recorded October 04, 2017 as Fee No. 2017 078367 . 

10. Deed of Trust and the terms and conditions thereof. 
Grantor/Trustor: Thomas R. Bartlett and Marie A. Bartlett, husband and wife 
Grantee/Beneficiary: Bank of America, N.A.  
Trustee: ReconTrust Company, N.A.  
Amount: $174,800.00  
Recorded: October 02, 2017  
Recording Information:  Fee No. 2017 077535   
  

- END OF EXCEPTIONS - 
 

NOTE:  We find no matters of public record against Olivia Beach LLC that will take priority over any trust 
deed, mortgage or other security instrument given to purchase the subject real property as established 
by ORS 18.165. 

NOTE:  Taxes for the year 2019-2020 PAID IN FULL  
  
Tax Amount: $4,384.29 
Map No.: 3S106B000101 
Property ID: R586440 

Tax Code No.: 088.14 
  

NOTE:  According to the public record, the following deed(s) affecting the property herein described have 
been recorded within  24  months of the effective date of this report:  NONE  

NOTE:  Washington County Ordinance No. 267, filed August 5, 1982 in Washington County, Oregon, 
imposes a tax of $1.00 per $1,000.00 or fraction thereof on the transfer of real property located within 
Washington County. 
  
Certain conveyances may be exempt from said ordinance, in which case, Washington County will require 
a correct and timely filing of an Affidavit of Exemption.  For all deeds/conveyance documents which are 
recorded (including situations to meet lender requirements) either the transfer tax must be paid or 
affidavit acceptable to the County must be filed. 

THANK YOU FOR CHOOSING FIRST AMERICAN TITLE! 
WE KNOW YOU HAVE A CHOICE! 

118

https://ep.firstam.com/meta/index?m=0d05aaa4-d961-4411-baff-0ac773286aa1&q=LvpvAcyptlNRVMYjuyHYbWwkiCY2jiaEetJe6zySjlj9nA%3D&h=aaca4e58-73b7-4d48-b71e-215204880b4a
https://ep.firstam.com/meta/index?m=0d05aaa4-d961-4411-baff-0ac773286aa1&q=LvpvAcyptlNRVMYjuyHYbWwkiCY2jiaEetJe6zySjlj9nA%3D&h=aaca4e58-73b7-4d48-b71e-215204880b4a
https://ep.firstam.com/meta/index?m=0d05aaa4-d961-4411-baff-0ac773286aa1&q=LvpvAcyptlNRVMYjuyHYbWwkuyz8uRPucyptmgBXh037NEClI%3D&h=431768f7-0c2a-4c02-8d0e-e7fb1e3163a8


  
Preliminary Report Order No.: 7000-3520519 
  Page 4 of 10 
  

 

First American Title 

  
  

      RECORDING INFORMATION 
        
Filing Address:     Washington County 
      161 NW Adams Avenue, Suite 103 
      Hillsboro, OR 97124 
        
Recording Fees: $ 81.00  First Page 

       (Comprised of: 

       $ 5.00 per page 

       $ 5.00 per document - Public Land Corner Preservation Fund 

       $ 11.00 per document - OLIS Assessment & Taxation Fee 

       $ 60.00 per document - Oregon Housing Alliance Fee) 

  $ 5.00  E-Recording fee per document 
  $ 5.00  for each additional page 
  $ 5.00  for each additional document title, if applicable 
  $ 20.00  Non-Standard Document fee, if applicable 

 

  

  

119



  
Preliminary Report Order No.: 7000-3520519 
  Page 5 of 10 
  

 

First American Title 

 

First American Title Insurance Company 

SCHEDULE OF EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE 

ALTA LOAN POLICY (06/17/06) 
The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy, and the Company will not pay loss or damage, costs, attorneys' fees, or 
expenses that arise by reason of: 
1. (a) Any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to building and zoning) restricting, regulating, prohibiting, or 

relating to 
  (i) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land; 
  (ii) the character, dimensions, or location of any improvement erected on the Land; 
  (iii) the subdivision of land; or 
  (iv) environmental protection; 

or the effect of any violation of these laws, ordinances, or governmental regulations. This Exclusion 1(a) does not modify or limit the coverage 
provided under Covered Risk 5. 

 (b) Any governmental police power. This Exclusion 1(b) does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 6. 
2. Rights of eminent domain. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 7 or 8. 
3. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, or other matters 
 (a) created, suffered, assumed, or agreed to by the Insured Claimant; 
 (b) not Known to the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at Date of Policy, but Known to the Insured Claimant and not disclosed in writing to 

the Company by the Insured Claimant prior to the date the Insured Claimant became an Insured under this policy; 
 (c) resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured Claimant; 
 (d) attaching or created subsequent to Date of Policy (however, this does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 11, 13, or 14); 

or 
 (e) resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if the Insured Claimant had paid value for the Insured Mortgage. 
4. Unenforceability of the lien of the Insured Mortgage because of the inability or failure of an Insured to comply with applicable doing-business laws of the 

state where the Land is situated. 
5. Invalidity or unenforceability in whole or in part of the lien of the Insured Mortgage that arises out of the transaction evidenced by the Insured Mortgage 

and is based upon usury or any consumer credit protection or truth-in-lending law. 
6. Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws, that the transaction creating the lien of the 

Insured Mortgage, is 
 (a) a fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer, or 
 (b) a preferential transfer for any reason not stated in Covered Risk 13(b) of this policy. 
7. Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed by governmental authority and created or attaching between Date of Policy and the 

date of recording of the Insured Mortgage in the Public Records. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 11(b). 
 

ALTA OWNER’S POLICY (06/17/06) 
The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy, and the Company will not pay loss or damage, costs, attorneys' fees, or 
expenses that arise by reason of: 
1. (a) Any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to building and zoning) restricting, regulating, prohibiting, or 

relating to 

  (i) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land; 
  (ii) the character, dimensions, or location of any improvement erected on the Land; 
  (iii) the subdivision of land; or 
  (iv) environmental protection; 
 or the effect of any violation of these laws, ordinances, or governmental regulations. This Exclusion 1(a) does not modify or limit the coverage provided 

under Covered Risk 5. 
 (b) Any governmental police power. This Exclusion 1(b) does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 6. 
2. Rights of eminent domain. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 7 or 8. 
3. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, or other matters 
 (a) created, suffered, assumed, or agreed to by the Insured Claimant; 
 (b) not Known to the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at Date of Policy, but Known to the Insured Claimant and not disclosed in writing to 

the Company by the Insured Claimant prior to the date the Insured Claimant became an Insured under this policy; 
 (c) resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured Claimant; 
 (d) attaching or created subsequent to Date of Policy (however, this does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risks 9 and 10); or 
 (e) resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if the Insured Claimant had paid value for the Title. 
4. Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws, that the transaction vesting the Title as 

shown in Schedule A, is 
 (a) a fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer; or 
 (b) a preferential transfer for any reason not stated in Covered Risk 9 of this policy. 
5. Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed by governmental authority and created or attaching between Date of Policy and the 

date of recording of the deed or other instrument of transfer in the Public Records that vests Title as shown in Schedule A. 
 

SCHEDULE OF STANDARD EXCEPTIONS 
1. Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes or assessments on real property or 

by the public records; proceedings by a public agency which may result in taxes or assessments, or notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown 
by the records of such agency or by the public records. 

2. Facts, rights, interests or claims which are not shown by the public records but which could be ascertained by an inspection of the land or by making 
inquiry of persons in possession thereof. 

3.  Easements, or claims of easement, not shown by the public records; reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof; 
water rights, claims or title to water.  

4. Any encroachment (of existing improvements located on the subject land onto adjoining land or of existing improvements 
located on adjoining land onto the subject land), encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the title 
that would be disclosed by an accurate and complete land survey of the subject land.  

5. Any lien" or right to a lien, for services, labor, material, equipment rental or workers compensation heretofore or hereafter  
furnished, imposed by law and not shown by the public records. 

 
 NOTE:  A SPECIMEN COPY OF THE POLICY FORM (OR FORMS) WILL BE FURNISHED UPON REQUEST TI 149 Rev. 7-22-08 

 

  

120



 

 

 
 

Privacy Notice 
 

Effective: January 1, 2020 
 

Notice Last Updated: January 1, 2020 
 

This Privacy Notice describes how First American Financial Corporation and its subsidiaries and affiliates (together 
referred to as “First American,” “we,” “us,” or “our”) collect, use, store, and share your information. This Privacy Notice 
applies to information we receive from you offline only, as well as from third parties. For more information about our 
privacy practices, please visit https://www.firstam.com/privacy-policy/index.html. The practices described in this Privacy 
Notice are subject to applicable laws in the places in which we operate. 
 

What Type Of Information Do We Collect About You? We collect both personal and non-personal information 
about and from you. Personal information is non-public information that can be used to directly or indirectly identify or 
contact you. Non-personal information is any other type of information. 
 

How Do We Collect Your Information? We collect your personal and non-personal information: (1) directly from 
you; (2) automatically when you interact with us; and (3) from third parties, including business parties and affiliates. 
 

How Do We Use Your Information? We may use your personal information in a variety of ways, including but not 
limited to providing the services you have requested, fulfilling your transactions, comply with relevant laws and our 
policies, and handling a claim. We may use your non-personal information for any purpose. 
 

How Do We Share Your Personal Information? We do not sell your personal information to nonaffiliated third 
parties. We will only share your personal information, including to subsidiaries, affiliates, and to unaffiliated third 
parties: (1) with your consent; (2) in a business transfer; (3) to service providers; and (4) for legal process and 
protection. If you have any questions about how First American shares your personal information, you may contact us 
at dataprivacy@firstam.com or toll free at 1-866-718-0097. 
 

How Do We Secure Your Personal Information? The security of your personal information is important to us. 
That is why we take commercially reasonable steps to make sure your personal information is protected. We use our 
best efforts to maintain commercially reasonable technical, organizational, and physical safeguards, consistent with 
applicable law, to protect your personal information. 
 

How Long Do We Keep Your Personal Information? We keep your personal information for as long as necessary 
in accordance with the purpose for which it was collected, our business needs, and our legal and regulatory obligations. 
 

Your Choices We provide you the ability to exercise certain controls and choices regarding our collection, use, storage, 
and sharing of your personal information. In accordance with applicable law, your controls and choices. You can learn 
more about your choices, and exercise these controls and choices, by sending an email to dataprivacy@firstam.com or 
toll free at 1-866-718-0097. 
 

International Jurisdictions: Our Products are hosted and offered in the United States of America (US), and are subject 
to US federal, state, and local law. If you are accessing the Products from another country, please be advised that you 
may be transferring your personal information to us in the US, and you consent to that transfer and use of your 
personal information in accordance with this Privacy Notice. You also agree to abide by the applicable laws of 
applicable US federal, state, and local laws concerning your use of the Products, and your agreements with us. 
 

We may change this Privacy Notice from time to time. Any and all changes to this Privacy Notice will be reflected on this 
page, and where appropriate provided in person or by another electronic method. YOUR CONTINUED USE, ACCESS, 
OR INTERACTION WITH OUR PRODUCTS OR YOUR CONTINUED COMMUNICATIONS WITH US AFTER THIS 
NOTICE HAS BEEN PROVIDED TO YOU WILL REPRESENT THAT YOU HAVE READ AND UNDERSTOOD THIS 
PRIVACY NOTICE. 
 

Contact Us dataprivacy@firstam.com or toll free at 1-866-718-0097. 
 

 
 
 
 

© 2019 First American Financial Corporation and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved. NYSE:FAF 
 

Form 10-PRIVACY19 (1-10-20) Page 1 of 3 Privacy Notice (2019 First American Financial Corporation) 

  

121

https://www.firstam.com/privacy-policy/index.html


 

 

 
 

For California Residents 
 

If you are a California resident, you may have certain rights under California law, including but not limited to the 
California Consumer Privacy Act of 2018 (“CCPA”). All phrases used in this section shall have the same meaning as those 
phrases are used under California law, including the CCPA. 
 

Right to Know. You have a right to request that we disclose the following information to you: (1) the categories of 
personal information we have collected about or from you; (2) the categories of sources from which the personal 
information was collected; (3) the business or commercial purpose for such collection and/or disclosure of your personal 
information; (4) the categories of third parties with whom we have shared your personal information; and (5) the 
specific pieces of your personal information we have collected. To submit a verified request for this information, go to 
our online privacy policy at www.firstam.com/privacy-policy to submit your request or call toll-free at 1-866-718-0097. 
You may also designate an authorized agent to submit a request on your behalf by going to our online privacy policy at 
www.firstam.com/privacy-policy to submit your request or by calling toll-free at 1-866-718-0097 and submitting written 
proof of such authorization to dataprivacy@firstam.com.  
 

Right of Deletion. You also have a right to request that we delete the personal information we have collected from 
you. This right is subject to certain exceptions available under the CCPA and other applicable law. To submit a verified 
request for deletion, go to our online privacy policy at www.firstam.com/privacy-policy to submit your request or call toll-
free at 1-866-718-0097. You may also designate an authorized agent to submit a request on your behalf by going to our 
online privacy policy at www.firstam.com/privacy-policy to submit your request or by calling toll-free at 1-866-718-0097 
and submitting written proof of such authorization to dataprivacy@firstam.com.  
 

Verification Process. For either a request to know or delete, we will verify your identity before responding to your 
request. To verify your identity, we will generally match the identifying information provided in your request with the 
information we have on file about you. Depending on the sensitivity of the personal information requested, we may also 
utilize more stringent verification methods to verify your identity, including but not limited to requesting additional 
information from you and/or requiring you to sign a declaration under penalty of perjury. 
 

Right to Opt-Out. We do not sell your personal information to third parties, and do not plan to do so in the future. 
 

Right of Non-Discrimination. You have a right to exercise your rights under California law, including under the CCPA, 
without suffering discrimination. Accordingly, First American will not discriminate against you in any way if you choose to 
exercise your rights under the CCPA. 
 

Collection Notice. The following is a list of the categories of personal information we may have collected about 
California residents in the twelve months preceding the date this Privacy Notice was last updated, including the business 
or commercial purpose for said collection, the categories of sources from which we may have collected the personal 
information, and the categories of third parties with whom we may have shared the personal information: 
 

Categories of 
Personal 
Information 
Collected 

The categories of personal information we have collected include, but may not be limited to: real name; 
signature; alias; SSN; physical characteristics or description, including protected characteristics under 
federal or state law; address; telephone number; passport number; driver’s license number; state 
identification card number; IP address; policy number; file number; employment history; bank account 
number; credit card number; debit card number; financial account numbers; commercial information; 
internet or other electronic network activity; geolocation data; audio and visual information; professional 
or employment information; and inferences drawn from the above categories to create a profile about a 
consumer. 

Categories of 
Sources 

Categories of sources from which we’ve collected personal information include, but may not be 
limited to: the consumer directly; public records; governmental entities; non-affiliated third parties; 
social media networks; affiliated third parties 

Business 
Purpose for 
Collection 

The business purposes for which we’ve collected personal information include, but may not be limited 
to: completing a transaction for our Products; verifying eligibility for employment; facilitating 
employment; performing services on behalf of affiliated and non-affiliated third parties; debugging to 
identify and repair errors that impair existing intended functionality on our Websites, Applications, or 
Products; protecting against malicious, deceptive, fraudulent, or illegal activity 

 

 

© 2019 First American Financial Corporation and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved. NYSE:FAF 
 

Form 10-PRIVACY19 (1-10-20) Page 2 of 3 Privacy Notice (2019 First American Financial Corporation) 
  

122

mailto:dataprivacy@firstam.com
mailto:dataprivacy@firstam.com


 

 

 
 

Categories of 
Third Parties 
Shared 

The categories of third parties with whom we’ve shared personal information include, but may not be 
limited to: advertising networks; internet service providers; data analytics providers; service providers; 
government entities; operating systems and platforms; social media networks; non-affiliated third 
parties; affiliated third parties 

 

Categories of Personal Information We Have Sold In The Past Year. We have not sold any personal information of 
California residents to any third party in the twelve months preceding the date this Privacy Notice was last updated. 
 

Categories of Personal Information Disclosed For A Business Purpose In The Past Year. The following is a list of the 
categories of personal information of California residents we may have disclosed for a business purpose in the 12 
months preceding the date this Privacy Notice was last updated: The categories of personal information we have collected 
include, but may not be limited to: real name; signature; alias; SSN; physical characteristics or description, including 
protected characteristics under federal or state law; address; telephone number; passport number; driver’s license 
number; state identification card number; IP address; policy number; file number; employment history; bank account 
number; credit card number; debit card number; financial account numbers; commercial information; internet or other 
electronic network activity; geolocation data; audio and visual information; professional or employment information; and 
inferences drawn from the above categories to create a profile about a consumer. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

© 2019 First American Financial Corporation and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved. NYSE:FAF 
   

Form 10-PRIVACY19 (1-10-20) Page 3 of 3 Privacy Notice (2019 First American Financial Corporation) 
 

123



  
Preliminary Report Order No.: 7000-3520519 
  Page 9 of 10 
  

 

First American Title 

  
Exhibit "A" 

  
Real property in the  County of Washington, State of Oregon, described as follows:  

  
BEGINNING AT THE ONE-QUARTER SECTION CORNER ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 6, 
TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 1 WEST, OF THE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN, IN THE COUNTY OF 
WASHINGTON AND STATE OF OREGON, AND RUNNING THENCE SOUTH ON ONE-HALF SECTION LINE 
20.19 CHAINS; THENCE WEST 516 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SHAW TRACT 
DESCRIBED IN CONTRACT OF SALE RECORDED JUNE 9, 1959 IN BOOK 418, PAGE 522, DEED RECORDS, 
AND THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE TRACT HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE EAST ALONG THE 
SOUTH LINE OF SAID SHAW TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 208 FEET; THENCE NORTH, PARALLEL TO THE 
WEST LINE OF SAID SHAW TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 439, FEET TO A POINT; THENCE WEST A DISTANCE 
OF 208 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID SHAW TRACT; THENCE SOUTH FOLLOWING 
THE WEST LINE OF SAID SHAW TRACT TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
NOTE: This Legal Description was created prior to January 01, 2008. 

124



 

 

  

125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



City of Sherwood
Comm. Dev. Div.--Planning Dept.
22560 SW Pine St
Sherwood OR 97140

Cadastral Information Systems Unit
PO Box 14380

Salem, OR 97309-5075
fax 503-945-8737

boundary.changes@oregon.gov

Pre
lim

in
ar

y R
ev

ie
w

DOR 34-P817-2021Boundary Change Preliminary Review

April 7, 2021

Documents received: 3/17/2021
From: Eric Rutledge

This letter is to inform you that the Description and Map for your planned --Annex to City of
Sherwood &
--Annex to Clean Water Services District ((2021-003 AN)_ Olivia Beach Annexation) in
Washington County have been reviewed per your request. They MEET the requirements of ORS
308.225 for use with an Order, Ordinance, or Resolution which must be submitted to the
Washington County Assessor and the Department of Revenue in final approved form before
March 31 of the year in which the change will become effective.

Some of the numbers on the surveyor's annexation map are hard to read. Make sure that the map
in the Final packet has legible numbers.
Is there a better copy of this map that could be used in the Final packet?

If you have any questions please contact Elise Bruch, Elise.A.Bruch@oregon.gov

181



 
 

ORDINANCE 2021-003 
 

APPROVING ANNEXATION OF 2.19 ACRES TO THE CITY OF SHERWOOD AND CLEAN WATER 
SERVICES, COMPRISED OF 1 LOT AND ADJACENT SW BROOKMAN ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY WITHIN 

THE BROOKMAN ADDITION CONCEPT PLAN AREA 
 
WHEREAS, Olivia Beach, LLC., on behalf of the owners of a single 2.0-acre lot, has submitted an application 
for annexation of certain territory, as described in Exhibits A and B to this Ordinance, to the City of Sherwood; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the property owners initiated this annexation in accordance with ORS Chapter 222 and SB 1573 
(2016); and 
 
WHEREAS, SB 1573 requires City approval without submission to the electors, regardless of any local charter 
or ordinance requirements to the contrary, of annexation requests submitted by all owners of land in the 
territory proposed to be annexed, when: 
 

(a) The territory is included within an urban growth boundary adopted by the city or Metro, as defined in 
ORS 197.015;  

(b) The territory is, or upon annexation of the territory into the city will be, subject to the acknowledged 
comprehensive plan of the city;  

(c) At least one lot or parcel within the territory is contiguous to the city limits or is separated from the city 
limits only by a public right-of-way or body or water; and  

(d) The proposal conforms to all other requirements of the city’s ordinances; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Brookman Addition Concept Plan area, which includes the territory proposed to be annexed, 
was brought into the Urban Growth Boundary in 2002 by Metro via Ordinance 02-0969B; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood developed a concept plan for that area and adopted the concept plan and 
implementing ordinances in 2009 via Ordinance 2009-004 as amended via Ordinance 2021-001; and 
 
WHEREAS, the lot (the territory) that is proposed to be annexed is contiguous to the current city limits; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2 acre property requires 0.19 acres of rights of way for SW Brookman Rd. adjacent to the 
property on the south; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City does not presently have any other ordinance requirements applicable to this annexation 
request; and 

WHEREAS, a portion of the subject territory is not currently within Clean Water Services boundaries and 10.50 
acres will be added to the Clean Water Services district boundary upon annexation under the authority of ORS 
199.510(2)(c); and  

182



WHEREAS, Washington County and the City of Sherwood have entered into an agreement acknowledging 
that the City of Sherwood should be the ultimate provider of services in the Brookman area; and  

WHEREAS, these properties must be within the City limits in order to be developed for the urban uses and 
densities planned for in the Brookman Addition Concept Plan; and  

WHEREAS, after proper legal notice, public hearings were held on the proposed annexation by the City 
Council on April 20 and May 4, 2021, at which public comments and testimony were received and considered; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Council reviewed and considered the staff report with proposed findings and conclusions for 
the decision which is included as Exhibit 1 to the Council staff report;  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  

Section 1. The territory proposed to be annexed is specifically identified in the legal description (Exhibit A) 
and map (Exhibit B) attached to this Ordinance. 

Section 2. The applicant has demonstrated that the annexation of the territory proposed to be annexed to 
the City of Sherwood meets all applicable requirements, as documented in Exhibit 1 to the City 
Council Staff Report. 

Section 3.  Upon annexation, the Comprehensive Plan zoning designation of Medium Density Residential 
High (MDRH) adopted via Ordinance 2009-004 implementing the Brookman Addition Concept 
Plan, will apply to the territory proposed to be annexed. 

Section 4. The territory proposed to be annexed is hereby declared annexed to the City of Sherwood. 

Section 5.  This Ordinance shall become effective 30 days from its adoption  

 
Duly passed by the City Council this 4th of May, 2021. 
 
        _______________________    
        Keith Mays, Mayor   Date 
Attest:   
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
 
 

         AYE NAY 
Scott  ____ ____ 
Griffin   ____ ____ 
Brouse  ____ ____ 
Young  ____ ____ 
Garland ____ ____ 
Rosener ____ ____ 
Mays   ____ ____ 

183



184



185


	01 City Council Packet Cover 05.04.2021
	02  City Council Mtg. Agenda 05.04.2021
	AGENDA

	03  04.20.2021 City Council Meeting Minutes - DRAFT
	5. ADJOURN:
	12. ADJOURN:
	5. ADJOURN:

	04  Resolution 2021-021 Purchase 2022 Freightline Sherwood Broadband - STAFF REPORT
	05  Resolution 2021-021 Purchase 2022 Freightiner Sherwood Broadband - DRAFT
	06  Resolution 2021-022 3J Contract Amendment Comp Plan (JS edits) - STAFF REPORT
	07  Resolution 2021-022 3J Contract Amendment Comp Plan (JS edits) - DRAFT
	08  Resolution 2021-022 3J Contract Amendment Comp Plan - EXH A
	09  Resolution 2021-023 Adopting Modification to Loan Period - STAFF REPORT
	10  Resolution 2021-023 Adopting Modification to Loan Period - DRAFT
	11  Ordinance 2021-003 Beach Annexation LU2021-003 - STAFF REPORT
	12  Ordinance 2021-003 Beach Annexation LU2021-003 - EXH 1 to STAFF REPORT
	LU 2021-003 AN Olivia Beach Staff Report Final
	All Exhibits Combined
	Exhibit A Combined
	1 Map of Proposed Annexation Territory
	2 Legal Description of Annexation Territory
	3 Brookman Addition Subdivisions 3-31-21
	4 Middlebrook Draft Final Plat
	5 Zoning Map and Comprehensive Plan Map Snip

	Exhibit B Combined
	1 Engineering Comments
	2 Police Comments
	3 Fire Comments
	4 Res 2011-072 Brookman Funding Plan
	5 County UPAA  092617 Executed
	1
	2


	Exhibit C Combined
	Application Form
	Corrected Narrative 2-16-21
	Annexation Application
	Exhibit A - Assessor's Map
	Exhibit B - Aerial Photograph
	Exhibit C - City of Sherwood Zoning Map
	Exhibit D - Certification of Legal Description and Map_Signed
	Exhibit E - Washington County - Sherwood UPAA
	Exhibit F - Certification of Property Ownership_Signed
	Exhibit G - UGB Map
	Exhibit H - Signed Petition
	Exhibit I - Worksheet for Annexation to the City of Sherwood
	Exhibit J - Annexation Questionnaire
	Exhibit K - Boundary Change Data Sheet
	Exhibit L - Mailing Labels

	Preliminary Title Report and Supporting Docs
	(OR) Preliminary Title Report -N
	SP-Exceptions_08_87038434
	SP-Exceptions_09_2007049243
	SP-Exceptions_09a_2017077535
	SP-Exceptions_09b_2017078367
	SP-Exceptions_10_2017077535
	SP-Vesting deed

	Contract of Sale Book 417 Page 521
	Contract Book 417 Page 521_3
	Contract Book 417 Page 521_2
	Contract Book 417 Page 521_1




	13  Ordinance 2021-003 Beach Annexation LU2021-003 - EXH 2 to STAFF REPORT
	14  Ordinance 2021-003 Beach Annexation LU2021-003 - DRAFT
	15  Ordinance 2021-003 Beach Annexation LU2021-003 - EXH A
	16  Ordinance 2021-003 Beach Annexation LU2021-003 - EXH B
	17  Ordinance 2021-004 Adopt Parks and Recreation Master Plan - STAFF REPORT_JH edits (JS edits)
	18  Ordinance 2021-004 Adopt Parks and Recreation Master Plan - DRAFT (JS edits)...[20970]
	19  Ordinance 2021-004 Adopt Parks and Recreation Master Plan - EXH A
	CITY OF SHERWOOD
	Staff Report Sherwood Parks and Recreation Plan Adoption
	Case File: 2020-017-PA
	TO: City Council
	FROM: Sherwood Planning Commission
	On February 23 and April 23, 2021, the Planning Commission held a public hearing to consider the Sherwood Parks and Recreation Master Plan.  The proposed Master Plan would replace all prior Parks and Recreation Master Plans, repealing Resolution 2006-...
	After considering the application materials and the findings in the staff report, the Planning Commission recommends the Parks and Recreation Master Plan, April 2021, to the Sherwood City Council for final approval.
	UErika N. Palmer
	Sherwood Planning Manager

	20  Ordinance 2021-004 Adopt Parks and Recreation Master Plan - EXH B
	Sherwood Parks Master Plan_April 22 2021_with 11 x 17 figures
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Appendices_A-F_Combined_UpdatedApril222021
	Blank Page
	Appendix C State of Sherwood Parks and Recreation.pdf
	State of Sherwood Parks, Recreation & Community Services Summary Report
	Introduction
	Document Overview
	Parks, Recreation, and Community Services in Sherwood
	COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION
	PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION
	OTHER MAJOR PROVIDERS
	TUALATIN WILDLIFE REFUGE
	SHERWOOD REGIONAL FAMILY YMCA
	SHERWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT
	METRO


	Parks and Trails
	City of Sherwood Parks
	Table 1: City of Sherwood Park Inventory

	City of Sherwood Natural Areas
	Sherwood Public School Sites
	Table 2: Joint Use School Sites


	Recreation and Cultural Facilities
	INDOOR RECREATION FACILITIES
	Table 3: Major Indoor Recreation Facilities
	SHERWOOD CENTER FOR THE ARTS
	MARJORIE STEWART SENIOR COMMUNITY CENTER
	SHERWOOD FIELD HOUSE
	SHERWOOD REGIONAL FAMILY YMCA

	OUTDOOR RECREATION FACILITIES
	DOG PARK
	STELLA OLSEN MEMORIAL PARK AMPHITHEATER
	SKATE PARK
	SPORTS FIELDS
	Table 4: Sherwood Athletic Fields
	CANNERY SQUARE AND FOUNTAIN
	OUTDOOR COURTS

	TRAILS
	PRIVATE RECREATION FACILITIES

	Programs and Activities
	Table 5: Program Providers in Sherwood
	Table 6: Program Offerings by Demographic

	Funding
	Table 7: Operating Budget for Parks, Recreation and Community Services

	Planned Parks Capital Projects
	Table 8: Planned Parks Capital Projects

	Implications for the Master Plan

	Figure 1:  Laying the Foundation for the Master Plan
	Figure 2: Sherwood’s Organizational Structure
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Appendix D Sherwood Fieldhouse Analysis.pdf
	City of Sherwood Parks and Recreation Master Plan – New Fieldhouse Analysis
	Introduction
	Fieldhouse Trends
	Fieldhouse Components
	Keys to Project Success


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Appendix E Cover.pdf
	Blank Page

	Appendix A Guiding Planning Documents_RevisedApril2021.pdf
	Guiding Planning Documents
	Sherwood Comprehensive Plan
	Vision
	Goals

	TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN
	SHERWOOD TOWN CENTER PLAN
	ICE AGE TONQUIN TRAIL MASTER PLAN
	SOUTHWEST CORRIDOR PLAN
	BROOKMAN ADDITION CONCEPT PLAN
	SHERWOOD WEST PRELIMINARY CONCEPT PLAN
	TONQUIN EMPLOYMENT AREA PREFERRED CONCEPT PLAN
	ADAMS AVENUE NORTH CONCEPT PLAN
	AREA 59
	SE SHERWOOD MASTER PLAN


	Appendix F Needs Assessment_UpdatedApril2021.pdf
	Sherwood Parks and Recreation Needs Assessment
	Introduction
	Parks and Recreation Trends
	Public Health and Wellness
	Connecting Youth with Nature
	Trail-Based Recreation
	An Active, Aging Population
	Art in Public Places
	Play for All Ages and Abilities

	Community Engagement Themes

	Figure 1:  Laying the Foundation for the Master Plan
	Figure 2:  Public Engagement Snapshot
	Above: word cloud, online comments
	Upper left: poster advertising online questionnaire
	Lower left: popup booth
	1. Parks and Trails Needs
	A. 10-Minute Walk Park Access and Gap Analysis
	Meeting the 10-Minute Walk Guideline

	B. Visitor Experience Enhancement Opportunities
	Opportunities to Improve the Visitor Experience

	C. Trail Opportunities
	Table 1: Off-Street Trail Priorities

	D. Opportunities to Interact with Nature
	Table 2: Nature Interaction Levels in Sherwood Parks
	Opportunities to Increase Interaction with Nature

	E. Park Land and Trail Needs in Growth Areas
	Table 3: Extrapolated Metro Forecast for Household Growth, Sherwood Planning Area
	Brookman Addition Concept Plan
	Park Planning Considerations

	Sherwood West Concept Plan Area
	Park Planning Considerations

	Other Growth Areas


	Figure 3:  Amenity Levels in Sherwood Parks
	Figure 4:  Most Needed Parks and Facilities, Online Questionnaire
	Figure 5:  Brookman Addition Parks and Open Spaces
	Figure 6: Sherwood West Concept Plan
	2. Recreation Facility Needs
	A. Aquatic Facilities
	Aquatic Facility Design Trends
	Aquatic Facility Elements
	Aquatic Facility Considerations

	B. Indoor Recreation Facilities
	Facility Classifications
	Indoor Facility Providers and Roles
	Indoor Recreation Facility Considerations and Needs
	Multi-purpose Recreation Centers
	Specialty Recreation Facilities


	C. Sports Facilities
	Sports Fields
	Trends
	Considerations

	Sports Courts
	Trends
	Considerations


	D. Other Outdoor Recreational Facility Needs

	3. Recreation Program Needs
	A. Sherwood’s Roles in Recreation Programs
	B. Community Feedback
	C. Potential Programming Directions

	Figure 7: Where People Go for Recreation, Online Questionnaire Respondents
	Figure 7: Most Needed Recreation Opportunities, Online Questionnaire Respondents
	Figure 8: Most Needed Recreation Opportunities, Online Questionnaire Respondents
	Needs Assessment TOC.pdf
	Sherwood Parks and Recreation Needs Assessment
	Table of Contents
	1. Parks and Trails Needs
	2. Recreation Facility Needs
	3. Recreation Program Needs


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	cover.pdf
	Sherwood Parks and Recreation Needs Assessment
	February 13, 2020


	Blank Page






